
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 23, 2020 

7:30 P.M. 
VIRTUAL MEETING 

MEETING ID: 655 079 760 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pierre Boutros, Mayor 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee 
 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS, 
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

Announcements 
• The City has reinstated the hotline to provide residents with information about City and County 

COVID-19 resources. Elderly, quarantined and immuno-compromised individuals are 
encouraged to use the hotline to request assistance with essential functions, and obtaining 
necessary supplies Call 248-530-1805, Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. – 5 p.m, excluding 
holidays. 

• The city would like to thank Daniel Haugen for his service to the community on the Museum 
Board.  

 
Appointments: 

A. Design Review Board 
1. Dustin Kolo 
2. Samantha Kristen Cappello 
3. Kathleen Kriel 

 
To appoint __________________, as a regular member to serve the remainder of a three-year term to 
expire September 25, 2023. 
 
To appoint __________________, as an alternate member to serve the remainder of a three-year term 
to expire September 25, 2022. 
 
To appoint __________________, as an alternate member to serve the remainder of a three-year term 
to expire September 25, 2022. 
 

B. Planning Board 
1. Jason Emerine 
2. Nasseem S. Ramin 

 
To appoint _____________, to the Planning Board as an alternate member to serve a three-year term 
to expire November 2, 2023. 



2  November 23, 2020 

 
To appoint _____________, to the Planning Board as an alternate member to serve a three-year term 
to expire November 2, 2023. 
 

C. Business Shopping District 
1. Michael K. McKenzie 

 
To concur with the City Manager’s appointment of _________ to the Birmingham Shopping District Board, 
as a member who is a resident from an adjacent neighborhood, for a four-year term to expire November 
16, 2024. 
 

D. Parks & Recreation 
1. Anne Lipp 
2. Claudia Sparschu 
3. Javon David 
4. Jim Cleary 

 
To appoint ____________ to the Parks and Recreation Board as an alternate member to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term to expire March 13, 2022.   
 

E. Historic District Commission 
1.  Dustin Kolo 
2.  Cassandra McCarthy 

 
To appoint _________________, to the Historic District Commission as a regular member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire September 25, 2023. 
 
To appoint _________________, to the Historic District Commission as an alternate member 
to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire September 25, 2022. 
 

F. Board of Zoning Appeals  
1. Erin J. Rodenhouse 

 
To appoint _____________ as an alternate member to the Board of Zoning Appeals to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term to expired 2/17/2023. 
 

G. Cablecasting  
1. MD Rabbi Alam 

 
To appoint __________ to the Cablecasting Board as an alternate member to serve a three-year term 
expiring March 30, 2022. 
 
To appoint __________ to the Cablecasting Board as a regular member to serve a three-year 
term expiring March 30, 2022. 
 

H. Multi Modal Transportation Board 
1. David Lurie 

To appoint ___________, as a Member at large from different geographical areas of the city to the Multi-
Modal Transportation Board to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire March 24, 2023. 
 



3  November 23, 2020 

To appoint ___________, as a regular member to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board 
to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire March 24, 2022. 
 

I. Public Arts Board  
1. Peggy Diatch 

 
To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as an alternate member to serve the remainder of 
a three-year term to expire January 28, 2023. 
 
To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as an alternate member to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term to expire January 28, 2022. 
 
 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

A. Resolution approving the City Commission meeting minutes of November 9, 2020. 
 

B. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
November 11, 2020, in the amount of $1,404,934.85. 
 

C. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
November 18, 2020, in the amount of $270,913.86.  
 

D. Resolution to award the Barnum Park Electrical Additions project to MHM Construction, in the 
amount not to exceed $75,286.96, to be funded from account 401-751.001-981.0100 and 
further; to approve the appropriation and amendment to the fiscal year 2020-2021 General 
Fund and Capital Project Fund budgets as follows: 

 
General Fund Revenues: 
101-000.000-400.0000 Draw from Fund Balance $45,290 
Total Revenue  $45,290 

 

Expenditures: 
101-999.000-999.4010 Transfer to Capital Projects 

 
$45,290 

Total Expenditures  $45,290 
 

Capital Projects Fund Revenues: 
401-000.000-400.0000 Draw from Fund Balance $30,000 
401-751.001-699.0101 Transfer from General Fund 45,290 
Total Revenue  $75,290 

 

Expenditures: 
101-751.001-981.0100 Public Improvements – Parks $75,290 



4  November 23, 2020 

Total Expenditures  $75,290 
 

In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City of 
Birmingham upon receipt of the required insurances. 

 
 
E.  Resolution approving a request from the Birmingham Bloomfield Art Center to hold Art 

Birmingham in Shain Park and on surrounding streets on May 8-9, 2021 contingent upon 
compliance with all permit and insurance requirements, as well as payment of all fees 
and, further pursuant to any minor modifications or event cancellation that may be 
deemed necessary by administrative staff leading up to or at the time of the event due 
to public health and safety measures. 

 
F. Resolution approving a request from the Chabad Jewish Center of Bloomfield Hills to 

display the Shain Park Menorah on December 10-19, 2020, with a special gathering to be 
held on December 13, 2020 beginning at 4:30 pm in Shain Park, contingent upon 
compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, 
further pursuant to any minor modifications or event cancellation that may be deemed 
necessary by administrative staff leading up to or at the time of the event due to public 
health and safety measures. 

 
G. Resolution approving a request from the Birmingham Memorial Day Committee to hold 

the Memorial Day Service in Shain Park on May 31, 2021 from 10:00 – 11:00 am, 
contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of 
all fees and, further pursuant to any minor modifications or event cancellation that may 
be deemed necessary by administrative staff leading up to or at the time of the event 
due to public health and safety measures. 

 
H. Resolution approving the cost sharing agreement with the Road Commission for Oakland 

County, agreeing to pay the City of Birmingham’s share of the cost to replace the traffic 
signal at the intersection of Coolidge Highway and Maple Road, at a cost not to exceed 
$75,000, to be charged to account number 202-303.001-971.0100.  Also, to authorize 
the Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 

 
I. Resolution authorizing the IT department to purchase the email backup solution and 

online backup storage from US Signal for a monthly cost of $2525.60.  Using funds from 
the IT account # 636-228.000-933.0600 
 

J. Resolution approving the intergovernmental agreement with Bloomfield Township for 
construction of the proposed fire hydrant connected to Birmingham’s water supply 
system, and also to direct the Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 
 

K. Resolution to accept the resignation of Dan Haugen from the Museum Board, thank him 
for his service, and direct the Clerk to fill the vacancy on the Museum Board. 

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 



5  November 23, 2020 

A. Resolution to approve the employment agreement with Thomas M. Markus to serve as City 
Manager effective January 1, 2021. 

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. FY 2019-20 Audit Presentation 
 
B. 1st Quarter Finances 
 
C. Resolution to receive the 2021 proposed budget from the 48th District Court; and further, to 

approve the budget as submitted. 
 

D. Resolution to approve the continuation of free parking in all structures through March 31, 2021. 
 

E. Resolution to direct the proposed ordinance amendments Chapter 126, Zoning, Article 4, 
Section 4.44 to the Planning Board for their review and recommendation. 
 

 
F. Commission Discussion on items from prior meeting. 

 
G. Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for future 
 discussion at the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen tonight. 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 
B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 
 1. 1st Quarter 2020-21 Budget Report 
 2. 1st Quarter 2020-21 Investment Report 
 3.  Parking System Update  
   
 
INFORMATION ONLY 

   
XI. ADJOURN 

 
NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for effective participation in 
this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-5115 (TDD) at least one day in advance to request 
mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
 
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión deben ponerse en 
contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964). 

tel:%28248%29%20530-1880


NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020, the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint one regular member to the Design Review Board to serve the reminder of 
a three-year term to expire September 25, 2023, and two alternate members to serve the 
remainder of  three-year terms to both expire September 25, 2022. 

Interested parties may submit an application available from the city clerk's office on or 
before noon on Wednesday, November 18, 2020. Applications will appear in the public 
agenda at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and vote on appointments. 

The function and duty of the Design Review Board is to advise the City Commission in 
regard to the proper development of the City. The Design Review Board is specifically 
charged with carrying out the goals, objectives and intent of the City's adopted master 
plan and urban design plan and other development-oriented plans which may 
subsequently be adopted. The Design Review Board is authorized to advise and cooperate 
with the City Commission, City Planning Board, Historic District Commission and other City 
advisory boards and cooperate with the planning, historic district and legislative bodies of 
other governmental units in any area outside the boundaries of the City. 

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

To appoint __________________, as a regular member to serve the remainder of a three-
year term to expire September 25, 2023. 

To appoint __________________, as an alternate member to serve the remainder of a 
three-year term to expire September 25, 2022. 

To appoint __________________, as an alternate member to serve the remainder of a 
three-year term to expire September 25, 2022. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
• Members shall represent, insofar as possible,

different occupations and professions such as, but 
not limited to, the legal profession, the financial or 
real estate professions, and the planning or design 
professions. Members shall be residents. 

Dustin Kolo Resident 

Samantha Cappello Resident 

Kathleen Kriel Resident 

3A



DESIGN REVIEW BOARD
Ordinance #1882 
 
Terms:  3 years 

 
Members:  One member of the Design Review Board shall be an architect duly registered in this state, if such person is 
available. The other members shall represent, insofar as possible, different occupations and professions such as, but not 
limited to, the legal profession, the financial or real estate professions, and the planning or design professions.   

 
Duties: The function and duty of the Design Review Board is to advise the city commission in regard to the proper 
development of the city. The Design Review Board is specifically charged with carrying out the goals, objectives and intent of 
the city's adopted master plan and urban design plan and other development-oriented plans which may subsequently be 
adopted. The Design Review Board is authorized to advise and cooperate with the City Commission, city Planning Board, 
Historic District Commission and other city advisory boards and cooperate with the planning, historic district and legislative 
bodies of other governmental units in any area outside the boundaries of the city. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Debbrecht Gigi

564 Frank St.

(248) 882-9906

gigidebbrecht@yahoo.com
Real estate
12/10/2018 9/25/2021

Deyer Keith

1283 Buckingham

(248)642-6390

kwdeyer@comcast.net
Engineer
9/25/2006 9/25/2023

Dukas Natalia

1352 Suffield

(248) 885-8535

nataliadukas@yahoo.com
Finance
9/9/2013 9/25/2022

Henke John

724 South Bates

(248) 789-1640

jwhenke@aol.com
Historical preservation organization 
member

9/25/2006 9/25/2021

Lang Patricia

1023 Floyd St.

(248) 540-0991

pal.family.friends@gmail.com

12/10/2018 9/25/2021

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 1 of 2



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Vacant 9/25/2023

Vacant
Alternate

9/25/2022

Vacant
Alternate

9/25/2022

Willoughby Michael

667 Greenwood

(248) 760-8903

mwilloughby@mwa-architects.com
Architect
3/22/2010 9/25/2022

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 2 of 2

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



carft
Rectangle

carft
Rectangle



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
PLANNING BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020, the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint two alternate members to serve three-year terms to expire November 2, 
2023. Members must consist of an architect duly registered in this state, a building owner in 
the Central Business or Shain Park Historic District, and the remaining members shall 
represent, insofar as possible, different occupations and professions such as, but not limited 
to, the legal profession, the financial or real estate professions, and the planning or design 
professions.  Members must be residents of the City of Birmingham. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunites.  Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, November 18, 2020.  These applications will appear 
in the public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

PLANNING BOARD DUTIES 
The Planning Board consists of seven regular and two alternate members who serve three-
year terms without compensation.  The board meets at 7:30 P.M. on the second and fourth 
Wednesdays of each month to hear design reviews, zoning ordinance text amendments and 
any other matters which bear relation to the physical development or growth of the city. 

Specifically, the duties of the Planning Board are as follows: 
1. Long range planning
2. Zoning ordinance amendments
3. Recommend action to the city commission regarding special land use permits.
4. Site plan/design review for non-historic properties
5. Joint site plan/design review for non-residential historic properties
6. Rezoning requests.
7. Soil filling permit requests
8. Requests for opening, closing or altering a street or alley

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code 
Chapter 2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

3B

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunites


Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

To appoint _____________, to the Planning Board as an alternate member to serve a 
three-year term to expire November 2, 2023. 

To appoint _____________, to the Planning Board as an alternate member to serve a 
three-year term to expire November 2, 2023. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Building owner in the Central Business or Shain Park Historic 
District. 
Other members shall represent, insofar as possible, different 
occupations and professions such as, but not limited to, the legal 
profession, the financial or real estate professions, and the 
planning or design professions.   

Members must be residents of the City of Birmingham. 
Jason Emerine Civil Engineer 
Nasseem Ramin Attorney 



PLANNING BOARD
Chapter 82 – Section 82-27 – Seven Members
Job Requirements:  An architect duly registered in this state, a building owner in the Central
Business or Shain Park Historic District, and remaining members, must represent, insofar as
possible, different occupations and professions such as, but not limited to, the legal profession,
the financial or real estate professions, and the planning or design professions.   
Terms: Three Years 
Appointment by City Commission 
Meeting Schedule:  Second and Fourth Wednesday of the month at 7:30 PM. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Boyce Janelle

179 Catalpa

(248) 321-3207

jlwboyce@hotmail.com

Design profession
3/28/202312/10/2007

Boyle Robin

840 Wimbleton

(248) 961-1514

r.boyle@wayne.edu

Planning Professor
3/28/20224/19/2004

Clein Scott

1556 Yosemite

(248) 203-2068

s.clein@comcast.net

Civil Engineer/Urban Design
3/28/20223/22/2010

Emerine Jason

720 Bennaville Ave.

(312) 371-9398

je@seiberkeast.com

Alternate
11/2/20205/14/2018

Hesler Rachel

1940 Yosemite Blvd.

(248)636-6436

rachel.hesler.03@gmail.com

Student
12/31/20202/10/2020

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 1 of 2

ahauff
Text Box



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Jeffares Stuart

1381 Birmingham Blvd

(248) 321-2120

stuartjeffares@gmail.com

Real Estate profession
3/28/202112/14/2015

Koseck Bert

2441 Dorchester

(248) 302-4018

bkoseck@comcast.net

Architect
3/28/202310/12/2009

Lee June

2071 Langham Dr.

(248)245-8093

june.lee.935@gmail.com

Student
12/31/20202/10/2020

Ramin Nasseem

1701 Maryland

(248) 765-9446

nramin@dykema.com

Alternate/Attorney
11/2/202011/20/2017

Share Daniel

1040 Gordon Lane

(248) 642-7340

dshare@bsdd.com

Building Owner
3/28/202111/24/2014

Williams J. Bryan

1421 Stanley

(248) 420-3522
(248) 433-7289

jwilliams@dickinsonwright.com

Attorney
3/28/20214/16/2007

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 2 of 2

ahauff
Text Box



Name of Board: Year: 2020

Members Required for Quorum:

MEMBER NAME 1/8 1/22 2/12 2/27 3/11 4/22 5/13 5/27 6/10 6/24 7/8 7/22 8/12 8/26 9/9

SPEC 

MTG

SPEC 

MTG

Total 

Mtgs. 

Att.

Total 

Absent

Percent 

Attended 

Available

REGULAR MEMBERS

Janelle Boyce P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 15 0 100%

Robin Boyle A A P A P P P P P A P P P P A 10 5 67%

Scott Clein P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 15 0 100%

Stuart Jeffares P A P P P P P P P P P P P P P 14 1 93%

Bert Koseck P P P A P P P P P P P P P P A 13 2 87%

Daniel Share P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 15 0 100%

J. Bryan Williams P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 15 0 100%

0 0 #DIV/0!

0 0 #DIV/0!

ALTERNATES

Naseem Ramin P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 15 0 100%

Jason Emerine P P P P P P P A P P P P P P P 14 1 93%

Rachel Hester (Stdnt) NA NA NA P A A A A P P P P P P P 8 4 67%

June Lee (Stdnt) NA NA NA P P A A P A A A A A P P 5 7 42%

0 0

KEY: A = Member absent

P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum

CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum

NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month

CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

PLANNING BOARD







ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by ahauff



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO   
BIRMINGHAM SHOPPING DISTRICT BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020 the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint one regular member to the Birmingham Shopping District Board to 
serve a four-year term to expire November 16, 2024. 

The goal of the shopping district board shall be to promote economic activity in the 
principal shopping districts of the city by undertakings including, but not limited to, 
conducting market research and public relations campaigns, developing, coordinating 
and conducting retail and institutional promotions, and sponsoring special events and 
related activities.  (Section 82-97(a))  The board may expend funds it determines 
reasonably necessary to achieve its goal, within the limits of those monies made 
available to it by the city commission from the financing methods specified in this article. 
(Section 82-97(b)). 

The shopping district board shall consist of 12 members. One member shall be the City 
Manager, one shall be a resident of an area designated as a principal shopping district, 
and one shall be a resident of an adjacent residential area. A majority of the members 
shall be nominees of individual businesses located within a principal shopping district 
who have an interest in property located in the district. The remaining members shall be 
representatives of businesses located in the district. 

The ordinance states that the City Manager will make the appointment with 
the concurrence of the City Commission.   

Interested persons may submit a form available from the city clerk’s office.  Applications 
must be submitted to the city clerk’s office on or before noon on Wednesday, November 
18, 2020. These documents will appear in the public agenda. 

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To concur with the City Manager’s appointment of _________ to the Birmingham 
Shopping District Board, as a member who is a resident from an adjacent neighborhood, 
for a four-year term to expire November 16, 2024. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Applicants shall be representatives of businesses located in 
the district.  

Michael Mckenzie Resident 

3C



BIRMINGHAM SHOPPING DISTRICT 
BOARD

Ordinance 1534 - Adopted September 14, 1992 
The Board shall consist of 12 members as follows: 

a) City Manager.
b) Resident from an area designated as a principal shopping district.
c) Resident from an adjacent residential area.
d) A majority of the members shall be nominees of individual businesses located within a

principal shopping district who have an interest in property located in the district.
e) The remaining members shall be representatives of businesses located in the district.

4-Year Terms 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term ExpiresBusiness Address

Astrein Richard

13125 Ludlow

(248) 399-4228
(248) 644-1651

richard@astreins.com

Interest in Property Located in District
11/16/202111/16/1992

Huntington Woods 48070

Eid Samy

2051 Villa, Apt. 303

(248) 840-8127

samyeid@mac.com

Interest in Property Located in District

588 S. Old Woodward

11/16/202111/14/2016

Birmingham 48009

Birmingham 48009

Fehan Douglas

833 Hazel

(248)705-3000

godug@aol.com

District Resident
11/16/202012/14/1992

Birmingham 48009

Wednesday, November 18, 2020 Page 1 of 3



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term ExpiresBusiness Address

Hockman Geoffrey

PO Box 936

(248) 431-4800

jeff.hockman.mec@gmail.com

Business Operator
11/16/202211/16/1992

Birmingham 48012

Kay Zachary
(248) 220-4999

zak@shopfoundobjects.com

Business Operator

168 South Old Woodward

11/16/20237/9/2018

Birmingham 48009

Lundberg Jessica

494 Whippers In Court

(248) 766-8696

krddovs@rivagedayspa.com

Business Operator

210 S. Old Woodward

11/16/202212/9/2019

Bloomfield Hills 48304

Birmingham 48009

Pohlod Amy

1360 Edgewood

(248) 219-5042

amypohlod@hotmail.com

Interest in Property Located in District

912 South Old Woodward

11/16/20227/25/2016

Birmingham 48009

Birmingham 48009

Quintal Steven

880 Ivy Lane

248-642-0024

steve@fullercentralpark.com

Member greater than 5% total sq ft 
in SAD 1.

112 Peabody St

11/16/202312/8/2003

Bloomfield Hills 48304

Birmingham 48009

Wednesday, November 18, 2020 Page 2 of 3



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term ExpiresBusiness Address

Roberts William

410 Whippers in Court

(248) 463-8606
(248) 646-6395

BR@RobertsRestaurantGroup.com

Business Operator

273 Pierce

11/16/202111/10/1997

Bloomfield Hills 48304

Birmingham 48009

Surnow Sam (248) 877-4000
(248) 865-3000

sam@surnow.com

Interest in Property Located in District

320 Martin, Ste. 100

11/16/202311/23/2015

Birmingham 48009

VACANT
Resident from Adjacent neighborhood

11/16/2023

Valentine Joseph
(248) 530-1809

jvalentine@bhamgov.org

City Manager

151 Martin

2/22/2222

Birmingham 48009

Wednesday, November 18, 2020 Page 3 of 3

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box









NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020, the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint one alternate member to serve the remainder of a three-year term to 
expire March 13, 2022.   

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, November 18, 2020.  These applications will appear 
in the public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

Responsibilities 
The Parks & Recreation Board consists of seven members and two alternate members who 
serve for three-year terms without compensation. The goal of the board is to promote a 
recreation program and a park development program for the City of Birmingham.  The Board 
shall recommend to the City Commission for adoption such rules and regulations pertaining to 
the conduct and use of parks and public grounds as are necessary to administer the same and 
to protect public property and the safety, health, morals, and welfare of the public. 

The meetings are held the first Tuesday of the month at 6:30 P.M. 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code 
Chapter 2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Applicant(s) Presented for City Commission Consideration: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

To appoint ____________ to the Parks and Recreation Board as an alternate member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire March 13, 2022.  

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Members must be electors (registered voters) of the City of 
Birmingham. 

Anne Lipp Attorney 
Claudia Sparschu Electrical Engineer General Motors 
Javon David Attorney 
Jim Cleary Retired College Professor 

3D



PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD
Article II, Section 78 
 
Objectives:  The Parks and Recreation Board shall promote a recreation program and a park development 
program for the City. The Board shall recommend to the city commission for adoption such rules and 
regulations pertaining to the conduct and use of parks and public grounds as are necessary to administer 
the same and to protect public property and the safety, health, morals, and welfare of the public. 
 
Seven regular members, Three-year Terms, Appointed by the City Commission 
Two alternate members, Three-year Terms, Appointed by the City Commission 
Members must be electors of the City of Birmingham 
Meetings held the first Tuesday of each month at 6:30 PM. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Carmona Heather

887 Lakeview Ave.

(248) 867-1346

htcarmona@sbcglobal.net

Registered Voter
3/13/20213/12/2018

Collins Susan

958 Pleasant

(248) 761-6873

sbdcollins@comcast.net

Registered Voter
3/13/20213/9/2020

Graham Pam

884 Knox

(248) 408-6277

pamcracker@gmail.com

Registered Voter
3/13/20231/13/2020

Kaplan Ross

635 Oak

(248) 645-6526

rkaplan@neumannsmith.com

Registered Voter in Birmingham
3/13/202310/22/2007

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 1 of 3



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

LaBelle Jeffrey

1394 Westwood Dr.

(312) 835-9287

labejef@gmail.com

Alternate
3/13/20233/9/2020

Noble Eleanor

1160 Lake Park Dr.

(248) 417-7777

elliecnoble@hotmail.com

Registered Voter in Birmingham
3/13/20237/10/2017

Pulis Dominick

824 Wimbleton Dr.

(586) 381-5831

dompulis@hotmail.com

Registered Voter in Birmingham
3/13/20223/25/2019

Rusche John

358 Henley St.

(248) 731-7068

jprusche@aol.com

Registered Voter in Birmingham (was 
Alt)

3/13/20219/6/2018

VACANT
Alternate

3/13/2022

Watkinson James Hayden

1142 Maryland Blvd.

(248)770-6184

jhw2@bps-schools.com

Student
12/31/20202/10/2020

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 2 of 3

ahauff
Text Box



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Windsor Mallory

1391 Stanley Blvd.

(248)433-6633

malmalwindsor@gmail.com

Student
12/31/2020

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 3 of 3



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020, the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint one regular member to the Historic District Commission to serve three-
year terms to expire September 25, 2023 and two alternate members to serve the remainder 
of a three year term expiring September 25, 2022. 

Interested parties may submit an application available from the City Clerk's Office on or 
before noon on Wednesday, November 18, 2020.  Applications will appear in the public 
agenda at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and vote on appointments. 

The function and duty of the Historic District Commission is to advise the City Commission 
with respect to the proper development of the City with primary emphasis upon the City’s 
established historic districts, sites, properties and historic resources.  The Commission is 
also authorized to recommend for the guidance of the City Commission amendments to 
the City Code relating to the control and development of lands within historic districts.   

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

To appoint _________________, to the Historic District Commission as a regular member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire September 25, 2023. 

To appoint _________________, to the Historic District Commission as an alternate member 
to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire September 25, 2022. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
• A majority of the members shall have a clearly

demonstrated interest in or knowledge of historic 
preservation.  

• Must be a resident

Dustin Kolo Resident 
Cassandra McCarthy Resident 

3E



HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
Ordinance #1880 
 
Terms:  3 years 
Members: A majority of the members shall have a clearly demonstrated interest in or knowledge of historic
preservation.  Two members shall be appointed from a list submitted by duly organized local historic
preservation organizations.  If available, one member shall be an architect who has two years of architectural
experience or who is duly registered in the State of Michigan.   
 
Duties: The function and duty of the Historic District Commission is to advise the City Commission with respect 
to the proper development of the city with primary emphasis upon the city’s established historic districts, sites, 
properties and historic resources.   The Commission is also authorized to recommend for the guidance of the
City Commission amendments to the City Code relating to the control and development of lands within historic 
districts.   
 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Debbrecht Gigi

564 Frank St

(248) 882-9906

gigidebbrecht@yahoo.com
realtor
12/3/2018 9/25/2021

Deyer Keith

1283 Buckingham

(248) 642-6390

kwdeyer@comcast.net

9/25/2006 9/25/2023

Dukas Natalia

1352 Suffield

(248) 885-8535

nataliadukas@yahoo.com

9/9/2013 9/25/2022

Henke John

724 South Bates

(248) 789-1640

jwhenke@aol.com
historical preservation organization 
member

9/25/2006 9/25/2021

Lang Patricia

1023 Floyd St.

(248) 540-0991

pal.family.friends@gmail.com

12/3/2018 9/25/2021

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 1 of 2



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

VACANT
Alternate

9/25/2022

VACANT
Alternate

9/25/2022

VACANT 9/25/2023

Willoughby Michael

667 Greenwood

(248) 760-8903

mwilloughby@mwa-architects.com
architect
3/22/2010 9/25/2022

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 2 of 2

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020 the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint one alternate member to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire 
2/17/2023. 

Interested parties may recommend others or themselves for these positions by submitting a 
form available from the City Clerk's office.  Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, November 18, 2020. Applications will appear in the 
public agenda at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may 
make nominations and vote on appointments. 

Duties of Board 
The Board of Zoning Appeals acts on questions arising from the administration of the zoning 
ordinance, including the interpretation of the zoning map. The Board hears and decides 
appeals from and reviews any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the 
Building Official. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Applicants shall be property owners of record 
and registered voters. 

Erin Rodenhouse Attorney 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED ACTION: 

To appoint _____________ as an alternate member to the Board of Zoning Appeals to serve 
the remainder of a three-year term to expired 2/17/2023. 

3F



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
Chapter 126 – Section 126-671 – Seven Members – Three Year Terms 
Requirements – Property owners of record and registered voter 

The Board of Zoning Appeals acts on questions arising from the administration of the zoning 
ordinance, including the interpretation of the zoning map. The board hears and decides appeals 
from and reviews any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the building official.

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Canvasser Jason

369 Kimberly

(248) 231-9972

jcanvasser@clarkhill.com
Attorney
7/9/2018 10/10/2023

Hart Kevin

2051 Villa

(248) 4967363

khartassociates@aol.com
Architect
2/27/2012 10/10/2023

Lilley Richard

648 Cherry Ct.

248-594-6737

dicklilley@icloud.com
Business owner
9/6/2018 10/10/2023

Lillie Charles

496 S. Glenhurst

(248) 642-6881

lilliecc@sbcglobal.net
Attorney
1/9/1984 10/10/2022

Miller John

544 Brookside

(248) 703-9384

feymiller@comcast.net
Architect
1/23/2012 10/10/2021

Morganroth Erik

631 Ann

(248) 762-9822

emorganroth@comcast.net
Real Estate/Builder
10/12/2015 10/10/2021

Monday, November 16, 2020 Page 1 of 2



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Reddy Ron

763 Wallace

313-820-7491

ron.reddy01@gmail.com
Alternate
2/11/2019 2/17/2023

Rodriguez Francis

333 Pilgrim

248-631-7933

francis@korolaw.com
Attorney
12/10/2018 10/10/2022

VACANT
Alternate

2/17/2023

Monday, November 16, 2020 Page 2 of 2

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
CABLECASTING BOARD  

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020 the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint one regular member to serve the remainder of a three-year term expiring March 30, 
2022, and one alternate member to serve the remainder of a three-year term expiring March 30, 
2022. Applicants must be residents of the City of Birmingham. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's office 
on or before noon on Wednesday, November 18, 2020.  These applications will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

Duties of the Cablecasting Board 
1) Advise the municipalities on matters relating to cable communications;
2) Monitor the franchisee's compliance with the franchise agreement and the cable

communications ordinance;
3) Conduct performance reviews as outlined in Chapter 30, Article VII of the city code;
4) Act as liaison between the franchisee and the public; hear complaints from the public and

seek their resolution from the franchisee;
5) Advise the various municipalities on rate adjustments and services according to the

procedure outlined in Chapter 30; Article VI
6) Advise the municipalities on renewal, extension or termination of a franchise;
7) Appropriate those moneys deposited in an account in the name of the cablecasting board

by the member communities;
8) Oversee the operation of the education, governmental and public access channels;
9) Apprise the municipalities of new developments in cable communications technology;
10) Hear and decide all matters or requests by the operator (Comcast Cablevision);
11) Hear and make recommendations to the municipalities of any request of the operator for

modification of the franchise requirement as to channel capacity and addressable
converters or maintenance of the security fund;

12) Hear and decide all matters in the franchise agreement which would require the operator
to expend moneys up to fifty thousand dollars;

13) Enter into contracts as authorized by resolutions of the member municipalities;
14) Administer contracts entered into by the board and terminate such contracts.

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To appoint __________ to the Cablecasting Board as a regular member to serve a three-year 
term expiring March 30, 2022. 

To appoint __________ to the Cablecasting Board as an alternate member to serve a three-
year term expiring March 30, 2022. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Must be a resident of Birmingham 

MD Rabbi Alam Resident 

3G

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


CABLECASTING BOARD
Chapter 30 - Section 30-226 - Birmingham City Code 
Meeting Schedule: 3rd Wednesday of the month - 7:45 A. M 
 
The Board shall consist of 12 members, which includes 7 members who are residents of the City 
of Birmingham.  Each member community shall also appoint one alternative representative. (30-
226) 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Abraham George

898 Arlington

(248) 642-1257

georgeabrahamjr@outlook.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/20215/14/2018

Eick R. David

559 Greenwood

(248) 231-8067

eickhouse@comcast.net
Birmingham resident

3/30/202112/14/2015

Fenberg Michael

908 Chesterfield

(248) 310-7373

michael.fenberg@bakertilly.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/20233/13/2017

McLain Elaine

425 N Eton, #302

(248) 225-9903

ekmclain@gmail.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/20231/9/2006

Shand Donovan

1645 Buckingham Ave.

(248) 330-0747

dgshand@gmail.com
Birmingham resident

3/30/202312/4/2017

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 1 of 2

 For Cable Inquires:    
 Cathy White  248-336-9445 
 P.O. Box 165, Birmingham, MI  48012 



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

VACANT
Birmingham resident

3/30/2022

VACANT
ALTERNATE

3/30/2022

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 2 of 2

 For Cable Inquires:    
 Cathy White  248-336-9445 
 P.O. Box 165, Birmingham, MI  48012 

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020, the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint one Member at large from different geographical areas of the city to the 
Multi-Modal Transportation Board to serve the remainder of a three-year term to 
expire March 24, 2023, and 2 regular members to serve the remainder of a three-year term 
to expire March 24, 2022 . 
Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, November 18, 2020.  These documents will appear 
in the public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  
In so far as possible, the seven member committee shall be composed of the following: 
one pedestrian advocate member; one member with a mobility or vision impairment; one 
member with traffic-focused education and/or experience; one bicycle advocate member; 
one member with urban planning, architecture or design education and/or experience; and 
two members at large living in different geographical areas of the City.  Applicants for this 
position do not have be a qualified elector or property owner in Birmingham. 

Duties of the Multi-Modal Transportation Board 
The purpose of the Multi-Modal Transportation Board shall be to assist in maintaining the 
safe and efficient movement of motorized and non-motorized vehicles and pedestrians on 
the streets and walkways of the city and to advise the City Commission on the 
implementation of the Multi-Modal Transportation Plan, including reviewing project phasing 
and budgeting. 

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To appoint ___________, as a Member at large from different geographical areas of the 
city to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board to serve the remainder of a three-year term 
to expire March 24, 2023. 

To appoint ___________, as a regular member to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board 
to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire March 24, 2022. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Traffic-focused education/experience, or urban planning, 
architecture or design education/experience. 

David Lurie Resident  

3H

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


 MULTI-MODAL 
TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Chapter 110, Sections 110-26 & 110-27 

The purpose of the Multi-Modal Transportation Board shall be to assist in maintaining the safe and efficient
movement of motorized and non-motorized vehicles and pedestrians on the streets and walkways of the city and to
advise the city commission on the implementation of the Multi-Modal Transportation Plan, including reviewing
project phasing and budgeting.  

In so far as possible, the seven member committee shall be composed of the following: one pedestrian advocate
member; one member with a mobility or vision impairment; one member with traffic-focused education and/or
experience; one bicycle advocate member; one member with urban planning, architecture or design education
and/or experience; and two members at large living in different geographical areas of the city.  At least five Board
members shall be electors or property owners in the city.  The remaining Board members may or may not be
electors or property owners in the City. 

Term: Three years. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Haig Andrew

1814 Banbury St.

(248) 506-9979

ahjunkah@gmail.com

Member at large

Birmingham 48009

10/27/20223/9/2020

Peard Thomas

645 Suffield

(248) 770-7761

thomaspeard@yahoo.com

Urban Planning /Architecture /Design

Birmingham 48009

3/24/20221/13/2020

Schafer Katie

1966 Fairway

(248) 835-5064

schafekat@gmail.com

Pedestrian Advocate

Birmingham 48009

3/24/20213/13/2017

Monday, November 16, 2020 Page 1 of 2



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Slanga Johanna

4410 Charing Way

(248) 761-9567

johannaslanga@gmail.com

Traffic-Focus Education/Experience 
Member

Bloomfield Hills 48304

3/24/20225/5/2014

VACANT 3/24/2022

VACANT 3/24/2022

VACANT
Member at large from different 
geographical areas of the city.

3/24/2023

White Doug

1342 Holland St.

(248) 825-2223

dwhite10@peoplepc.com

Bicycle/Pedestrian Advocate

Birmingham 48009

3/24/20215/14/2018

Zane Joseph

1014 Chestnut St.

(248) 563-3381

Joseph.Michael.Zane@gmail.com

Alternate

Birmingham 48009

10/27/202212/10/2018

Monday, November 16, 2020 Page 2 of 2

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
PUBLIC ARTS BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, November 23, 2020, the Birmingham City Commission 
intends to appoint two alternate members to the Public Arts Board to serve the remainder 
of a three-year term to expire January 28, 2023 and to expire January 28, 2022. 

In so far as possible, the members shall represent a major cultural institution, a registered 
architect of the State of Michigan, an artist, an art historian, and an art consultant. 
Members may also be members of the Historic District Commission, Design Review Board, 
the Parks and Recreation Board, or the Planning Board.  At least four members of the 
Board shall be residents of the City of Birmingham.   

The objectives of the Public Arts Board are to enrich the City's civic and cultural heritage; 
to promote a rich, diverse, and stimulating cultural environment in order to enrich the lives 
of the City's residents, business owners, employees, and all visitors; and to establish an 
environment where differing points of view are fostered, expected, and celebrated by 
providing the opportunity for such expression through the display of public art. 

Interested citizens may apply for this position by submitting an application available from the 
city clerk's office.  Applications must be submitted to the city clerk's office on or before noon 
on Wednesday, November 18, 2020.  These applications will appear in the public agenda for 
the regular meeting at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and may 
make nominations and vote on the appointments.  

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as an alternate member to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term to expire January 28, 2023. 

To appoint _____________ to the Public Arts Board as an alternate member to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term to expire January 28, 2022. 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Members shall, in so far as possible, represent a major 
cultural institution, a registered architect of the State of 
Michigan, an artist, an art historian, and an art consultant. 
Members may also be members of the Historic District 
Commission, Design Review Board, the Parks and 
Recreation Board, or the Planning Board.   

Residents of the City of Birmingham 
Peggy Daitch Resident 

3I



PUBLIC ARTS BOARD
City Code - Chapter 78, Article V 
Terms - 3 years 
7 regular members - At least 4 members shall be residents of the City of Birmingham.  The remaining
members may or may not be residents of Birmingham.  In so far as possible, the members shall
represent a major cultural institution, a registered architect of the State of Michigan, an artist, an art
historian, and an art consultant.  Members may also be members of the HDDRC, the Parks and
Recreation Board, or the Planning Board. 
2 alternate members - must meet one of the already established criteria for regular members  
Objectives -  
 to enrich the City's civic and cultural heritage;
 to promote a rich, diverse, and stimulating cultural environment in order to enrich the lives of the

City's residents, business owners, employees, and all visitors;
 to establish an environment where differing points of view are fostered, expected, and celebrated

by providing the opportunity for such expression through the display of public art.

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Bishai Natalie

1173 Latham St.

(248) 640-0088

nlbishai @yahoo.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20232/12/2018

Eddleston Jason

892 Purdy

(248) 703-3808

jason28e@yahoo.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/202212/5/2016

Heller Barbara

176 Linden

(248) 540-1310
(313) 833-7834

bheller@dia.org

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20211/28/2002

Neville Monica

1516 E. Melton

(248) 321-1776

monica.neville1@gmail.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20212/27/2017

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 1 of 2



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Ritchie Anne

1455 South Eton

(248) 635-1765

anneritchie7@yahoo.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20229/12/2016

VACANT
Alternate Member

1/28/2023

VACANT
Alternate Member

1/28/2022

VanGelderen Annie

3795 Loch Bend

(248) 408-6132

annievangelderen@bbartcenter.org

Artist/Major Cultural Institution

Commerce Twp. 48382

1/28/20231/13/2020

Wells Linda

588 Cherry Ct.

(248) 647-1165

lawells126@gmail.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20222/11/2013

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 Page 2 of 2

ahauff
Text Box



ahauff
Text Box

ahauff
Text Box





BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 9, 2020 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 
7:30 P.M. 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
MEETING ID: 655 079 760 

Video Link: https://vimeo.com/event/3470/videos/477383387/ 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
Alexandra Bingham, City Clerk Designee, called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Boutros (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Baller (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Hoff (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Host (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Nickita (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Sherman (location: Birmingham, MI) 

Absent: None 

Administration: City Manager Valentine, City Clerk Designee Bingham, Police Chief Clemence,  
City Planner Cowan, City Planner Dupuis, Planning Director Ecker, City Attorney 
Kucharek, DPS Director Wood 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

Announcements 
● The Clerk’s Office would like to thank all of the Election Inspectors and City Staff that helped with

conducting a successful November 3rd General Election. We appreciate all of the voters who 
participated safely, turnout for this election was about 79% which was above the average for 
Oakland County.  

Recognition of Mayor 
A. Presentation to Mayor Boutros by Mayor Pro Tem Longe 

Mayor Pro Tem Longe commended Mayor Boutros for being a reassuring and calming presence in his 
capacity as mayor during the Covid-19 pandemic. She also acknowledged him for signing of a 
proclamation against social injustice after the killing of George Floyd in Minneapolis, MN. She thanked 

5A

https://vimeo.com/event/3470/videos/477383387/


 

2  November 9, 2020 

the Mayor on behalf of herself and the community for his leadership, personal integrity, and for his 
commitment to doing the right thing for Birmingham. 
 
Mayor Boutros thanked Mayor Pro Tem Longe. 
 

B. Comments by outgoing Mayor  
 
Mayor Boutros discussed the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and congratulated the community on 
coming together to take care of one another during this time. He said it has been a privilege and an 
honor to serve the community. He thanked citizen volunteers, the City Manager, his fellow 
Commissioners, and City staff for their contributions to the City. 
 
Mayor Boutros described his wife Beatrice as an ‘unsung hero’ who supported his mayoral work, and he 
thanked his children for their continuous support as well.  
 
11-214-20  Nomination of Temporary Chair for purposes of conducting election of  

Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
 
MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Longe: 
To nominate Mayor Boutros as temporary chair for purposes of conducting election of Mayor and Mayor 
Pro Tem. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Mayor Boutros 
 
  Nays,  None    
 
11-215-20  Election of Mayor 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe nominated Mayor Boutros citing his experience navigating the unusual experiences 
of the past year and the possible benefits of maintaining continuity in the position. She acknowledged 
that a second consecutive term for a Mayor would be unprecedented, but that in the circumstances it 
would be appropriate. 
 
Commissioner Hoff said that while she respects Mayor Boutros and considers him a friend, she thought 
it would be more prudent to nominate a Commissioner with more experience to assume the mayoral role 
for the next year given City staff departures and the ongoing pandemic.  
 
Commissioner Sherman concurred with Commissioner Hoff. In support of his stance, he read an excerpt 
from the November/December 2020 edition of The Review, a publication of the Michigan Municipal 
League. The excerpt described the need for City leaders to have the experience and ability to provide 
stability. He said a more experienced Mayor would be better able to provide that stability at this time. 
He said the turnover of City staff was a concern. He said he was ‘also very troubled by the manner in 
which the decision to appoint [Mayor Boutros] was reached behind the scenes in a round-robin fashion, 
and the four votes will confirm that is what occurred.’ 



 

3  November 9, 2020 

 
Commissioner Nickita lent his voice to Commissioners Hoff’s and Sherman’s appreciation of Mayor 
Boutros and their concern that a Mayor with more experience would be better positioned to lead the City 
at this time. He agreed that the turnover of City staff was a concern. 
 
Commissioner Baller described the conversations he had outside of Commission meetings regarding the 
Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem positions. He stated that he had one conversation with Mayor Boutros where 
the Mayor solicited Commissioner’s Baller’s support for the Mayor’s re-nomination. Commissioner Baller 
described an additional conversation with an unnamed person regarding the position of Mayor Pro Tem. 
Commissioner Baller also said he spoke on November 8, 2020 with Commissioner Hoff at length about 
the matter. He said if he had received a call from Commissioners Nickita or Sherman regarding a desire 
to be Mayor he would have listened to their reasons. He said he agreed with Mayor Pro Tem Longe’s 
reasons for re-nominating Mayor Boutros.  
 
Commissioner Host agreed with Mayor Pro Tem Longe’s and Commissioner Baller’s comments regarding 
Mayor Boutros’ candidacy. Commissioner Host cited Mayor Boutros’ respectful way of interacting with 
people as one of the main reasons that the Commissioner continues his support of Mayor Boutros for the 
position.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Longe: 
To elect Mayor Boutros to a second, consecutive term as Mayor. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Boutros 
 
  Nays,  Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
 
11-216-20  Election of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Commissioner Baller nominated Mayor Pro Tem Longe, citing her experience over the past year. He also 
commended her on her spearheading of the campaign for the Parks and Recreation bond which passed 
on November 3, 2020, and which Commissioner Baller said was one of the most successful bond votes 
in the City’s history. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller: 
To elect Mayor Pro Tem Longe to a second, consecutive term as Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
 
  Nays,  None 



 

4  November 9, 2020 

 
 
Oaths of Office and Comments by the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem  
 
The Oaths of Office were taken by the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. The Mayor Pro Tem and the Mayor 
thanked the Commission and the public for their continued support, and said they looked forward to their 
continued service in their respective roles.  
 
11-217-20  Appointment of Pierre Boutros, Mayor, to the Retirement Board 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host: 
To appoint Mayor Boutros to the Retirement Board. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
 
  Nays,  None 
 
11-218-20  Appointment of Therese Longe, Mayor Pro Tem, to the Retirement  

Board 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff: 
To appoint Mayor Pro Tem Longe to the Retirement Board. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
 
  Nays,  None 
 
11-219-20  Appointment of Pierre Boutros, Mayor, to the Retirees Health Care  

Fund Committee 
 
MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Longe: 
To appoint Mayor Boutros to the Retirees Health Care Fund Committee. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 



 

5  November 9, 2020 

    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
 
  Nays,  None 
 
11-220-20  Appointment of Stuart Sherman, Commissioner, to the Triangle District  

Corridor Improvement Authority 
 
MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Longe: 
To accept Mayor Boutros’ nomination of Commissioner Sherman to the Triangle District Corridor 
Improvement Authority. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
 
  Nays,  None 
 
11-221-20  Appointment of Rackeline Hoff, Commissioner, to the Foundation for  

Birmingham Senior Residents 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host: 
To accept Mayor Boutros’ nomination of Commissioner Hoff to the Foundation for Birmingham Senior 
Residents. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Mayor Boutros 
 
  Nays,  None 
 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
David Bloom said he was pleased Mayor Boutros was re-elected. Mr. Bloom wished the Mayor luck for 
the next year of his term. 
 
Gordon Rinschler stated that while he attends the Commission meetings he generally avoids commenting 
since he is no longer a member of the Commission. He said that the evening’s discussion compelled him 
to comment despite his general reservations about doing so. He explained that historical precedent for 
the Commission’s mayoral discussions was that Commissioners did not publicly voice concerns about a 
given mayoral nomination. He said he was disappointed to see that precedent broken during the present 
conversation. He explained that historically the vote for Mayor would be called until the affirmative votes 



 

6  November 9, 2020 

reached a majority and then the vote would be stopped. Mr. Rinschler voiced his full endorsement of 
Mayor Boutros and Mayor Pro Tem Longe. He said the three ‘experienced Commissioners should re-
evaluate some of their positions’. He said he was sorry to have to state that. 
 
Paul Reagan and Andrew Haig congratulated the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem on their re-elections.  
 
Mr. Reagan thanked the the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for their leadership during the last year, and said 
he found Mayor Boutros’ civility refreshing. 
 
Mr. Haig agreed with Mr. Bloom and Mr. Rinschler. He said had come to be very impressed with and 
pleased by the Mayor’s performance. Mr. Haig said he was also impressed by the Mayor’s ataraxy during 
the comments voiced against the Mayor’s re-nomination. Mr. Haig advised the Commissioners to avoid 
looking backwards, and implored them to each put their efforts towards finding the best and most 
innovative paths forward for the City. 
 
A resident named Samantha asked if appointments to the Design Review Board would be happening at 
the present meeting. CM Valentine stated those appointments would be made at the November 23, 2020 
Commission meeting. 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

11-222-20  Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host, seconded by 
Commissioner Baller: 

To approve the Consent Agenda. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe  
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
   
  Nays,  None  

 
A. Resolution approving the City Commission meeting minutes of October 23, 2020. 

 
B. Resolution approving the City Commission meeting minutes of October 26, 2020. 

 
C. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 

October 28, 2020, in the amount of $ 1,623,823.66. 
 

D. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
November 4, 2020, in the amount of $ 432,903.76. 

 



 

7  November 9, 2020 

E. Resolution setting a public hearing date for December 7, 2020 to consider the Final Site Plan 
and Design and Special Land Use Permit at 470 N. Old Woodward to allow for the operation of 
a new bistro, EM, at 470 N. Old Woodward. 
 

F. Resolution authorizing the expenditure of $18,333.80 to restripe all five parking structures using 
Accurate Parking Lot Services to complete the work to be paid by the Automobile Parking 
System. 
 

G. Resolution adopting the Bloomfield Township Automatic Aid Agreement. Further, to authorize 
the Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

11-223-20  City Manager Resignation  
 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe: 

To accept the resignation of City Manager Joe Valentine and appoint a subcommittee of the City 
Commission comprised of Mayor Pro Tem Longe and Commissioner Hoff to recognize Mr. Valentine 
for his years of service to the City of Birmingham.  
Commissioner Baller clarified the intent of the subcommittee would be to generate 
recommendations for how the community should recognize CM Valentine for his service. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Hoff 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
   
   Nays,  None  
 
11-224-20  Interim City Manager Appointment 
 

MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Longe, seconded by 
Commissioner Host: 

To appoint Police Chief Mark Clemence as Interim City Manager Designee to begin a transition and 
serve as Interim City Manager effective January 1, 2021 if a City Manager is not appointed by this 
date subject to finalization of an interim wage rate through the City’s labor counsel. 
 
At Commissioner Baller’s request, Mayor Boutros invited dialogue between the Commission and the 
Police Chief prior to the vote. 
 
Police Chief Clemence assured Commissioner Baller that the Police Department (PD) has sufficient 
staff even if he assumes the role of interim City Manager and with Police Commander Grewe 
currently overseeing parking matters. He noted the PD has plans to streamline some of the parking 
matters and has two other Commanders that would be doing more in the department. 
 



 

8  November 9, 2020 

In reply to Commissioner Hoff, Police Chief Clemence said he was enthusiastic about performing 
the roles of both Police Chief and Interim City Manager simultaneously if that comes to pass. He 
said he currently had the time, interest, and resources to undertake the challenge. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Hoff 
   
   Nays,  None  
 
11-225-20  Discussion with Keller Thoma 
 
CM Valentine introduced the item. 
 
Ms. Sashital of Keller Thoma presented the memo regarding City Manager Candidate Thomas Markus’s 
requested compensation and benefits. The memo can be found in the evening’s agenda packet. 
 
Commissioner Sherman said he believed that the requested $160,000 in compensation was less than 
what the City paid Mr. Markus during his previous tenure with the City. 
 
Ms. Sashital said she had not been able to confirm that independently, but that Mr. Markus had indicated 
that was the case. She said the deferred compensation had also been higher previously than the currently 
requested amount. 
 
There was Commission discussion of various potential terms. All agreed that if hired Mr. Markus should 
hire for open staff positions and should conduct the hiring process for a replacement City Manager. The 
Commissioners were split between wanting to offer Mr. Markus a two year term or a three year term.  
 
Commissioners Sherman, Nickita and Hoff proposed that a national search could occur for an Assistant 
City Manager, with the intent of training and promoting, if appropriate, the Assistant City Manager to 
City Manager at the end of Mr. Markus’ tenure in the position. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe and Commissioner Baller said that if that option were exercised, the Commission 
should have advice and consent over the hiring of the Assistant City Manager. 
 
Commissioner Baller said the cell phone and computer provided to Mr. Markus as part of the position 
should remain the City’s property, and that any severance paid should be for 12 months or the number 
of months remaining in the City Manager’s contract. 
 
There was Commissioner consensus regarding Commissioner Baller’s suggestion. 
 
Mr. Markus joined the meeting as a public participant. 
 
Mayor Boutros asked Mr. Markus if he would like to offer comment. 
 
Mr. Markus thanked the Mayor. He said: 



 

9  November 9, 2020 

● Since some of the Commissioners wanted to offer him a 24-month term and some wanted to 
offer a 36-month term, he would be willing to split the difference at 30 months.  

● The first year of his term would be busy filling various City staff positions. 
● One of his first priorities would be to hire and train an Assistant City Manager. He would hope 

that the Assistant City Manager could eventually be a qualified candidate for the National City 
Manager search.  

● That giving the Commission advice and consent over the hiring of the Assistant City Manager 
would likely violate the council-manager form of local government.  

● He would commit to soliciting the Commission’s advice, and taking it seriously, regarding the 
hiring of an Assistant City Manager. He could not commit to giving the Commission consent. It is 
specifically the City Manager’s charge to hire an Assistant City Manager. 

● He would want there to be public interviews and presentations from Assistant City Manager 
candidates so that everyone in the community would have an opportunity to weigh in on the 
process. 

● Executive searches during the Covid-19 pandemic are taking longer than usual. When those 
searches have to go into a second round, it usually adds three to four months to the usual time. 
Zoom is a difficult medium for hiring, and as a result internal candidates tend to be moving into 
executive positions. 

● If the City is set on a national search for a City Manager, which he said he could absolutely 
facilitate, he recommended bringing the finalists in for in-person interviews and presentations so 
the Commission and the community were sure about the person they were hiring.  

 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded 
by Commissioner Nickita: 

To offer Thomas Markus a two-and-a-half year term with the provisions that: 
1. Any severance be for 12 months or the number of months remaining in the City Manager’s 

contract, whichever is less; and, 
2. That the provided cell phone and computer remain the property of the City. 

 
Commissioner Host said he was only comfortable offering a two year term to Mr. Markus to serve 
as City Manager. He emphasized his appreciation of Mr. Markus’ talents and said he just could not 
go over two years.  
 
Commissioner Baller said the difference between 30 months and three years was essentially 
monetary. Since Commissioner Baller had initially been willing to pay Mr. Markus at his requested 
rate for three years even if Mr. Markus only served as City Manager for two, Commissioner Baller 
said that a compromise at two-and-a-half years would be a positive outcome for the City. He noted 
that the national search for City Manager would commence at the Commission’s discretion, 
whenever they agreed it was appropriate. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Bloom suggested Mr. Markus serve as City Manager only for two years. He said that if Mr. 
Markus were hired for a 30 month term, he could either serve in a different capacity for the final 
six months or could just have those remaining six months paid as severance.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 



 

10  November 9, 2020 

    Commissioner Hoff 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
   
   Nays,  Commissioner Host 
 
Mr. Markus thanked the Commission for their support and said he looked forward to joining the City in 
January 2021. 
 
11-226-20  City Manager Position RFP 
 
This item was tabled in light of the outcome of the previous item’s discussion. 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
11-227-20  Public Hearing – 768 N. Old Woodward – The French Lady 
 
Mayor Boutros opened the public hearing. 
 
CP Dupuis reviewed the item. 
 
Commissioners Hoff and Baller stated their support for the project.  
 
Commissioner Baller said he would encourage The French Lady to have outdoor seating either in the 
rear or the front of the establishment. 
 
Commissioner Nickita said this section of N. Old Woodward should be included in the City’s broader 
discussion about transitional zones.  
 
Commissioner Host said it was helpful to understand that this location had previously been grandfathered 
in as allowing a food and drink establishment even though the current location’s zoning does not allow 
for it without a special land use permit. 
 
Commissioner Hoff said that, per a recommendation made by one of the Planning Board members during 
a Planning Board meeting, the City should consider lengthening the time it takes for a location to lose its 
legal non-conforming use. She said this consideration was worthwhile especially in light of the challenges 
to small businesses posed by the current pandemic. She noted the Planning Board member she was 
citing recommended lengthening the time from six months to a year and said she would be in favor of 
exploring that option. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Reagan said he was not sure that transitional zoning status would be more appropriate for this area 
of N. Old Woodward than the O2 zoning status is. He said the O2’s function of providing a ‘buffer’ 
between commercial and residential uses is important, and that the Commission should carefully consider 
the potential impact on neighborhoods when broader commercial uses are considered for the O2 zone.  
 
Mr. Bloom concurred with Mr. Reagan. 
 
Mayor Boutros closed the public hearing. 
 



 

11  November 9, 2020 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Nickita, seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe: 

To approve the Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 768 
N. Old Woodward – The French Lady – to allow the operation of a food and drink establishment in 
the O2 zoning district. The motion also strongly recommended the establishment pursue outdoor 
dining options. 
 
Claude Pellerin, owner/operator of The French Lady, confirmed they have cleaned and painted the 
patio in the rear of the restaurant and that they hope to open the patio area in Spring 2021. 
 
Commissioner Nickita recommended that Ms. Pellerin consider installing outdoor seating in the 
parking space in front of the restaurant as well. He said she could work with the City to determine 
implementation options for that. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Nickita 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Host 
   
   Nays,  None 
 
11-228-20  Public Hearing – 525 N. Old Woodward – Luxe Bistro 
 
Mayor Boutros opened the public hearing. 
 
PD Ecker presented the item. 
 
Commissioners Hoff and Baller expressed concern that sometimes patrons seated in the outdoor dining 
area move the tables and seating into the pedestrian right-of-way on the sidewalk. 
 
PD Ecker said that while that sometimes happens with outdoor dining areas around the City, the 
establishments generally correct the issue as soon as they are made aware of it. She said that the 
Bongiovannis were made aware that was happening at Luxe and that she has heard no more complaints 
regarding the matter since then. 
 
The operators of Luxe said they were committed to ensuring that the sidewalks outside their 
establishments remain navigable to pedestrians. They said they have also been putting effort into 
improving relations with the residential neighbors by putting up signage warning patrons against littering, 
trespassing, and being noisy, towing vehicles of customers that park in private spaces, and keeping the 
exterior free of refuse. They also said the President of the adjacent neighborhood association has been 
given Luxe management’s direct contact information and has been encouraged to reach out to the 
management with any concerns at any time 
 
Mayor Boutros closed the public hearing. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Nickita, seconded by 
Commissioner Hoff: 



 

12  November 9, 2020 

To approve the Revised Final Site Plan and Design and Special Land Use Permit Amendment to 
allow the expansion of the existing Luxe bistro into the vacant storefront to the south. 
 
Commissioner Nickita said he valued the vitality of this area, that keeping the residential neighbors 
happy is essential, and that activating the vacant storefront to the south of Luxe will be beneficial 
to the whole area. 
 
Commissioner Host agreed with Commissioner Nickita but said the commercial aspect of the area 
cannot be permitted to negatively impact the Mill Pond or Little San Francisco residential 
neighborhoods. He said that would be a matter not only for the owners but for Birmingham Police 
and code enforcement as well. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
   
   Nays,  None 

 
11-229-20  Public Hearing – 34350 Woodward & 907-911 Haynes – Lot Combo 

 
CP Cowan stated that the applicant requested to postpone the hearing to December 7, 2020. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by 
Commissioner Sherman: 

To postpone the Public Hearing of 34350 Woodward & 907-911 Haynes – Lot Combo to December 
7, 2020. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
   
   Nays,  None 
 
11-230-20  Parking Spaces at 856 N. Old Woodward 
 
City Planner Cowan presented the item. 
 
There was Commission consensus that the most appropriate approach to this item would be for the 
owner of 856 N. Old Woodward to buy into the Parking Assessment District. It was agreed that allowing 
the six spaces in question to be counted towards The Pearl’s parking requirement would put parking 
strain on an already congested area of the City. 
 



 

13  November 9, 2020 

In reply to Commissioner Sherman, PD Ecker explained that the location had enough parking available 
if they had rented out their first floor uses to regular retail tenants. She explained that after that the 
owner rented to more high-intensive retail uses, which increased the amount of parking necessary. 
 
Commissioner Sherman said it has been the Commission’s general policy to encourage owners to 
resolve their own self-created issues, like renting to higher-intensity tenants, instead of requesting that 
the Commission do it for them. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded 
by Commissioner Baller: 

To deny the use of six parking spaces in the right-of-way adjacent to the property located at 856 N. 
Old Woodward to fulfill the parking requirements per Article 4, section 4.43 (G)(4) of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Host 
   
   Nays,  None 
 
11-231-20  Plante Moran Cresa Proposal – Birmingham Ice Arena 
 
DPS Director Wood and Robert Stempien of Plante Moran Cresa outlined the item. 
 
It was discussed that the proposal for the $5.1 million in work to the Ice Arena was presented at both 
the 2019 and 2020 Long Range Planning meetings, a number of Parks and Recreation Board meetings, 
and in the FAQ posted on the City’s website for the Parks and Recreation Bond proposal that passed on 
November 3, 2020. 
 
DPS Director Wood also noted that the proposed Ice Arena repairs were included in the Parks and 
Recreation Board’s priority list for the bond. 
 
Commissioners Hoff, Sherman and Nickita said they wanted to receive more public input on the $3.1 
million proposal to update the locker rooms and the concessions area.  
 
There was Commission consensus that the refrigeration and mechanical repairs could move forward 
immediately since they had been previously reviewed and approved, and were necessary to the 
continued functioning of the Ice Arena. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe said it would be cost-inefficient to do the refrigeration and mechanical repairs 
while holding off on the other proposed improvements.  
 
As a compromise, Mayor Pro Tem Longe and Commissioner Baller recommended that the suggested 
motion be approved with the understanding the Commission should immediately schedule public input 
sessions at the Commission level for the proposed $3.1 million in updates that are giving some of the 
Commissioners pause. 



 

14  November 9, 2020 

 
It was noted that the suggested motion only assigned Plante Moran Cresa owner-representative duties, 
and did not inherently commit to any specific repairs.  
 
There was consensus that the Architectural Review Committee should be asked to look over and 
provide feedback on all design plans for the proposed updates. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe: 

To approve the proposal from Plante & Moran Cresa, LLC in the amount not to exceed the lump 
sum fee of $145,800.00, term beginning November 10, 2020 – November 8, 2021 for the purpose 
of assisting with capital planning and operational review consulting services for the Birmingham Ice 
Arena; contingent upon receipt of proper insurance. Further, to waive the formal bidding 
requirements. Funds are available for this work in the Capital Projects - Ice Arena – Buildings 
account #401-901.001-977.0000. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Bloom said that even though he voted in favor of the Parks and Recreation Bond, he agreed 
that the proposed repairs for the Ice Arena needed more public review, especially in light of the 
fact that the Ice Arena is used quite frequently by non-Birmingham residents. He said wanted to 
know whether residents might be more inclined to spend the funds raised by the bond on updates 
that would serve the residents of Birmingham more specifically. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Boutros 
   
   Nays,  Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Nickita 
 
Commission Discussion on items from prior meeting 
None. 
 
Commission Items For Future Discussion 
A motion is required to bring up an item for future discussion on the next reasonable agenda. No 
discussion regarding these topics will occur during the present meeting. 
None. 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
A.      Birmingham Roast Letter 
 



 

15  November 9, 2020 

Jesse Dhillon, co-founder, reviewed the letter to the Commission, which can be found in the evening’s 
agenda packet. 
 

11-232-20 Outdoor Dining Season  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by 
Commissioner Host: 

To direct City Staff to put together a report on what policy changes would need to be enacted to 
accommodate Mr. Dhillon’s request, whether other businesses in the City would be interested in 
similar accommodations, and what the ramifications of doing so would be. 
 
Commissioner Nickita said the requirements for bistros with alcohol and establishments without 
alcohol are different. He encouraged the City to move as soon as possible on dealing with 
establishments that do not serve alcohol and have their outdoor dining on public property. He said 
the bistro issues should also be explored, but should be reviewed separately from the present topic. 
 
Mayor Boutros agreed with Commissioner Nickita, and said City staff would also have to clarify the 
difference between bistros on private property and bistro on public property when looking into the 
matter of bistros and outdoor seating more generally. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes,  Commissioner Baller 
    Mayor Pro-Tem Longe 
    Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Nickita 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Boutros 
   
   Nays,  None 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 
 Notice of intent – Board of Review & Birmingham Triangle District Corridor Improvement  

Authority 
B. Commissioner Comments 
 
Commissioner Hoff commended City Clerk Designee Bingham on the Clerks Office’s smooth execution of 
the November 3, 2020 election.  
 
Commissioner Host agreed. He also thanked Acting City Clerk Cheryl Arft for her commitment and for 
remaining to work with a train City Clerk Designee Bingham this year.  
 
Commissioner Host congratulated resident Patricia Andrews on recently celebrating her 99th birthday, 
and described the socially-distanced celebration that was had in Birmingham in her honor. 
 
Commissioner Host said he also had a recommendation for an additional law firm, located in Birmingham, 
that would be willing and able to put together the RFP for legal services if the City’s two current options 
do not work out. 
 



 

16  November 9, 2020 

Mayor Boutros stated that Birmingham was recently recognized as a five-star community for 
entrepreneurial growth by the annual eCities study, conducted by researchers at iLabs, University of 
Michigan-Dearborn’s Center for Innovation Research.  
 
Mayor Boutros also congratulated BSD Director Ingrid Tighe for her selection as a 2020 Crain’s Detroit 
Business Notable Veteran. 
 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 
   
 
INFORMATION ONLY 

   
XI. ADJOURN 

 
Mayor Boutros adjourned the meeting at 12:06 a.m. 
 



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

11/11/2020

11/23/2020

PAPER CHECK

100.0048TH DISTRICT COURT000855*276274

492.75KATHERINE ABELA008226*276275

25.00ROBERT ABRAHAM JR.008649*276276

448.50AETNA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH LLC007266*276277

2,460.00AMERICAN MIDWEST PAINTING INC001206*276278

980.00AMERICAN PAINTING LLC007112*276279

275.28ARAMARK003946*276281

49.00ARTECH PRINTING INC000500*276282

12.50ASCAP001466*276283

11,363.27AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS INC004027*276284

200.00BALBES CUSTOM BUILDERS INCMISC276287

119.70BATTERIES PLUS BULBS003012276288

200.00BENEICKE GROUPMISC276289

2,000.00BLOOMINGDALE HOLDINGS AND PROP LLCMISC276291

494.74BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526276293

300.00BROOKE SCHWARTZMISC276294

100.00BRUTTELL ROOFING INCMISC276295

74.15DAVID BUTTIGIEG008334*276296

6,084.81CADILLAC ASPHALT, LLC003907276297

200.00CAR TRUCKING INC000571276298

1,102.77CASS COLLISION CLAWSON008959276299

599.00CBT NUGGETS LLC008305276300

205.15CDW GOVERNMENT INC000444*276302

772.95CINTAS CORP007710*276303

100.70CINTAS CORPORATION000605276304

84.25COFFEE BREAK SERVICE, INC.004188*276305

1,530.00COFINITY004026*276306

337.25COMCAST008955*276307

728.46CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*276308

279.97COOL THREADS EMBROIDERY008512276309

170.00DAY ELECTRICMISC276312

153.00DENTEMAX, LLC006907*276313

517.17DETROIT BATTERY COMPANY LLC008559276314

12.20DOWNRIVER REFRIGERATION000190*276316

86.37DTE ENERGY000179*276318

545.93DTE ENERGY000179*276319

807.57DTE ENERGY000179*276320

189.28DTE ENERGY000179*276321

75.48DTE ENERGY000179*276322

45.23DTE ENERGY000179*276323

42,598.31DTE ENERGY000180*276324

9.85DTS FLUID POWER LLC003806276325

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

11/11/2020

11/23/2020

2,863.36EDWARD MARKMISC*276327

1,965.81EICK, KYLE BMISC*276329

543.42EJ USA, INC.000196276331

710.00ENZO WATER SERVICE009100*276333

200.00EUROCRAFT BUILDERS & REMODELERMISC276334

200.00FOUR SEASONS GARDEN CENTERMISC276336

200.00FOUR SEASONS LANDSCAPINGMISC276337

200.00GARDNER SIGNS INCMISC276338

500.00GIACALONE BUILDING LLCMISC276339

1,566.20GRAINGER008293276340

191.14HALT FIRE INC001447276341

450.00HENRY FORD HEALTH SYSTEM008613276342

500.00HOME DEPOT USA INCMISC276343

955.00HSUNCHEN CHANGMISC276344

141.83JOSHUA HUSTED001307*276345

1,315.00HYDROCORP000948276346

647.75IBS OF SE MICHIGAN000342276347

200.00JOHN HENNIG CARPENTRY INCMISC276348

1,000.00KATSARELAS, MAXWELLMISC*276349

500.00KELLY BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT CO LLCMISC276350

2,048.98KNOWBE4, INC008450276351

37.03KROGER COMPANY000362*276352

200.00KURTIS KITCHEN & BATH CENTERSMISC276353

1,000.00LA MARCO HOMES LLCMISC276354

5,000.00LEE, IANMISC276355

1,000.00LEVINE & SONS INCMISC276356

100.00LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGEMENT INC006817276357

49.29LIGHTING SUPPLY COMPANY000287*276359

19,400.00LOGICALIS INC008158*276360

200.00LSD OPERATING COMISC276361

500.00MARC DUTTON IRRIGATION INC002648276363

24,024.76MCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC000888276364

528.39MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL000972276365

1,262.50MCMI000369276366

73.00MERGE MOBILE, INC.008793276367

700.00MICHAEL MORRISON009200*276368

160.89MICHIGAN CAT001660276369

38,793.00MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE001387*276370

68.83MIDWEST GLASS FABRICATORS, INC005024*276371

200.00MR ROOF HOLDING CO LLCMISC276373

453,570.83OAKLAND COUNTY000477*276376

75.00OAKLAND COUNTY MEDICAL CONTROL AUTHMISC*276377

543.00OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370*276378



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

11/11/2020

11/23/2020

355.85OFFICE DEPOT INC000481*276379

300.00PALMER, RICHARD FMISC276380

634.16PARKINSON, MATTHEWMISC*276381

163.49PEPSI COLA001753*276382

100.00PERRY, JOSHUAMISC276384

118.52PK SAFETY SUPPLY008028276385

300.00POWER HOME SOLARMISC276386

103,578.00PRECISION CONCRETE CUTTING INC008866276387

90.00QMI GROUP INC002852276389

770.24RESCUE RESPONSE GEAR INC006130276390

1,200.00RICHARD TRUDO009144*276393

1,450.00RON TURLEY ASSOCIATES, INC.005996*276394

162.95RUTH ROWLAND002911*276395

100.00SARAH TANKIEWICZMISC276397

2,500.00SCHWARTZ, BROOKE MMISC276398

100.00SHAMOUN PROPERTIES LLCMISC276400

55.15SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY007142276401

400.00MICHAEL SHUKWIT009143*276402

200.00SIGNARAMA/TROYMISC276403

344.30SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC008073*276404

100.00SMOLYANOV HOME IMPROVMENTMISC276405

331.25SPECTRUM PRINTERS INC009184276406

50.00STATE OF MICHIGAN005079276407

350.00STEPHEN SHUKWIT009201276408

426.55STRYKER SALES CORPORATION004544276409

508.39SUBURBAN BUICK GMC INC000256276411

1,594.00SUCCESS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.005863276412

33,487.33SYMETRA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY004355*276414

2,010.00TECHSEVEN COMPANY008748276415

800.00TEMPLETON BUILDING COMPANYMISC276416

164.43TESS BANKS009237*276417

100.00THE COMMUNITY HOUSEMISC276418

500.00THOMAS JOSEPHMISC276419

141.42TIRE WHOLESALERS CO INC000275276420

200.00USZTAN LLCMISC276423

231.99VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*276424

11,500.00VANDYKE HORN PUBLIC RELATIONS LLC009177*276425

76.02VERIZON WIRELESS000158*276426

734.15VERIZON WIRELESS000158*276427

153.37VERIZON WIRELESS000158*276430

1,500.00WALLSIDE INCMISC276432

68.00WATERFORD REGIONAL FIRE DEPT.004497*276433

161.98WEINGARTZ SUPPLY000299276434



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

11/11/2020

11/23/2020

250.42XEROX CORPORATION008391*276435

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $809,677.56

EFT TRANSFER

462.85AMAZON.COM, INC008732" "

90.00BRYCER LLCMISC" "

267.75COMFORT INN & SUITES005074" "

500.00EFFECTV009163" "

198.42FACEBOOK HEADQUARTERS008730" "

(329.28)FLOORMAT.COM009240" "

168.19GMEI UTILITYMISC" "

81.68GODADDYMISC" "

438.00INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL005741" "

1,095.00PRIORITY DISPATCH007658" "

177.09QR-CODE GENERATORMISC" "

SUBTOTAL EFT TRANSFER $3,149.70

ACH TRANSACTION

76.97ABEL ELECTRONICS INC002284*3053

55,628.67ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*3054

1,580.00AMERICAN PRINTING SERVICES INC003243*3056

21.29BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*3058

115,542.18BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES008840*3059

594.82CANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE INC.0078753060

53.72DETROIT CHEMICAL & PAPER SUPPLY007359*3061

213.14DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*3062

65.50DOUGLASS SAFETY SYSTEMS LLC001035*3063

9,762.75DUNCAN PARKING TECH INC001077*3064

3,500.00EQUATURE000995*3065

123.58EZELL SUPPLY CORPORATION000207*3066

24,418.38G2 CONSULTING GROUP LLC007807*3067

737.19GRAINGER000243*3068

1,500.00HART PAVEMENT STRIPING CORP003938*3069

7,500.00IN-HOUSE VALET INC007465*3070

21,187.38J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002613071

1,028.15JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*3072

3,177.90KELLER THOMA000891*3073

1,626.39LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*3074

190,672.39OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT008843*3076

456.40PENCHURA, LLC006027*3077

728.00QUALITY COACH COLLISION001062*3078

89.00ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*3079

147,894.25SOCWA001097*3080

1,151.90SOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO. INC0057873081



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

11/11/2020

11/23/2020

73.00TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.0002733082

758.36TOTAL ARMORED CAR SERVICE, INC.002037*3083

433.78TROY AUTO GLASS CO INC0002783084

1,192.50VIGILANTE SECURITY INC000969*3086

320.00WM. CROOK FIRE PROTECTION CO.0020883087

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $592,107.59

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $1,404,934.85



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

11/18/2020

11/23/2020

PAPER CHECK

83.53A & L SYSTEMS004627276436

3,900.00AARON'S EXCAVATING INC005358276437

196.20APPLIED IMAGING007033276439

6,293.51APPLIED IMAGING007033*276439

144.54ARAMARK003946*276440

325.03AT&T006759*276441

321.63AT&T006759*276442

265.00MATTHEW J. BARTALINO003839*276444

6.00BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526276445

560.90CARRIER & GABLE INC000595276447

1,239.72CARTEGRAPH009083*276448

5,254.09CDW GOVERNMENT INC000444*276449

207.30CERTIFIED LABORATORIES008540276450

3,500.00CGS, INC009137276451

383.25HANNAH CHUNG007575*276452

138.45CINTAS CORPORATION000605276453

205.74CINTAS CORPORATION000605*276453

73.44COL'S FAMILY RESTAURANT009167276456

658.00CONTRACTORS CLOTHING CO002668276457

3,436.45CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC001367276458

46.80CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC001367*276458

954.51CUMMINS BRIDGEWAY LLC003923276459

2,983.50DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP006969276460

44.82DTE ENERGY000179*276461

48.68DTE ENERGY000179*276462

1,440.00EGANIX, INC.007538*276463

761.30EJ USA, INC.000196276464

465.27FAST SIGNS001223276465

2,015.89GRAINGER008293276468

29.62HALT FIRE INC001447276470

81.54THOMAS I. HUGHES003824*276471

888.87ICMA001204276472

1,371.71J.T. EXPRESS, LTD.000344276473

78.00JAY'S SEPTIC TANK SERVICE003823*276474

12,671.83JOHN R. SPRING & TIRE CENTER INC.000347276475

2,000.00K & D PHILLIPS CONTRACTING008954276476

774.00MACALLISTER RENTALS007910276478

3,245.00MALWAREBYTES008248276479

7,770.56OAKLAND COUNTY000477*276482

78.00PTS COMMUNICATIONS006625*276484

425.00PUBLIC AGENCY TRAINING COUNCIL005660276485

1,516.95R & R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR INC004137*276486

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

11/18/2020

11/23/2020

64.83 RAIL DISTRICT PROPERTIES IIIMISC*276487

18.42 SAM'S CLUB/SYNCHRONY BANK002806*276488

5,600.00 SEAWAY PAINTING LLC002051276489

150.69 SHRED-IT USA004202*276490

5,203.62 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC008073276491

133.44 TIRE WHOLESALERS CO INC000275276494

30.95 UPTOWN MARKET OF BIRMINGHAM008941276495

63.27 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*276496

500.00 VARI SALES CORPORATION009223*276497

80.10 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*276498

1,086.56 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*276499

14,339.35 WEST SHORE FIRE INC001490*276500

720.99 WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP INC009128276501

8,479.10 WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP INC009128*276501

736.35 XEROX CORPORATION008391*276503

2.90 ZOOM VIDEO COMMUNICATIONS INC009185276504

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $104,095.20

ACH TRANSACTION

66,382.84 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*3090

3,000.00 ANCHOR BAY POWDER COAT, LLC0082463092

331.50 APOLLO FIRE APPRATUS REPAIR INC0086673093

49.39 BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*3095

115.50 BLUE WATER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS INC000542*3096

256.50 DETROIT CHEMICAL & PAPER SUPPLY007359*3097

113.96 EZELL SUPPLY CORPORATION000207*3098

429.50 FIRE SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN LLC001230*3099

1,150.50 FLEIS AND VANDENBRINK ENG. INC007314*3100

156.50 HAYES PRECISION INC001672*3101

14,688.88 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002613102

619.39 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*3103

2,901.80 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*3104

51,889.00 NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS0018643106

268.00 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*3107

1,183.00 QUALITY COACH COLLISION001062*3108

71.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*3109

211.57 TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.0002733110

220.50 VIGILANTE SECURITY INC000969*3111

22,779.33 WESTWOOD TRUST007374*3112

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $166,818.66



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

11/18/2020

11/23/2020

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $270,913.86



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Department of Public Services 

DATE: November 12, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Carrie Laird, Parks and Recreation Manager 

CC: Lauren Wood, Director of Public Services 

SUBJECT: Barnum Park Electrical Additions 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Department of Public Services (DPS) has been working with the Community for Barnum Park 
regarding Barnum Park for additional electrical outlets and lighting improvements to occur this 
fiscal year.  The original budget for this work was in the approved 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Budget.  
Electrical engineers were hired to prepare plans and specifications for this project early this year, 
with the projected completion of the work this summer. 

BACKGROUND: 
The City hired Hans & Associates / EAM electrical engineers to prepare an electrical plan for 
additions to the Barnum Park electrical system.  The scope of work includes the addition of 
flagpole lighting, art sculpture lighting, new bollard fixtures and electrical outlet additions.  Outlets 
will be located in the shade structure area and behind the baseball field.  New bollards will light 
the limestone path that connects the promenade to the arch.  All new lighting will be LED. 
Additionally, an alternate bid was requested to retrofit all existing bollards along the promenade 
to LED fixtures as well. 

Bids were opened on October 9, 2020.  The results of the bid opening are as follows: 

Company Total without Alternate Total with Alternate
MHM Construction $66,446.96 $75,286.96 

Rauhorn Electric $73,607.00 $79,437.00
J. Ranck Electric $87,518.00 $93,806.00
Allied Building $102,500.00 $109,900.00 

City staff performed interviews and reference checks for the two (2) lowest bidders and is 
recommending MHM Construction for award of this project.  MHM is able to provide all 
requested items to complete this project and will be able to start upon award, weather 
permitting.  As the result of COVID-19, the project design was delayed, and the bidding 
process subsequently was delayed as well. 

5D



 

2 
 

If weather is favorable, MHM is able to work during late November into December; otherwise, 
this will be a spring project.  The lead time for the bollard fixtures is 6-8 weeks, but much of 
the work can be done in advance of the fixtures. 
 
LED lights have an extremely long lifespan relative to every other lighting technology. New 
LEDs have a much longer life cycle, lasting 50,000 to 100,000 hours or more, they are easier 
and less costly to maintain.  Studies have shown that energy savings could be as much as 
30% to 60%, and the typical ROI is 12 months or less.  All existing bulbs at Barnum are high-
pressure sodium.  DPS currently replaces a bulb in the existing bollards approximately 12 
times a year, costing about $1100 in product and labor in addition to the energy costs.   
 
We are also looking into grant opportunities and rebate offers through DTE for changing over 
to LED lights, this project is expected to qualify.  The cost of materials and labor has risen 
over the last several months and continues to increase and our hired electrical engineers 
anticipate a significant cost increase in 2021.  We recommend awarding this bid now to lock 
in the pricing, and request a budget amendment in order to accomplish the project in its 
entirety. 
 
Staff has been in contact with the Community for Barnum Park regarding the details and 
scope of this project, and has received their full support for this project from the initial 
planning phase.  In addition, the Parks and Recreation Board approved this project at the 
November 10, 2020 meeting and is recommending this project be considered for approval. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed this agreement and approved with signature. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
This project was included in the 2019-2020 budget for $30,000, in the Capital Projects Fund-
and will require a budget amendment for the additional funding in addition to being re-
budgeted in 2020-2021. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The Department of Public Services plans to use social media and the city website to 
communicate the timing of this project. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Department of Public Services recommends awarding the Barnum Park Electrical 
Additions and Improvements project to MHM Construction for the total purchase price of 
$75,286.96 to include the alternate bid of retrofitting all existing bollard lights to LED.  MHM 
is the lowest qualified bidder and able to complete this project. 
 
This improvement project will add the following lighting features to the park: Bollards that 
will illuminate the walkway between the Arch and the promenade, flagpole lighting, sculpture 
lighting, and new outlets.  In addition, the existing bollards that light the promenade will be 
retrofit to LED lights.  The new LED lights will match the warm glow of the taller fixtures 
throughout the park, specified at 3000K, which is the warmest tone, an amber glow. 



 

3 
 

 
MHM Construction offers a 1-year workmanship warranty, artwork lighting fixtures and bollard 
fixtures are under product warranty for 5 years, and the flagpole light fixtures for 10 years.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A- Agreement and Certificate of Insurance 
Attachment B - Bidder’s Agreement 
Attachment C – Cost Proposal 
Email proposal for boring 
Attachment D – Iran Sanctions Act Vendor Certification Form 
Barnum Park Electrical Additions Site Plan 
 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To award the Barnum Park Electrical Additions project to MHM Construction, in the amount 
not to exceed $75,286.96, to be funded from account 401-751.001-981.0100 and further; to 
approve the appropriation and amendment to the fiscal year 2020-2021 General Fund and 
Capital Project Fund budgets as follows: 
 
General Fund 
Revenues: 

101-000.000-400.0000 Draw from Fund Balance  $45,290 
Total Revenue         $45,290 
 
Expenditures: 

101-999.000-999.4010  Transfer to Capital Projects Fund $45,290 
Total Expenditures        $45,290 
 
Capital Projects Fund 
Revenues: 

401-000.000-400.0000 Draw from Fund Balance  $30,000 
401-751.001-699.0101 Transfer from General Fund    45,290 

Total Revenue         $75,290 
 
Expenditures: 

101-751.001-981.0100  Public Improvements – Parks  $75,290 
Total Expenditures        $75,290 
 
In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City 
of Birmingham upon receipt of the required insurances. 





















































4
8

1
6

2
0

0
2

4
8

0
2

4
0

2
0

2
0

1

3
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

0
1
0

2
0

4
0

1
"
 
=

 
2
0
'

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

S
C

A
L
E

S

1
 
/
 
8
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
4
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
2
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

3
 
/
 
4
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
1
 
/
 
2
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
8
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

Key Plan

Project No Drawing No

Project Title

Issue Date Issued For

As Noted

Designed

Drawn

Checked

Approved

Scale

Signature

Date

Project Administrator

Project Arch/Engineer

1955BP

W.H.

W.H.

JLW

RRT

RRT

W.H.

Drawing Title

Seal

03-19-20

Hans & Associates

Owner Review

Consultants

EAM Engineers, Inc.
Electrical and Mechanical Consulting Engineers

400 S. Old Woodward, Suite 100, Birmingham, MI 48009
Phone 248.528.2670  Fax 248.528.1642

www.eam-engineers.com  ■ eam@eam-engineers.com

REFERENCE DRAWING:

04-30-20 Final Review

Barnum Park

Electrical Additions

The City of Birmingham

Birmingham, Michigan

05-25-20 Permits

Architecture Engineering & Construction

52537 Wessex Way, Shelby Twp, MI 48316

Tel: (248) 882-0505

SITE PLAN

ELECTRICAL

EAST

1" = 30'-0"

SITE PLAN - ELECTRICAL - EAST (MODIFIED)

Electrical Plan East 14.1
ES-1

NOT TO SCALE

CANOPY RECEPTACLE DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

INGRADE SPLICE BOX HANDHOLE DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

BOLLARD TYPE "OB" DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

FLAG POLE LIGHTS TYPE "OC" DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

STRUCTURE LIGHTING TYPE "OA"

“ ”

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 4 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3 D/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. PLUS (1) 1" PVC CONDUIT SPARE TO PASS THROUGH AND STUBBED OUT TO LOCATION SHOWN. PROVIDE #12 THHN COPPER FOR PULL STRING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#12, #8 GRD, 1/2"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#12, #8 GRD, 1/2"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPARE 1" CONDUIT TO BE STUBBED INTO HANDHOLE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 5 24 HOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D (DUSK TO DAWN) 2-#8  CKT. 3 D/C (DUSK TO CLOSE) 2-#8 CKT. 5 PAVILION POWER 2-#12 ALL IN 1" PVC CONDUIT PLUS WITH #8 GROUND. (1) 1" PVC CONDUIT SPARE TO PASS THROUGH AND STUBB INTO HAND HOLE. PROVIDE #12 THHN COPPER FOR PULL STRING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8, 2-#10,  #8 GRD, 1" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#10, #10 GRD 1/2" PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#10, #10 GRD 1/2" PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8, 2-#10, #8 GRD, 1" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8, 2-#10, #8 GRD, 1" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8,#8 GRD -3/4" PVC  CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN WEST SITE PLAN EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONTROL PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION BOOSTER PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN-GRADE  SPLICE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAG POLE W/ (3) IN-GRADE FLOODS CKT. 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP,GFI OUTLET AT CANOPY (TYPICAL OF 4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INGRADE SPLICE BOX HANDHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
565-20001

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHTING FIXTURE NOTES: EXTERIOR FLOOD LIGHT, LIGMAN UMI-50461 SERIES. EXTERIOR BOLLARD, KIM LIGHTING #BNB1LED, TO MATCH EXISTING. EXTERIOR IN-GRADE UPLIGHT FLOODS FOR FLAG, VISTA 1181 SERIES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA OF NEW WORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA OF NEW WORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: PROVIDE "MISSDIG" SERVICE TO LOCATE UNDERGROUND CIRCUITS; SPLICE BRANCH WRING TO EXTEND TO NEW FIXTURES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. SAWCUT EXISTING CONCRETE PAD TO EXTEND UNDERGROUND SAWCUT EXISTING CONCRETE PAD TO EXTEND UNDERGROUND CONDUIT TO STEEL PAVILION POLE. RESTORE PAD AND GROUNDS TO ORIGINAL CONDITIONS. 2. FEED OUTLET FROM CIRCUIT TO REMAIN ACTIVE 24/7. FEED OUTLET FROM CIRCUIT TO REMAIN ACTIVE 24/7. 3. ROUTE NEW CONDUITS TO EXISTING CONTROL PANEL.ROUTE NEW CONDUITS TO EXISTING CONTROL PANEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN-GRADE SPLICE BOX LEGRAND XB814C520 SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: MOUNT IN-GRADE FLOODLIGHTS AT 120 DEGREES APART AND 4'-0"±FROM FLAG POLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCOPE OF WORK: 1. PROVIDE NEW PATH LIGHT BOLLARDS (TYPE OB) PROVIDE NEW PATH LIGHT BOLLARDS (TYPE OB) a. PROVIDE NEW IN-GRADE SPLICE HANDHOLE FOR CIRCUITS #2 AND #3. PROVIDE NEW IN-GRADE SPLICE HANDHOLE FOR CIRCUITS #2 AND #3. b. EXTEND NEW BRANCH WIRING TO ALTERNATING FIXTURES TYPE OB. TYPICAL FOR 8. EXTEND NEW BRANCH WIRING TO ALTERNATING FIXTURES TYPE OB. TYPICAL FOR 8. c. EXTEND CIRCUIT #3 TO THREE NEW STRUCTURE LIGHTING FIXTURES TYPE OA. EXTEND CIRCUIT #3 TO THREE NEW STRUCTURE LIGHTING FIXTURES TYPE OA. 2. PROVIDE NEW ABOVE GRADE STRUCTURE LIGHTING (TYPE OA) TYPICAL FOR 3. PROVIDE NEW ABOVE GRADE STRUCTURE LIGHTING (TYPE OA) TYPICAL FOR 3. 3. PROVIDE NEW FLAGPOLE LIGHTING (TYPE OC) PROVIDE NEW FLAGPOLE LIGHTING (TYPE OC) a. PROVIDE NEW IN-GRADE SPLICE HANDHOLE FOR CIRCUITS #2. PROVIDE NEW IN-GRADE SPLICE HANDHOLE FOR CIRCUITS #2. b. EXTEND NEW BRANCH WIRING TO FIXTURES TYPE OC. TYPICAL FOR 3. EXTEND NEW BRANCH WIRING TO FIXTURES TYPE OC. TYPICAL FOR 3. 4. PROVIDE NEW GFI, WEATHERPROOF OUTLETS FOR CANOPY POWER AND SCOREKEEPER POWER PROVIDE NEW GFI, WEATHERPROOF OUTLETS FOR CANOPY POWER AND SCOREKEEPER POWER a. PROVIDE NEW UNDERGROUND FEEDERS (TWO CIRCUITS) FROM EXISTING CONTROL PANEL TO PROVIDE NEW UNDERGROUND FEEDERS (TWO CIRCUITS) FROM EXISTING CONTROL PANEL TO FOUR NEW OUTLETS, ONE EACH AT CENTER SUPPORT OF EACH CANOPY. HAVING TWO OUTLETS PER CIRCUIT. b. PROVIDE TWO NEW 20 AMP 1 POLE BREAKERS IN EXISTING CONTROL PANEL. PROVIDE TWO NEW 20 AMP 1 POLE BREAKERS IN EXISTING CONTROL PANEL. c. PROVIDE NEW UNDERGROUND FEEDER FROM ONE CIRCUIT TO SCOREKEEPER OUTLET. PROVIDE NEW UNDERGROUND FEEDER FROM ONE CIRCUIT TO SCOREKEEPER OUTLET. 5. REPAIR ALL DISTURBED LANDSCAPE AND GROUNDS TO “AS NEW” CONDITIONS AS DIRECTED BY OWNER.REPAIR ALL DISTURBED LANDSCAPE AND GROUNDS TO “AS NEW” CONDITIONS AS DIRECTED BY OWNER.AS NEW” CONDITIONS AS DIRECTED BY OWNER. CONDITIONS AS DIRECTED BY OWNER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY NOTES: SAWCUT CONCRETE SLAB ALONG THE EXISTING CONTROL JOINT, MINIMUM 4" WIDE FOR CONDUIT ROUTING. CORE UNDER CONCRETE SLAB AS AN OPTIONAL METHOD. REPLACE WITH NEW CONCRETE AFTER THE COMPLETION OF NEW WORK. APPLY BONDING AGENT TO THE OPPOSITE SIDE OF CONTROL JOINT PRIOR TO POURING NEW CONCRETE. TYPICAL FOR 4 PAVILIONS. REMOVE AND REPLACE GRAVEL WALKWAY TO ACCOMMODATE CONDUIT ROUTING THROUGHOUT THE AREA AFFECTED BY NEW WORK.



4
8

1
6

2
0

0
2

4
8

0
2

4
0

2
0

2
0

1

3
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

0
1
0

2
0

4
0

1
"
 
=

 
2
0
'

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

S
C

A
L
E

S

1
 
/
 
8
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
4
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
2
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

3
 
/
 
4
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
1
 
/
 
2
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
8
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

Key Plan

Project No Drawing No

Project Title

Issue Date Issued For

As Noted

Designed

Drawn

Checked

Approved

Scale

Signature

Date

Project Administrator

Project Arch/Engineer

1955BP

W.H.

W.H.

JLW

RRT

RRT

W.H.

Drawing Title

Seal

03-19-20

Hans & Associates

Owner Review

Consultants

EAM Engineers, Inc.
Electrical and Mechanical Consulting Engineers

400 S. Old Woodward, Suite 100, Birmingham, MI 48009
Phone 248.528.2670  Fax 248.528.1642

www.eam-engineers.com  ■ eam@eam-engineers.com

REFERENCE DRAWING:

04-30-20 Final Review

Barnum Park

Electrical Additions

The City of Birmingham

Birmingham, Michigan

05-25-20 Permits

Architecture Engineering & Construction

52537 Wessex Way, Shelby Twp, MI 48316

Tel: (248) 882-0505

1" = 30'-0"

SITE PLAN - ELECTRICAL - WEST (MODIFIED)

Electrical Plan West 14.2

ES-2

SITE PLAN

ELECTRICAL

WEST

NOT TO SCALE

ABOVE GRADE OUTLET-SCOREKEEPER

NOT TO SCALE

EXISTING CONTROL PANEL (DOOR REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 2 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKT. 1 D/D

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. PLUS (1) 1" PVC CONDUIT SPARE TO PASS THROUGH AND STUBBED OUT TO LOCATION SHOWN. PROVIDE #12 THHN COPPER FOR PULL STRING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPARE 1" CONDUIT TO BE STUBBED OUT TO THIS LOCATION. PROVIDE 12" SQUARE x 1/4" THICK STEEL PLATE TO BE BURIED AT END OF CONDUIT.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4" PVC CONDUIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#8, #8 GRD, 3/4"PVC CONDUIT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN WEST SITE PLAN EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONTROL PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABOVE GRADE OUTLET  BOX FOR SCOREKEEPER POWER (SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
565-20001

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW GFCI OUTLET  IN ARLINTON  GARD-N-POST  ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA OF NEW WORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: VERIFY LOCATION WITH OWNER PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD 20A-1P CIRCUIT BREAKERS FOR NEW CANOPY OUTLETS AND SCOREKEEPER POWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CIRCUIT #1: 240V-1  DUSK TO DAWN 240V-1 DUSK TO DAWN (E) CIRCUIT #2: 240V-1  DUSK TO DAWN 240V-1 DUSK TO DAWN (E) CIRCUIT #3: 240V-1  DUSK TO CLOSE 240V-1 DUSK TO CLOSE (E) CIRCUIT #4: 240V-1  DUSK TO DAWN 240V-1 DUSK TO DAWN NEW CIRCUIT #5: 120V-1  HOT 120V-1 HOT NEW CIRCUIT #6: 120V-1  HOT120V-1 HOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY NOTES: ROUTE CONDUIT UNDER EXISTING CONCRETE WALK. OPTIONAL: SAWCUT EXISTING PORTION OF CONCRETE WALK TO ACCOMMODATE NEW CONDUIT AND REPLACE AS REQUIRED.



4
8

1
6

2
0

0
2

4
8

0
2

4
0

2
0

2
0

1

3
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

0
1
0

2
0

4
0

1
"
 
=

 
2
0
'

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

S
C

A
L
E

S

1
 
/
 
8
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
4
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
2
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

3
 
/
 
4
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
1
 
/
 
2
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

1
 
/
 
8
"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

Key Plan

Project No Drawing No

Project Title

Issue Date Issued For

As Noted

Designed

Drawn

Checked

Approved

Scale

Signature

Date

Project Administrator

Project Arch/Engineer

1955BP

W.H.

W.H.

JLW

RRT

RRT

W.H.

Drawing Title

Seal

03-19-20

Hans & Associates

Owner Review

Consultants

EAM Engineers, Inc.
Electrical and Mechanical Consulting Engineers

400 S. Old Woodward, Suite 100, Birmingham, MI 48009
Phone 248.528.2670  Fax 248.528.1642

www.eam-engineers.com  ■ eam@eam-engineers.com

REFERENCE DRAWING:

04-30-20 Final Review

Barnum Park

Electrical Additions

The City of Birmingham

Birmingham, Michigan

05-25-20 Permits

Architecture Engineering & Construction

52537 Wessex Way, Shelby Twp, MI 48316

Tel: (248) 882-0505

ES-3

ELECTRICAL

SPECIFICATIONS

AND SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
565-20001

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL TRADES NOTES SCOPE OF WORK INCLUDE THE COMPLETE REMOVAL OF ALL EXISTING LIGHTS, ASSOCIATED  WIRING AND CONDUIT.  INCLUDE ALL  ELECTRICAL WORK REQUIRED FOR A COMPLETE NEW LIGHTING INSTALLATION AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS.  ORDINANCES, PERMITS AND FEES ALL MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION SHALL CONFORM TO ALL LOCAL, STATE AND NATIONAL CODES.  SECURE AND PAY FOR ALL PERMITS, INSPECTIONS AND TESTS REQUIRED BY ALL LOCAL, STATE AND NATIONAL DEPARTMENTS. STANDARDS ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE NEW AND SHALL CONFORM IN ALL RESPECTS TO THE LATEST APPROVED STANDARDS OF THE IEEE, OSHA, ANSI, NEMA, U.L., FORD AND J.I.C. DAMAGE TO OTHER WORK REPAIR AND PAY FOR ALL DAMAGE DONE TO THE EXISTING OR NEW WORK BY ELECTRICAL TRADES WORKMEN. CUTTING AND PATCHING ALL CUTTING AND PATCHING DONE AND PAID FOR BY THE ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR. EXAMINATION OF SITE CONTRACTOR MUST EXAMINE EXISTING SITE AND BE THOROUGHLY AWARE OF CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH HE MUST WORK.  ADVISE ENGINEER OF ANY CONTINGENCIES BEFORE SUBMITTING BIDS. CLEANING CLEAN UP ALL ELECTRICAL WORK AT COMPLETION OF JOB. SHOP DRAWINGS SUBMIT SEVEN (7) COPIES OF SHOP DRAWINGS ON ALL EQUIPMENT FOR APPROVAL. APPROVAL. RACEWAYS ALL EXPOSED CONDUIT SHALL BE RIGID GALVANIZED STEEL; ALL UNDERGROUND CONDUIT TO BE PVC.  OUTLET BOXES ALL OUTLET BOXES SHALL BE CAST "FS" OR "FD" TYPE, APPLETON OR EQUAL. SUPPORTS ALL STEEL SUPPORTS AND BRACES SHALL BE PROVIDED WHERE REQUIRED FOR THE PROPER INSTALLATION OF ALL LIGHTING FIXTURES, RACEWAYS AND OTHER ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT.  EXPANSION SCREW ANCHORS OF THE PROPER SIZE SHALL BE USED TO ATTACH EQUIPMENT OR CONDUIT SUPPORTS TO MATERIALS, SUCH AS CONCRETE OR MASONRY.  CONDUIT SUPPORTS SHALL BE SUITABLE PIPE HANGERS, BRACKETS OR STRAPS. WIRES AND CABLES ALL BRANCH CIRCUIT WIRES SHALL BE NEW AND SHALL BE COPPER.  MINIMUM WIRE SIZE SHALL BE #12, TYPE "THWN/THHN", 600 VOLT INSULATION. LIGHT FIXTURES, LAMPS AND BALLASTS PROVIDE, INSTALL AND WIRE ALL LIGHT FIXTURES AS SHOWN.  FIXTURES SHALL BE FURNISHED WITH LAMPS.  H.I.D. BALLASTS SHALL BE FUSED, 120 VOLT HPF, CBM AND ETL RATED.  INSTALL LIGHTS ON UNISTRUT CHANNEL AS REQUIRED. RECEPTACLES ALL DUPLEX CONVENIENCE OUTLETS SHALL BE 20 AMPERE, 120 VOLT, "GROUNDING" TYPE SPECIFICATION GRADE, HUBBELL OR EQUAL. PROVIDE GFCI STYLE FOR ALL OUTDOOR APPLICATIONS. FUSES FUSES SHALL BE DUAL ELEMENT TYPE BUSSMANN "FUSETRONS" OR EQUAL. GROUNDING ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE GROUNDED ACCORDING TO GOVERNING CODE REQUIREMENTS. PROVIDE A GREEN GROUNDING CONDUCTOR IN EACH CONDUIT. TESTING TEST ALL CIRCUITS AND BALANCE LOADS AS SOON AS CONDUCTORS ARE INSTALLED. EXISTING ELECTRICAL WORK THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DISCONNECT ALL EXISTING ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, WHETHER SHOWN OR NOT, IN THE AREA OF NEW CONSTRUCTION AS REQUIRED FOR REMOVAL.  THIS CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO RELOCATE ANY ELECTRICAL WORK, WHETHER SHOWN OR NOT, THAT INTERFERES WITH NEW WORK. EXISTING DEVICES ALL EXISTING PANELS, WIRING DEVICES, TELEPHONE OUTLETS, ETC., SHALL REMAIN IN THEIR EXISTING LOCATIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. REMOVAL ALL MATERIALS THAT ARE REMOVED, LIGHTING FIXTURES, WIRING DEVICES, CONDUIT, WIRE, ETC., SHALL BE TURNED OVER TO THE OWNER OR REMOVED FROM THE PREMISES, AS DIRECTED BY THE OWNER'S FIELD REPRESENTATIVE. GUARANTEE ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH THE OWNER A ONE-YEAR GUARANTEE FOR ALL MATERIAL AND LABOR FURNISHED BY HIM. BID ALTERNATE SCOPE OF WORK EXISTING BOLLARDS ARE 100 WATT, ED17, CLEAR HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM LAMPS. PROVIDE RETROFIT KIT TO REPLACE WITH LED. #BNB1-LED-KIT/36L(3000K)UV



  DATE:  November 17, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee 

SUBJECT: 2021 Art Birmingham –  May 8 – 9, 2021 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Birmingham Bloomfield Art Center submitted a Special Event application to hold the 2021 
Art Birmingham event in Shain Park and on surrounding on May 8-9, 2021.  Set-up for the 
event is scheduled for Friday, May 7, 2021 from 5 pm to 10 pm. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Police Department has reviewed the proposed event details prior to submission for street 
closures and the need for safety personnel and has approved the details.  DPS, Planning, 
Building, Police, Fire, and Engineering have indicated their approval.  SP+ Parking has been 
notified of the event for planning purposes.  

The following events occur in May in Birmingham, and do not pose a conflict for this event: 
Farmers Market Sundays Lot 6 
Celebrate Birmingham  Parade & Party May 16  Shain Park, Downtown 
Summer concerts Wednesdays Shain Park 

Art Birmingham has indicated that all programs will be evaluated to make sure 
they meet state guidelines for the pandemic at that time.  

LEGAL REVIEW: 
No review required. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact. 

SUMMARY 
The City Commission is being asked to approve the 2021 Art Birmingham special event to be 
held May 8-9, 2021 with set-up to begin Friday, May 7th between 5 pm and 10 pm.  Tear-
down will begin at the conclusion of the event on Sunday, May 9th at approximately 5 pm to 
9 pm. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Special Event application, with COVID-19 PLAN AND TRAFFIC FLOW/GATE PLAN
2. The Notification letter with map of event area distributed to residents/businesses within

300 feet of the event area on November 6, 2020.  Notification addresses are on file in
the Clerk’s Office.

3. Hold Harmless Agreements signed by The Guild of Artists and Artisans, and Birmingham
Bloomfield Art Center (Certificate of Insurance due on or before April 23. 2021.

4. Department Approval page with comments and estimated costs.

MEMORANDUM 
Clerk's Office 

5E



SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve a request from the Birmingham Bloomfield Art Center to hold Art Birmingham 
in Shain Park and on surrounding streets on May 8-9, 2021 contingent upon compliance 
with all permit and insurance requirements, as well as payment of all fees and, further 
pursuant to any minor modifications or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary 
by administrative staff leading up to or at the time of the event due to public health and 
safety measures.  





























 
 

SPECIAL EVENT REQUEST 
NOTIFICATION LETTER 

 
DATE:  November 6, 2020 
 
TO:    Principal Shopping District Members, Downtown Birmingham Residents,  

Interested Parties and Property Owners       
 

The Birmingham City Code requires that we receive approval from the Birmingham City Commission 
to hold the following special event.  The code further requires that we notify any property owners or 
business owners that may be affected by the special event of the date and time that the city 
commission will consider our request so that an opportunity exists for comments prior to this 
approval. 
 
EVENT INFORMATION 
 

NAME OF EVENT:   40th Annual Art Birmingham  
LOCATION:    In and around Shain Park (layout enclosed) 
DATES/TIMES OF EVENT:  Saturday, May 8, 2021, 10am – 6pm and  
      Sunday, May 9, 2021, 10am – 5pm 
 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF EVENT/ACTIVITY:  A fine art fair featuring the handmade artwork of 
approximately 160 jury-selected artists.  Now in its 39th year, the fair is a key annual fundraiser for 
the highly respected Birmingham Bloomfield Art Center (BBAC) whose "Art for All" vision delivers arts 
education and exhibitions to the community it serves.  If you experience any issues during the 
event, please contact the Birmingham Police Department at 248.530.1889. 
 

DATES/TIMES OF SET UP:  Friday, May 7, 2021, meters bagged at 3pm with street 
closings at 5pm and move-in completed by 9pm 

DATES/TIMES OF TEAR DOWN:   Sunday, May 9, 2021, from 5pm to 9pm 
  
DATE/TIME OF CITY COMMISSION MEETING:   Monday, November 23, 2020 at 7:30PM 
The city commission meeting will be held virtually via Zoom. For complete instructions on how to 
access the meeting please visit: 
https://www.bhamgov.org/government/commission/meeting_agendas_and_minutes.php.  
A complete copy of the application to hold this special event is available for your review at the city 
clerk’s office (248.530.1880).  To receive updates on special events held in the city log on to 
www.bhamgov.org/enotify. 
 
EVENT ORGANIZER:   Birmingham Bloomfield Art Center 
ADDRESS:    1516 S. Cranbrook, Birmingham, MI 48009 
PHONE:                              248.644.0866 
For Questions on day of Event, Contact:    Karen Delhey (734)646-8431 
Attachment: 
Art Birmingham layout/map 

tel:248.530.1889
https://www.bhamgov.org/government/commission/meeting_agendas_and_minutes.php


  
 
 
 
 
NOTE TO STAFF:  Please submit approval by 11/9/2020  DATE OF EVENT:  May 8-9, 2021 
  

DEPARTMENT APPROVED COMMENTS 

PERMITS 
REQUIRED 

(Must be obtained directly 
from individual 
departments) 

ESTIMATED 
COSTS 

(Must be paid two 
weeks prior to the 
event. License will 

not be issued if 
unpaid.) 

ACTUAL 
COSTS 

(Event will be 
invoiced by the 
Clerk’s office 

after the event) 
 

PLANNING 
101-000.000-634.0005 

248.530.1855 
 

TBC No Cost No Comment     

BUILDING 
101-000.000.634.0005 

248.530.1850 
MJM 

1 Tents in excess of 200 square feet and 
canopies over 400 square feet require 
permits. 
2. All tents/canopies must be flame 
resistant with certification. 
3. No smoking inside any tent or canopy. 
Signs to be posted. 
4. Tents or canopies must be secured 
with sandbags, weights, or water ballast. 
5. Tents and canopies must be located 
per the approved layout. 

 $166.11  

FIRE 
101-000.000-634.0004 

248.530.1900 
JMC 

BS & A Application Template 
 
 
 
 

1. No Smoking in any tents or 
canopy.  Signs to be posted. 

2. All tents and Canopies must be 
flame resistant with certificate on 
site. 

3. No open flame or devices 
emitting flame, fire or heat in any 

 $45  

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
 

                    EVENT NAME: Art Birmingham 
  
LICENSE NUMBER #20-00011883  COMMISSION HEARING DATE: 11/23/2020 



tents.  Cooking devices shall not 
be permitted within 20 feet of the 
tents. 

4. Tents and Canopies must be 
properly anchored for the 
weather conditions, no stakes 
allowed. 

5. Clear Fire Department access of 
12 foot aisles must be 
maintained, no tents, canopies or 
other obstructions in the access 
aisle unless approved by the Fire 
Marshal. 

6. Pre-event site inspection 
required. 

7. A prescheduled inspection is 
required for food vendors 
through the Bldg. dept. prior to 
opening. 

8. All food vendors are required to 
have an approved 5lbs. multi-
purpose (ABC) fire extinguisher 
on site and accessible. 

9. Cords, hoses, etc. shall be 
matted to prevent trip hazards. 

10. Exits must be clearly marked in 
tents/structures with an occupant 
load over 50 people. 

11. Paramedics will respond from the 
fire station as needed. Dial 911 
for fire/rescue/medical 
emergencies. 

12. A permit is required for Fire 
hydrant usage. 

13. Do Not obstruct fire hydrants or 
fire sprinkler connections on 
buildings. 

14. Provide protective barriers 
between hot surfaces and the 
public. 

15. All cooking hood systems that 
capture grease laden vapors 



must have an approved 
suppression system and a K fire 
extinguisher in addition to the 
ABC Extinguisher. 

16. Suppression systems shall be
inspected, tested, and properly
tagged prior to the event.  All
Sprinkler heads shall be of the
155 degree Quick Response type
unless serving an area of high
heat and approved by the Fire
Marshal.  The suppression system
shall have a continuous water
supply as well as a secondary
back up supply.  Activation of the
suppression system will shut
down the ride and cause
illumination of the exits.

POLICE 
101-000.000.634.0003 

248.530.1870
SG Personnel and Barricades $1500 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
101-000.000-634.0002 

248.530.1642 
Carrie Laird 

Trash boxes, set-up, barricade 
placement, dumpsters.  $2,300 

ENGINEERING 
101-000.000.634.0002 

248.530.1839
A.F. 

Maintain 5’ clearance on all sidewalks for 
pedestrian access route.   No pavement 
damage allowed for tents or other 
structures. 

None $0 $0 

SP+ PARKING 

INSURANCE 
248.530.1807 

Need to submit CoI, Hold Harmless 
Agreement None $0 $0 



CLERK 
101-000.000-614.0000 

248.530.1803 

Notification letters mailed by applicant 
on Nov. 6th. Notification addresses on 
file in the Clerk’s Office.  Evidence of 
required insurance must be on file with 
the Clerk’s Office no later than 
4/23/2021. 

Applications for 
vendors license must 
be submitted no later 
than 4/23/2021. 

$165 pd 

TOTAL 
DEPOSIT 

REQUIRED 

$4,011.11 

ACTUAL 
COST 

Rev. 11/17/20 
h:\shared\special events\- general information\approval page.doc 

FOR CLERK’S OFFICE USE 

Deposit paid ___________ 

Actual Cost   

Due/Refund  



  DATE:  November 18, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee 

SUBJECT:     2020 Menorah Display in Shain Park – December 10-19, 2020 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Chabad Jewish Center of Bloomfield Hills submitted a Special Event application to display 
the Shain Park Menorah from December 10-19, 2020, with a special gathering beginning at 
4:30 pm on Sunday, December 13, 2020.  Set-up for the display is scheduled for mid-day on 
December 6th, with tear-down scheduled for early afternoon on December 27th. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Police Department has reviewed the proposed event details prior to submission for street 
closures and the need for safety personnel and has approved the details.  DPS, Planning, 
Building, Police, Fire, and Engineering have indicated their approval.  SP+ Parking has been 
notified of the event for planning purposes.  

Rabbi Dubov has indicated that the Menorah lighting event will be held virtually on December 
13th, with only limited in-person participation.  

The following events occur in December in Birmingham, and do not pose a conflict for this 
event: 

Winter Markt/Santa House/Carriage Rides 12/4-12/6 Shain Park 
Santa House/Carriage Rides December Weekends Shain Park 
Nativity Display 11/26-12/31  Shain Park 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
No review required. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact. 

SUMMARY 
The City Commission is being asked to approve the 2010 Shain Park Menorah special event 
to be displayed 12/10 – 12/19/20, with a special gathering beginning at 4:30 pm on 
12/13/20.  Set-up is scheduled to begin mid-morning on 12/6. Tear-down will begin early 
afternoon on 12/27. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Special Event application
2. Notification letter with map of event area distributed to residents/businesses within

300 feet of the event area on November 4, 2020.  Notification addresses are on file in
the Clerk’s Office.

3. Hold Harmless Agreement and the Certificate of Insurance due to the Clerk’s Office on
or before 11/26/2020.

4. Department Approval page with comments and estimated costs

MEMORANDUM 
Clerk's Office 

5F



SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve a request from the Chabad Jewish Center of Bloomfield Hills to display the Shain 
Park Menorah on December 10-19, 2020, with a special gathering to be held on December 
13, 2020 beginning at 4:30 pm in Shain Park, contingent upon compliance with all permit 
and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, further pursuant to any minor 
modifications or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff 
leading up to or at the time of the event due to public health and safety measures. 





















  
 
 
 
 
NOTE TO STAFF:  Please submit approval by 11/9/2020  DATE OF EVENT:  12/6 – 12/27/2020 
  

DEPARTMENT APPROVED COMMENTS 

PERMITS 
REQUIRED 

(Must be obtained directly 
from individual 
departments) 

ESTIMATED 
COSTS 

(Must be paid two 
weeks prior to the 
event. License will 

not be issued if 
unpaid.) 

ACTUAL 
COSTS 

(Event will be 
invoiced by the 
Clerk’s office 

after the event) 
 

PLANNING 
101-000.000-634.0005 

248.530.1855 
 

TBC No Cost No Comment     

BUILDING 
101-000.000.634.0005 

248.530.1850 
MJM No Building Department involvement  $0  

FIRE 
101-000.000-634.0004 

248.530.1900 
JMC   $0  

POLICE 
101-000.000.634.0003 

248.530.1870 
     

PUBLIC SERVICES 
101-000.000-634.0002 

248.530.1642 
Carrie Laird 

A representative from the DPS 
department requests to meet with the 
representative for the proper installation 
of the Menorah Display. 

 $0  

ENGINEERING 
101-000.000.634.0002 

248.530.1839 
A.F. No Comments None $0 $0 

SP+ PARKING      

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
 

                    EVENT NAME: Shain Park Menorah 
  
LICENSE NUMBER #20-00011890  COMMISSION HEARING DATE: 11/23/2020 



INSURANCE 
248.530.1807  Need to submit CoI, Hold Harmless 

Agreement None $0 $0 

CLERK 
101-000.000-614.0000 

248.530.1803 
 

Notification letters mailed by applicant 
on 11/4/2020. Notification addresses on 
file in the Clerk’s Office.  Evidence of 
required insurance must be on file with 
the Clerk’s Office no later than 
11/20/2020. 
 

Applications for 
vendors license must 
be submitted no later 
than N/A. 

$165 pd 
 

 
 
 

    

TOTAL 
DEPOSIT 

REQUIRED 
 
 

ACTUAL 
COST 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Rev. 11/18/20 
h:\shared\special events\- general information\approval page.doc 

FOR CLERK’S OFFICE USE 
 
Deposit paid ___________ 
 
Actual Cost     
 
Due/Refund    
 



  DATE:  November 3, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Cheryl Arft, Acting City Clerk 

SUBJECT:     2021 Memorial Day Service – May 31, 2021 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Birmingham Memorial Day Committee submitted a Special Event application to hold the 
2021 Memorial Day Service in Shain Park on May 31, 2021 at 10:00-11:00 am.  Set-up for 
the event is scheduled for May 31st at 9 am. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Police Department has reviewed the proposed event details prior to submission for street 
closures and the need for safety personnel and has approved the details.  DPS, Planning, 
Building, Police, Fire, and Engineering have indicated their approval.  SP+ Parking has been 
notified of the event for planning purposes.  

The following events occur in May in Birmingham, and do not pose a conflict for this event: 
Farmers Market Celebrate Birmingham Sundays Lot 6 
Birmingham Hometown Parade & party May 16  Shain Park & city streets 
Art Birmingham May 8, 9 Shain Park & city streets 
Village Fair (application not submitted) May 26-30 Shain Park & city street 

The committee has indicated that the service will comply with all restrictions dictated by the 
state and as directed by the City Manager, as was done in 2020, via live streaming.   

LEGAL REVIEW: 
No review required. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact. 

SUMMARY 
The City Commission is being asked to approve the 2021 Memorial Day Service to be held 
May 31, 2021 from 10:00-11:00 am, with set-up to begin at 9:00 am.  Tear-down will begin 
at the conclusion of the event on that day.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Special Event application
2. Notification letter with map of event area distributed to residents/businesses within

300 feet of the event area on November 3, 2020.  Notification addresses are on file in
the Clerk’s Office.

3. Department Approval page with comments and estimated costs

MEMORANDUM 
Clerk's Office 

5G



SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve a request from the Birmingham Memorial Day Committee to hold the Memorial 
Day Service in Shain Park on May 31, 2021 from 10:00 – 11:00 am, contingent upon 
compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, 
further pursuant to any minor modifications or event cancellation that may be deemed 
necessary by administrative staff leading up to or at the time of the event due to public 
health and safety measures.  















Birmingham Memorial Day Committee 
 

 
 
 
Contact:  Bruce Miller       November 4, 2020 
Telephone:  248.258.9007 
E-mail:  spartan70@sbcglobal.net 
 
 

 
 
Birmingham Memorial Day Committee 2021 Covid Plan 
 
As we did in 2020, the Memorial Day service will comply with all restrictions dictated by the 
state government and as directed by the City Manager.  In 2020, the service was live streamed on 
Facebook and the participants limited to ten people.  We can do this again if need be. 

 
 

 
 
 

mailto:spartan70@sbcglobal.net


 
 
 
 
The Birmingham City Code requires that we receive approval from the Birmingham City Commission to hold 
the following special event.  The code further requires that we notify any property owners or business 
owners that may be affected by the special event of the date and time that the City Commission will consider 
our request so that an opportunity exists for comments prior to this approval. 
 
NAME OF EVENT: Memorial Day Ceremony 
LOCATION:  Shain Park 
DATES/TIMES: Monday, May 31, 2021 
                                  10:00 AM 
 
DATE/TIME OF CITY COMMISSION MEETING: Monday, November 23, 7:30PM 
VIRTUAL MEETING:  Meeting ID: 655 079 760 
The city commission meets in room 205 of the Municipal Building at 151 Martin.  A complete copy of the application to 
hold this special event is available for your review at the City Clerk’s Office (248/530.1880). 
 
EVENT ORGANIZER: Birmingham Memorial Day Committee 
                                    Event day contact:  248-258-9007                                          
TO MANAGERS OF BUILDINGS CONTAINING MORE THAN ONE UNIT:  PLEASE POST THIS 
NOTICE AT THE MAIN ENTRANCE TO YOUR BUILDING. 

 

 
 
 
 
The Birmingham City Code requires that we receive approval from the Birmingham City Commission to hold 
the following special event.  The code further requires that we notify any property owners or business 
owners that may be affected by the special event of the date and time that the City Commission will consider 
our request so that an opportunity exists for comments prior to this approval. 
 
NAME OF EVENT: Memorial Day Ceremony 
LOCATION:  Shain Park 
DATES/TIMES: Monday, May 31, 2021 
                                  10:00 AM 
 
DATE/TIME OF CITY COMMISSION MEETING: Monday, November 23, 7:30PM 
VIRTUAL MEETING:  Meeting ID: 655 079 760 
The city commission meets in room 205 of the Municipal Building at 151 Martin.  A complete copy of the application to 
hold this special event is available for your review at the City Clerk’s Office (248/530.1880). 
 
EVENT ORGANIZER: Birmingham Memorial Day Committee 
                                    Event day contact:  248-258-9007 
TO MANAGERS OF BUILDINGS CONTAINING MORE THAN ONE UNIT:  PLEASE POST THIS 
NOTICE AT THE MAIN ENTRANCE TO YOUR BUILDING. 

 

SPECIAL EVENT NOTIFICATION 
TO ALL PROPERTY/BUSINESS OWNERS 

SPECIAL EVENT NOTIFICATION 
TO ALL PROPERTY/BUSINESS OWNERS 

SPECIAL EVENT NOTIFICATION 
TO ALL PROPERTY/BUSINESS OWNERS 







  
 
 
 
 
NOTE TO STAFF:  Please submit approval by 11/9/2020  DATE OF EVENT:  MAY 31, 2021 
  

DEPARTMENT APPROVED COMMENTS 

PERMITS 
REQUIRED 

(Must be obtained directly 
from individual 
departments) 

ESTIMATED 
COSTS 

(Must be paid two 
weeks prior to the 
event. License will 

not be issued if 
unpaid.) 

ACTUAL 
COSTS 

(Event will be 
invoiced by the 
Clerk’s office 

after the event) 
 

PLANNING 
101-000.000-634.0005 

248.530.1855 
 

TBC No Cost No Comment     

BUILDING 
101-000.000.634.0005 

248.530.1850 
MJM No building department involvement.  $0  

FIRE 
101-000.000-634.0004 

248.530.1900 
JMC   $0  

POLICE 
101-000.000.634.0003 

248.530.1870 
SG On duty personnel to provide extra 

patrol and attend event.  $0 $0 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
101-000.000-634.0002 

248.530.1642 

Carrie Laird 
11/3/2020 

City Event.  Audio Equipment, Podium 
and Chairs will be provided.  $0  

ENGINEERING 
101-000.000.634.0002 

248.530.1839 
A.F. No Engineering Department Involvement None $0 $0 

SP+ PARKING      

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
 

                    EVENT NAME: MEMORIAL DAY SERVICE 
  
LICENSE NUMBER #20-00011887  COMMISSION HEARING DATE: 11/23/2020 



INSURANCE 
248.530.1807      

CLERK 
101-000.000-614.0000 

248.530.1803 
 

Notification letters mailed on 11/3/2020. 
Notification addresses on file in the 
Clerk’s Office.  Evidence of required 
insurance must be on file with the Clerk’s 
Office no later than CITY EVENT 
 

Applications for 
vendors license must 
be submitted no later 
than N/A 

CITY EVENT 
 

 
 
 

    

TOTAL 
DEPOSIT 

REQUIRED 
 

$0 

ACTUAL 
COST 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Rev. 11/18/20 
h:\shared\special events\- general information\approval page.doc 

FOR CLERK’S OFFICE USE 
 
Deposit paid ___________ 
 
Actual Cost     
 
Due/Refund    
 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Dept. 

DATE: November 18, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: James J. Surhigh, Consulting City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Coolidge Highway and Maple Road 
Traffic Signal Replacement 
Cost Sharing Agreement 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Road Commission for Oakland County has proposed the replacement of the traffic 
signal at Coolidge Highway and Maple Road.  Based on the jurisdictions of these two 
roads, the City is responsible for about 25% of the cost of this improvement.  The Road 
Commission is asking the City to commit to contributing to this cost at this time. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Road Commission for Oakland Co. has legal jurisdiction for Maple Road, east of 
Coolidge Highway. The cities of Birmingham and Troy share jurisdiction of Maple Road, 
west of Coolidge Highway, and for Coolidge Highway, north of Maple Road.  The City of 
Troy has legal jurisdiction of Coolidge Highway, south of Maple Road.   

The Road Commission for Oakland County received a request to install audible push 
buttons at the intersection of Maple Road and Coolidge Highway.  The existing signal was 
originally constructed in 1992, and had some equipment updates in 2000.  Due to the age 
of the signal, and in order to bring the pedestrian facilities at this location up to the current 
ADA standards, the entire signal must be replaced, along with associated sidewalk ramps 
and landings. 

The Road Commission has a long history of prioritizing safety improvements, and the 
design of this project is in a preliminary stage.  They have not decided whether a mast-
arm or box-span design is appropriate at this location as of this writing, but the preliminary 
estimated cost provided should account for either case.  They indicated that the 
Birmingham would have an opportunity to participate in the field review by RCOC before 
the design is finalized.  They notified both Birmingham and Troy about the cost 
parameters, and the initial cost estimate is $300,000.  Staff from both cities indicated that 
they would endorse the project.   

A photograph of the current traffic signals is attached to this report. 

A plan view of the design is attached for your reference. 

5H



2 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the agreement, and they have no concerns with 
the language as presented. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
As stated in the agreement, the total cost of the project is estimated at $300,000.  The 
City of Birmingham is being asked to pay 25% of that cost, or $75,000.  As previously 
stated, this work is not planned until the Summer of 2021 and the City will not be billed 
until July 1, 2021 or later.  With this in mind, funds for this work will be included in the 
City’s next fiscal year budget (2021/2022). 

SUMMARY 
The Road Commission for Oakland County has proposed to replace the traffic signal at 
the intersection of Coolidge Highway and Maple Road.  The work is being justified as a 
safety improvement.  The design in progress, and the contract has not been awarded. 
Birmingham will have the opportunity to review the design prior to finalizing. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Cost sharing agreement
• Photo of existing condition, looking west.
• Preliminary plan of traffic signal replacement, as prepared by the Road Commission for

Oakland County.

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve the cost sharing agreement with the Road Commission for Oakland County, 
agreeing to pay the City of Birmingham’s share of the cost to replace the traffic signal at 
the intersection of Coolidge Highway and Maple Road, at a cost not to exceed $75,000, 
to be charged to account number 202-303.001-971.0100.  Also, to authorize the Mayor 
to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 

 
Type of Work: Traffic Signal Modernization and Maintenance 
 
Location:  Coolidge Highway and Maple Road                           Signal No: 125 
   Date Effective: 
 
Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby agree to 
participate in the cost of installation, removal, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following division of 
costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of the Board of County Road 
Commissioners of the County of Oakland.) Invoices for costs are to be billed monthly by the Road Commission for Oakland County (“RCOC”).  
 

DIVISION OF COSTS 
 
 AGENCY MODERNIZATION MAINTENANCE 
 Percent Estimated Cost Percent 
  

RCOC        25 %          $     75,000.00         25 % 
 

City of Birmingham      25 %         $     75,000.00         25 % 
 
City of Troy       50 %         $   150,000.00         50 % 

   
                                                                         Total   100  %  $   300,000.00                100 % 
 
It is further agreed that the RCOC will be the agency invoiced for energy billings and/or communications billings (“BILLINGS”).  The RCOC will pay 
the invoices for the BILLINGS and subsequently invoice the cities of BIRMINGHAM and TROY seeking reimbursement for payment of the 
BILLINGS pursuant to the division of costs stated above. The RCOC’s payment of the BILLINGS shall be included as maintenance costs on the RCOC 
invoice to the cities of BIRMINGHAM and TROY.   
 
It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be the RCOC.  All 
under-signed are the agencies responsible for the costs related to installation and maintenance pursuant to the division of costs stated above, and the 
RCOC will invoice the cities of BIRMINGHAM and TROY for the installation and maintenance costs pursuant to the division of costs stated above.   
 
The cities of BIRMINGHAM and TROY shall pay all RCOC invoices within 30 days of the date of the invoice. 
 
Each party to this agreement will remain responsible for any and all claims arising out of its own acts and/or omissions during the performance of the 
agreement, as provided by this agreement or by law. In addition, this is not intended to increase or decrease either party’s liability for or immunity from 
tort claims. This agreement is also not intended to nor will it be interpreted as giving either party a right of indemnification, either by contract or by 
law, for claims arising out of the performance of this agreement. 
 
In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the RCOC and by virtue 
of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the RCOC, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is 
undertaking the RCOC’s duty to maintain the said traffic control device, further agrees to provide insurance coverage protecting the RCOC, and further 
agrees to provide a Certificate of Insurance acceptable to the RCOC upon the agency’s execution of this agreement.   
 
This agreement is terminable on thirty days written notice by any party. The cities of BIRMINGHAM and TROY shall pay any outstanding invoices 
upon written notice of the termination, and the final invoice shall be paid immediately upon receipt.   
 

 
APPROVED:                                                                    APPROVED:    APPROVED: 
 
ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY          CITY OF BIRMINGHAM   CITY OF TROY 
 
Date____________________                                         Date____________________  Date____________________ 
 
 
By__________________________                                 By_________________________  By_________________________ 
  Danielle Deneau, P.E. 
DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY                                 ___________________________  ___________________________ 
Title of Authorized Official                                                Title of Authorized Official  Title of Authorized Official 
 

*Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 



11/18/2020 3037 W Maple Rd - Google Maps

https://www.google.com/maps/@42.5474138,-83.1856329,3a,49.6y,273.68h,93.99t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1sOpDAEBopGzAUvENwiVrB0g!2e0!7i16384… 1/1

Image capture: Aug 2019 © 2020 Google

Street View

Troy, Michigan

 Google

3037 W Maple Rd

https://www.google.com/streetview
https://www.google.com/streetview






1 

MEMORANDUM 

IT Department 

DATE: 11/23/2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Eric Brunk, IT Consultant

SUBJECT: Email Backup Solution 

INTRODUCTION: 
The IT department has been looking to add an email backup for Foia management and 
offsite storage for data retention. 

BACKGROUND: 
   Our Google Email provider only holds email for 18 months.  Recommended Email Data 
retention for foia is 3 years. We also have to hold onto email accounts of users that 
have left the city that may have foia data for that amount of time which adds to our 
yearly email system cost as we cannot re-use that license for their replacement.  
   In addition, to enable access to email accounts for foia requests the IT department 
must purchase a short term license to have administrative access to the data in email 
accounts and must manually review every email account requested in the foia for the 
data requested.   Adding a backup solution would allow us to keep the necessary data 
for 3 years, allow us to re-use email licenses of users that have left the city and allow 
the IT department easier and more automated access to email accounts and data 
requested via foia.   
   The IT department has researched backup providers to get a quote for the addition of 
email backup and offsite cloud storage to our environment and has gathered quotes 
from US Signal, Druva and Rubrik. 
The quote for the Rubrick solution is $170,881.58 
The quote for the Druva solution is $29,937.50 
The quote for the US Signal solution is $30,306.00 billed monthly @ $2,525.60 

  The quote from Rubrick is outside of the budget limits the IT department set for this 
project and has been set aside.    
  The IT department then compared the quotes from US Signal and Druva and has 
decided that the US Signal solution is the route that we would like to pursue.  
Additionally the US Signal quote while slightly higher than Druva on paper will actually 
have a smaller startup cost and a lower overall cost.    
  Druva charges per user account for email and connection as well as a pre purchase of 
data block backed up so the price quoted is the minimum startup price and will increase 
as the number of user accounts, connections and number of data blocks pre purchased 
per year increase. 
  US Signal charges per the amount of actual data backed up not per user account or 
pre purchased data block. Their quote was for budgetary purposes based on the 

5I



2 

maximum amount of data backed up projected for the first year (as was the Druva 
quote) and was quoted as if that amount of data existed day one (as if we pre 
purchased the data blocks for the year to match the Druva quote).  In the US Signal 
scenario we would be charged monthly for the actual amount of data currently being 
backed up that month which would give us a smaller startup cost (currently 12TB of 
data) and a small monthly increase in cost up to the quoted budgetary price for 80TB.  

LEGAL REVIEW: 
  The City Attorney has reviewed the online services contract and finds it acceptable for 
the size and the scope of the services requested.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
  The email backup solution was included in the 2020-2021 budget. 

SUMMARY 
  In summary the IT department would like purchase email backup services and online 
storage from US Signal at a monthly cost of $2,525.60 to be purchased with funds from 
the Computer Maintenance account# 636-228.000-933.0600 

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
  Authorize the IT department to purchase the email backup solution and online backup 
storage from US Signal for a monthly cost of $2525.60.  Using funds from the IT 
account # 636-228.000-933.0600 



Date: 11/16/2020

Customer: City of Birmingham

Account Rep: Cary Schmidt

Architect: Tim McManus

Order for Service #

Cloud Backup for Veeam Market Term Order Type

Component GDRSMIUK MTM New Quantity Per Unit MRC
Cloud Backup Veeam Storage (GB) * 80000 $0.03 $2,400.00

Insider Protection (GB) - 7 Day Retention Period - $0.03 $0.00

Total Monthly Recurring Charges: $2,400.00

Backup-as-a-Service Market Term Order Type

Component 76THMI00 MTM New Quantity Per Unit MRC
BaaS Usage Charge (GB) * 660 $0.16 $105.60

Backup Management Fee (gSuite Endpoints - gMail, gDocs) * 2 $10.00 $20.00

Total Monthly Recurring Charges: $125.60

Cost Summary
Total Monthly Recurring Charges $2,525.60

Total One-time Installation Charges $0.00
*Components marked with an asterik are designated usage-based. Presented charges herein are considered estimates as the true usage is unknown. Actual monthly charges will be billed based on true usage 
in arrears, as defined in the Agreement.                                                        

For Remote Monitoring and Management and Network Services, total charges are sometimes composed of itemized component MRCs that may not be represented herein, but shall be presented on the 
invoice. Total charges shall remain the same as quoted unless changes to the Service are made.

Additional Terms:

Upon execution, this OFS shall be incorporated into the terms and conditions of the governing service agreement(s), executed between the 
parties. Services may be subject to credit approval.

Signatures

Customer approves and accepts this Order for Service subject to the terms and conditions of the governing service agreement between the 
companies. Any changes to this order may result in additional non-recurring charges once a due date has been assigned and communicated.

Customer Printed Name:

Customer Signed Name:

Date:



 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 1 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

US SIGNAL CLOUD MASTER AGREEMENT 
 

Effective Date:                                         (the "Effective Date")  
Customer (Legal Name): City of Birmingham 

  
Contact Information:  

Name: Eric Brunk 
Title: IT Manager 

Phone Number: 248-530-1885 
Fax Number:       

Email Address: ebrunk@bhamgov.org 
Mobile Number:       

  
Legal Notices: Attn: Eric Brunk 

 Physical Address: 151 Martin Street   
 City, State, Zip:  Birmingham, MI 48012 
  

Billing Email Address:       
Designated Agent:       

____________________________________________________ 
The purpose of this Cloud Master Agreement, including all Service Schedules and applicable Ordering Documents as 
defined below, (collectively the "Agreement") is to provide a framework within which Customer may from time to time 
purchase cloud and related services from US Signal Company, L.L.C. and its subsidiaries (“US Signal”), a Michigan limited 

liability company with offices at 201 Ionia Avenue SW, Grand Rapids, MI 49503.  
 

ARTICLE 1 
SERVICES, SERVICE SCHEDULES AND ORDERING DOCUMENTS 

 
Section 1.1 Services. 
 
The following types of service are available under this Agreement: 
 
a. The cloud and related services (“Cloud Service(s)”) available under this Agreement and additional terms and conditions 

governing the services are more fully described in the Cloud Service Schedule found at  
https://ussignal.com/legal/cloud-services-schedule.   
   

b. The managed service(s) ("Managed Service(s)") available under this Agreement and any additional terms and 
conditions governing such Managed Services are fully described in the Managed Service Schedule and found at 
https://ussignal.com/legal/managed-services-schedule.   
 

c. One-time professional support services (“Support Service(s)”) available under this Agreement and any additional terms 
and conditions governing such Support Services are described in the Support Service Schedule found at 
https://ussignal.com/legal/support-services-schedule.   
 

d. Excluding any Cloud, Managed or Support Services described under this Agreement, Customer may request more 
complex project based professional services ("Professional Services") described in separately executed statements of 
work (each a “SOW").   

 
The Cloud, Managed and Support Services Schedules may be referred to individually as “Service Schedule” or collectively 
as “Service Schedules”.  Each service is referred individually as a “Service" and herein collectively as the "Services". 
 
Section 1.2 Service Schedule(s). 
 
US Signal may from time to time make changes to the Service Schedules in order to add new or improved Services, 
substitute Services for improved performance or simply discontinue a Service (collectively “Product Updates”).  Customer 
shall periodically check the links for such Product Updates.  

https://ussignal.com/legal/cloud-services-schedule
https://ussignal.com/legal/managed-services-schedule
https://ussignal.com/legal/support-services-schedule


 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 2 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

 
Section 1.3 Ordering Procedures.   
 
Customer’s use of each Service is governed by this Agreement and the terms of the applicable OFS, MS Request, SS 
Request, SOW or SOW Change Order (“Ordering Document(s)”) according to the following terms: 
 
a. For Cloud Services: Customer may at any time request for US Signal to provide Cloud Services by submitting to US 

Signal an Order for Service (“OFS”) in a form provided by US Signal and in accordance with the procedures set forth in 
the Cloud Service Schedule. 

 
b. For Managed Services:  Customer may from time to time request new or changes to its Managed Services by submitting 

to US Signal either an OFS or Managed Service Request (“MS Request”) in a form provided by US Signal in 
accordance with the procedures set forth in the Managed Service Schedule.  

 
c. For Support Services: Customer may from time to time request new Support Services by submitting to US Signal a 

Support Service Request (“SS Request”) in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Support Service Schedule.  
 
d. For Professional Services:  The parties shall execute a SOW that will describe the professional services to be performed 

by US Signal, applicable pricing and other appropriate terms and conditions. Any subsequent changes to the SOW shall 
be agreed to in writing by both parties through a change order (“SOW Change Order”). 

 
e. Customer may purchase block hours of time for either Professional Services or Support Services at a reduced rate 

(“Block Hours”) via an OFS. 
 
Section 1.4 Order of Precedence. 
 
Each Service Schedule and Ordering Document shall be incorporated into the Agreement. In the event of any conflict 
between this Agreement and the terms of any of the Service Schedules and applicable Ordering Document(s), precedence 
will be given in the following order:  
 
a. For Cloud Service: (i) the OFS but solely with respect to the Services covered by that OFS; (ii) the Cloud Service 

Schedule, but solely with respect to the Service covered by that that Cloud Service Schedule; and (iii) this Agreement.  
 

b. For a Managed Service: (i) the MS Request or OFS but solely with respect to the Services covered by that MS Request 
or OFS; (ii) the Managed Service Schedule but solely with respect to the Service covered by that Managed Service 
Schedule; and (iii) this Agreement. 

 
c. For Support Services: (i) the SS Request but solely with respect to the Service covered by that SS Request; (ii) the 

Support Service Schedule but solely with respect to the Service covered by the Schedule; (iii) the OFS for Block Hours, 
if any; and (iv) the Agreement.  

 
d. For Professional Services: (i) the SOW Change Order but solely with respect to the Service covered by that SOW 

Change Order; (ii) the SOW but solely with respect to the Service covered by that certain SOW; (iii) the OFS for Block 
Hours, if any, and (iv) the Agreement.   

 
ARTICLE 2 

TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

Section 2.1 Agreement Term. 
 
This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue until the later of: 1) the last OFS expires or is 
terminated; or 2) a period ending twelve (12) months from the last SS Request, SOW and/or MS Request expires, unless 
this Agreement is sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of Section 2.3 below (“Agreement Term”). 
 
Section 2.2 Service Term. 
 
An individual Service, with a  term identified in the OFS, shall commence on its first day of availability and continue for the 
period of time specified on its OFS, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of Section 2.3 below (a 
“Service’s Initial Term” or “SIT”).  Thereafter, the SIT shall continue in effect on a month-to-month basis at the then current 
month-to-month rates (the “Service’s Renewal Term”) unless Customer or US Signal provides the other party with written 

notice of its intention not to renew at least thirty (30) days before expiration of the SIT.  Either party may terminate the 



 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 3 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

Service during the Service’s Renewal Term upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice.  The SIT and Service’s Renewal Term 
are sometimes individually and collectively referred to as the “Service Term”.   
 
Section 2.3 Early Termination. 
 
a. For flat rated services: If any Service is terminated by either party prior to the expiration of its SIT, then Customer agrees 

to pay US Signal an early termination charge equal to: (a) one hundred percent (100%) of all monthly recurring charges 
for each terminated Service committed to through the remainder of its SIT for all unexpired months of service; (b) any 
non-recurring fees US Signal experiences from other suppliers in accordance with canceling Customer’s service; and (c) 
any outstanding invoices still owed.  Such payment shall be due within thirty (30) days of service termination. 

 
b. For usage based services:  If any Service remains unutilized for a period of one (1) month, whereby Customer’s usage 

is zero, US Signal shall consider the Service terminated and Customer agrees to pay US Signal an early termination 
charge equal to: (a) fifty (50%) percent of its peak utilization multiplied by the corresponding rate element(s) through the 
remainder of the term; (b)  any non-recurring fees US Signal experiences from other suppliers in accordance with 
canceling Customer’s service; and (c) any outstanding invoices still owed.  Such payment shall be due within thirty (30) 
days of service termination. 

 
Section 2.4 Termination by US Signal. 
 
a. US Signal shall have the right to terminate any Service for cause immediately and without notice if: (a) Customer 

attempts a denial of service attack against the Services; (b) Customer seeks to hack or break any security protocols 
within the Services; (c) Customer uses any of the Services in any way that disrupts or threatens service to other 
customers of US Signal; (d) Customer use of the Services poses a security risk that may subject US Signal or any third 
party to liability, damages or danger; (e) US Signal determines in its sole discretion that fraud is associated with 
Customer’s use of the Services; or (f) US Signal determines or is notified that Customer has been using the Services for 
any illegal purpose or in a way that violates the law or infringes/violates/misappropriates the rights of any third party. 

 
b. US Signal shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any cause not listed in (a) above, upon written notice, if 

Customer breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice.  In 
the case of nonpayment of fees, the cure period shall be as set forth in Section 3.2.  

 
ARTICLE 3 

PAYMENT TERMS 
 

Section 3.1 Charges. 
 
Customer shall pay to US Signal all recurring and non-recurring charges for the Services at the rates and charges set forth 
on the applicable Ordering Document.  Except as otherwise identified in the applicable Service Schedule, all monthly 
recurring charges and non-recurring charges are on an individual case basis (“ICB”).  Monthly Recurring Charge(s) (“MRCs”) 
shall be invoiced monthly.  A pro-rated portion for the first month’s service will be included on the first invoice plus the next 
month’s service in advance.  Non-recurring charges (“NRC”) will be included on the invoice for applicable installation or 

service changes.  For any Cloud Services, US Signal may increase monthly recurring rates after: (a) the expiration of any 
OFS’s SIT; or (b) if Customer executes an OFS with a month-to-month SIT upon thirty (30) days’ written notice.  For any 
Managed Services, US Signal may increase monthly recurring rates upon thirty (30) days’ written notice.  Changes or 
cancellations to ordered services will result in additional non-recurring charges. 
 
Section 3.2 Payment. 
 
All amounts owed by Customer are due twenty-five (25) days from the invoice date (“Due Date”).  Customer shall make 

payment in U.S. dollars to US Signal by check or, at Customer’s option, by electronic funds transfer to an account 
reasonably designated by US Signal no later than the Due Date.  US Signal shall forward via electronic mail a copy of the 
current invoice to Customer no later than two (2) days after the invoice date to the email address(es) designated on page 
one (1) of this Agreement (“Billing Email Address”).   Customer must provide US Signal thirty (30) days written notice of 
any changes to its Billing Email Address.  All changes must be emailed to AR@ussignal.com.  To the extent Customer 
disputes a portion of an invoice, Customer may withhold payment on the disputed items, provided that Customer: 1) provides 
a written statement of the disputed charges to US Signal at Dispute@ussignal.com (“Dispute Email Address”) in 
reasonable detail within thirty (30) days of the invoice date (the “Review Date”); 2) pays the undisputed portion of the 

invoice; and 3) negotiates in good faith with US Signal for the purpose of resolving such dispute in a timely manner.  US 
Signal shall not be obligated to consider any Customer notice of any billing discrepancies which are received by US Signal 
after the Review Date or to an address other than the Dispute Email Address identified herein.  If payment has not been 

mailto:AR@ussignal.com
mailto:Dispute@ussignal.com


 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 4 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

received within thirty (30) days from the invoice date, US Signal will notify Customer that if payment is not received within 
five (5) days, then US Signal shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for cause and the Services will be 
disconnected at a certain time on a certain date.   A late charge will be applied to Customer’s invoice for all outstanding 
amounts owed beyond the Due Date.  Late charge will equal the lesser of 1.5% of the outstanding charges or the maximum 
amount allowed by law.  In the event a payment is received by US Signal and is returned by insufficient funds or bank 
charges, Customer will reimburse US Signal for all associated processing charges as well as an applicable late charge.  In 
the event that non-disputed payments are received late or returned by insufficient funds more than three (3) times during any 
twelve (12) month period, US Signal may require Customer to establish a deposit or pay with guaranteed funds. 
 
Section 3.3 Taxes. 
 
US Signal shall charge Customer for any and all applicable fees, taxes or surcharges (however designated) which are levied 
as a direct result of Customer’s purchase of Services under this Agreement, unless Customer has provided US Signal a valid 
tax exemption certificate reasonably acceptable to US Signal.  Customer is responsible for all taxes up until the time a valid 
tax exemption certificate is provided.  If Customer fails to maintain the required tax exemption certificate(s), US Signal shall 
back-bill Customer for all applicable taxes. 
 
Section 3.4 Creditworthiness. 
 
Delivery of the Services is subject to the continuing approval of Customer’s creditworthiness.  If necessary, US Signal may 
require a cash deposit, the terms of which will be subject to mutual written agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 4 
ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS  

 
Section 4.1  HIPAA and HITECH Act Responsibilities of Customer. 
 
Customer is solely responsible for determining if any Services and any applications, data or third party service that Customer 
runs in the US Signal provided environment must comply with any law, standards, and policies, including without limitation, 
Title II, Subtitle F of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended ("HIPAA" ) (collectively 
referred to herein as the "Legal Requirements") and ensuring that the Service, application, data or third party service does 
comply with all applicable Legal Requirements.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that US Signal has no way of analyzing 
Customer’s data, services or applications deployed in the applicable Service environment.  Customer shall immediately 
notify US Signal if any of the data in the Service environment includes Protected Health Information ("PHI"), as that term is 
defined in HIPAA regulations.  If the data does include PHI, Customer and US Signal shall enter into a Business Associate 
Agreement ("BAA").  Customer shall utilize only eligible Services (“Compliant Eligible Services”) for any data containing 

PHI.  Such Compliant Eligible Services shall include all Services described under this Agreement, excluding Resource Pools 
and Dedicated Blades. 
 
Section 4.2 Payment Card Industry – Data Security Standards (“PCI-DSS”).  
 
If, as necessary to perform its obligations under this Agreement, US Signal possesses or otherwise stores “cardholder data” 
(as that term is defined by the Payment Card Industry Data Security Council https://www.pcisecuritystandards.org) on 
behalf of Customer, US Signal and Customer agree that each party is responsible, as designated, for those certain PCI-DSS 
requirements as applicable to the corresponding service offering described set forth at 
https://ussignal.com/uploads/portal/Legal/PCI_Product_Matrix.pdf, which are hereby incorporated by reference herein. 
 
Section 4.3 EU General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”). 
 
Customer shall notify US Signal if it intends to use US Signal Services with data that is subject to protection under the GDPR 
(https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/PDF/?uri=CELEX:32016R0679&rid=1).  Such notification shall require 
the parties to enter into discussions on compliance requirements including but not limited to data assessments, data 
mapping, and execution of a Data Protection Addendum (“DPA”) under which US Signal will be a Processor and Customer 
the Controller as those terms are defined under the GDPR (collectively “GDPR Readiness”).  Customer may not utilize any 
Services with data that is subject to GDPR protection until such time as the parties have achieved GDPR Readiness. 
 
Section 4.4 Acceptable Use Policy (“AUP”). 
 
Customer agrees to use the Services to store, retrieve and serve software applications, data and/or content owned, licensed 
or lawfully obtained by Customer.  Customer agrees to not use, nor shall it permit others to use, the Services for:  (a) any 
unlawful, immoral, invasive, infringing, defamatory, fraudulent, or obscene purpose; (b) to send email of any kind that does 

https://www.pcisecuritystandards.org/
https://ussignal.com/uploads/portal/Legal/PCI_Product_Matrix.pdf


 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 5 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

not adhere to the guidelines set forth under the CAN-SPAM Act of 2003; (c) to send any virus, worm, Trojan horse or harmful 
code or attachment; (d) to alter, steal, corrupt, disable, destroy, trespass or violate any security or encryption of any 
computer file, database or network so as to interfere with the use of the US Signal network by other customers or authorized 
users; and (e) in a manner which may expose US Signal to any criminal or civil liability.  If Customer, or a third party through 
Customer, violates any of the foregoing prohibitions, US Signal may immediately suspend the Services and/or terminate this 
Agreement for cause and without further liability or obligation to Customer. Customer shall cooperate with US Signal in 
investigating and correcting any apparent breach of this Acceptable Use Policy.  Customer shall be solely responsible for 
any material that it maintains, transmits, downloads, views, posts, distributes or otherwise accesses or makes available 
using the Services.  If a violation of this AUP is determined to be caused by an unrelated third party, for instance a denial-of-
service (“DoS”) attack or distributed denial-of-service (“DDoS”), then US Signal may need to take immediate action to 

manage its network for the service availability of all its customers.  Such action may include blocking certain traffic, re-routing 
of traffic or suspension of a Service. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
DATA AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

 
Section 5.1 Unauthorized Access to Customer’s Data or Use of Services.   
 
US Signal is not responsible to Customer for unauthorized access to Customer’s data or unauthorized use of the Services 
through authorized or unauthorized access provided by Customer to third parties.  Customer is responsible for the use of the 
Services by any of Customer’s employees, affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, agents or representatives, or any other 
third party given access to the Service, and any third party who gains access to Customer’s data or Services as a result of 
Customer’s failure to use reasonable security precautions, even if such access was not authorized by Customer. 
 
Section 5.2 Confidentiality.  
 
Each party agrees that all information furnished to it by the other party, or to which it has access under this Agreement, shall 
be deemed confidential and proprietary information (collectively referred to as "Proprietary Information") of the disclosing 
party and shall remain the sole and exclusive property of the disclosing party.  Customer’s data stored at US Signal’s data 
center(s) or stored on or processed on US Signal’s systems shall be considered to be Proprietary Information.  Each party 
shall treat the Proprietary Information and the contents of this Agreement in a confidential manner and require its respective 
employees, contractors, suppliers, agents and representatives to maintain the confidentiality of all Proprietary Information 
under similar terms hereof. Except to the extent necessary in connection with the performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement, neither party shall directly or indirectly disclose the same to anyone other than its employees, and contractors 
who have a need to know the Proprietary Information.  The confidentiality obligations of this Section do not apply to any 
portion of the Proprietary Information which: (a) is or becomes public knowledge through no fault of the receiving party; (b) is 
in the lawful possession of the receiving party prior to disclosure to it by the disclosing party (as confirmed by the receiving 
party's records); (c) is disclosed to the receiving party without restriction on disclosure by a person who has the lawful right to 
disclose the information; or (d) is disclosed pursuant to the lawful requirements or formal request of a governmental agency.  
If the receiving party is requested or legally compelled by a governmental agency to disclose any Proprietary Information of 
the disclosing party, the receiving party agrees that it will provide the disclosing party with prompt written notice (if lawfully 
permitted) of such requests so that the disclosing party has the opportunity to pursue its legal and equitable remedies 
regarding potential disclosure. Each party acknowledges that its breach or threatened breach of this Section may cause the 
disclosing party irreparable harm which would not be adequately compensated by monetary damages.  Accordingly, in the 
event of any such breach or threatened breach, the receiving party agrees that equitable relief, including a temporary or 
permanent injunction, is an available remedy in addition to any legal remedies to which the disclosing party may be entitled.  
The obligations of the Parties relating to confidentiality survive termination of this Agreement for a two (2) year period.  In the 
event Customer and US Signal enter into a separate Non-Disclosure Agreement (“NDA”), then such NDA shall be 

incorporated into this Agreement by reference herein, and if any terms and conditions of such NDA are in conflict with the 
terms and conditions herein, then the NDA shall supersede the confidentiality terms and conditions in this clause, excluding 
US Signal’s CPNI obligations as defined in this Agreement.    
 
Section 5.3 CPNI. 
 
Customer Proprietary Network Information (“CPNI”), as defined by United States Code 47 U.S.C. § 222(h) (1), shall be 
considered to be the confidential information of Customer.  Customer authorizes US Signal to disclose CPNI: 1) to any third 
party agent designated on page one (1) of this Agreement; 2) to any future designated person(s) via written letter of 
authorization; and 3) to a lawful requirement or request from a court or governmental agency.  Except as otherwise expressly 
permitted herein, US Signal agrees that it will not: 1) use the CPNI for any purpose other than to further the purpose of this 
Agreement; and 2) disclose or reveal the CPNI to any person or entity other than its employees, directors, officers, and 
consultants who have a need to know to further the purpose of this Agreement and are subject to legally binding obligations 



 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 6 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

of confidentiality and non-use no less restrictive than those contained in this Agreement.  US Signal shall comply with its 
data security policies and procedures and all applicable privacy laws. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
OWNERSHIP AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 

 
Section 6.1 Equipment, Hardware and Software. 
 
Any equipment US Signal installs or utilizes for the provisioning of the Services is owned by US Signal.  For the sole purpose 
of enabling Customer to use Services, US Signal grants to Customer a non-exclusive and non-transferable license to use 
software that may be provided with or included in the Services.  US Signal or its suppliers retain title and property rights to 
US Signal-provided software and equipment, whether or not it is embedded in or attached to realty.  Customer neither owns 
nor will it acquire any claim or right of ownership to (a) any US Signal-provided equipment not purchased by Customer; (b) 
any software (including the original media and all subsequent copies of the software, regardless of the media’s form, 
including product keys provided by third parties whereby the keys are for Customer’s exclusive use and continued  use of 
such keys beyond termination of any Service order or this Agreement is prohibited) and associated documentation (including 
copies); and (c) any IP addresses assigned to Customer.  US Signal is responsible for maintaining its software and hardware 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
Section 6.2 Publicity. 
 
Neither party may use the name, logo, trade name, service marks, or printed materials of the other party, in any promotional 
or advertising materials, statement, document, press release or broadcast without the prior written consent of the other party, 
which consent may be granted or withheld at the other party's sole discretion. 
 
Section 6.3 Ownership of Intellectual Property. 
 
Other than rights and interests expressively set forth in the Agreement, each party retains all rights, title, to its own 
respective trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, and other intellectual property and nothing in this Agreement or performance 
thereof shall convey, license or otherwise transfer any rights, title, or interest to the other party. 
 
Section 6.4 Ownership of Work. 
 
All copyrights, patents, trade secrets, or other intellectual property rights associated with any ideas, concepts, creations, 
designs, engineering details, discoveries, techniques, inventions, processes, or works of authorship, software improvements 
produced, developed or created by US Signal during the course of performing Services to Customer shall be and shall 
remain the sole and exclusive property of US Signal. Customer shall not reverse engineer, decompile, derive, or 
disassemble the deliverables and will take appropriate steps to prevent any third party from so doing. 
 

ARTICLE 7 
WARRANTIES, INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 

 
Section 7.1 Customer Representations and Warranties. 
 
Customer represents, warrants and covenants, as of the signature dates and continuing throughout the Agreement Term, 
that Customer: 1) is not engaged in any resale or rebilling of the Services under this Agreement and that the use of the 
Services are for its own exclusive use; and 2) will strictly adhere to Customer’s responsibilities as defined in the applicable 
Service Schedule. 
 
Section 7.2 Disclaimer of Warranties. 
 
Customer assumes total responsibility for use of the Services and applicable equipment.  Any Services performed under this 
Agreement are on an as is basis without warranty.  US Signal has no responsibility for the security, loss, intrusion or 
unauthorized access of stored data or any loss or damage caused by any action, omission or failure to comply with the terms 
of this Agreement by Customer. US SIGNAL MAKES NO WARRANTY TO CUSTOMER OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR 
ENTITY, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF NONINFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AS TO 
ANY SERVICE OR EQUIPMENT PROVIDED HEREUNDER OR DESCRIBED HEREIN, OR AS TO ANY OTHER MATTER, 
ALL OF WHICH WARRANTIES BY US SIGNAL ARE HEREBY EXCLUDED AND DISCLAIMED. 
 



 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 7 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

Section 7.3 Indemnification.  
 
(Intentionally Deleted) 
 
Section 7.4 Limitation of Liability. 
 
NEITHER US SIGNAL NOR ITS AFFILIATES, SUBSIDIARIES, EMPLOYEES, CONTRACTORS, OR SUPPLIERS SHALL 
BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, 
(INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, LOST REVENUES, AND LOSS OF BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY) 
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE SERVICES, HOWEVER CAUSED AND UNDER 
WHATEVER THEORY OF LIABILITY (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, STRICT LIABILITY AND NEGLIGENCE), 
EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.  US Signal’s liability for all 
claims of any kind arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether based on contract, tort, including, without limitation, 
strict liability and negligence, warranty or on other legal or equitable principles shall be limited to strict money damages and 
shall not exceed (a) in the case of Support Services or Professional Services, the amount of fees paid by Customer for the 
Service(s) giving rise to claim for damages; and (b) in the case of Cloud Services or Managed Services, the amount of fees 
paid by Customer for the Services under the applicable Ordering Document during the 12-month period immediately 
preceding the event giving rise to the claim for damages.   

 
ARTICLE 8 

OPERATIONS REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section 8.1 Operations Definitions. 
 
a. Outage.  Outage means the measure of time that Customer’s Services do not meet the applicable service metrics 

for a Service as defined in the applicable Service Schedule (“Outage”). 
 
b. Planned Maintenance or Repair.  Planned Maintenance or Repair includes, but is not limited to software upgrades 

and repairs, equipment upgrades and repairs, power upgrades and repairs.  Customer acknowledges that US 
Signal may need to perform Planned Maintenance or Repair and such maintenance or repair is not considered an 
Outage. 

 
Section 8.2 Outage Credits. 
 
The length of an Outage shall be measured in hours and fractional portions thereof.  An Outage shall be deemed to have 
commenced upon notification by Customer to US Signal.  Each Outage shall be deemed to terminate upon restoration of the 
affected Service as evidenced by appropriate network and equipment tests by US Signal, and US Signal's notification to 
Customer.  To receive credit, Customer must make a written request within forty-five (45) days of the end of the month for 
which the interruption occurred.  This credit shall be Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy for any failure by US Signal to 
meet a service metric.  US Signal may withhold issuance of any credits due Customer under this Agreement until any 
amounts past due by Customer have been paid in full.  Outage credits do not apply to Outages: (a) caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of Customer; (b) Customer’s failure to properly provision and configure its Services; (c) 
Customer’s breach of this Agreement, including but not limited to the AUP as defined herein; (d) an Outage due to 
Customer’s network failure; (e) due to failure of power (excluding any industry standard back-up power sources that US 
Signal is required to have in place); (f) during any period of Planned Maintenance or Repair; and (g) during any Force 
Majeure Event as defined herein. 

 
ARTICLE 9 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

Section 9.1 Counterparts; Electronic Communications. 
 
This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (including by means of faxed or emailed signature pages), 
each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.  
Photocopies, facsimile transmissions and other reproductions of this executed original (with reproduced signatures) will be 
deemed original counterparts of this Agreement. The parties consent and agree the Agreement and any OFS may be 
entered into electronically by way of electronic signatures (for example, by electronically clicking a box confirming agreement 
or utilizing third party software such as DocuSign), and any such electronic signatures shall be binding and treated as 
original signatures.   In the event US Signal requires a correction or clarification to an executed OFS prior to the Service’s 



 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 8 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

first day of availability, an email communication from Customer may be utilized as an acceptable method of approval for any 
such correction or clarification and shall be incorporated as part of the OFS. 
 
Section 9.2 Notices. 
 
Except as described in Section 1.2 of this Agreement, all notices, including but not limited to, demands, requests and other 
communications required or permitted hereunder (not including invoices) shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be 
delivered when actually received, whether upon personal delivery or if sent by email, facsimile, mail or overnight delivery.  All 
Customer notices shall be addressed as designated on page one (1) of this Agreement and US Signal notices shall be 
addressed as follows: US Signal Company, L.L.C., Attn: Contracts, 201 Ionia Avenue SW, Grand Rapids, MI 49503 
(collectively “Legal Notices”).  Either party must provide the other party written notice of any changes to its Legal Notices. 
 
Section 9.3 Assignment. 
 
This Agreement shall not be assigned by Customer without the prior written consent of US Signal. 
 
Section 9.4 Successors and Assigns. 
 
All of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon, shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by 
the successors and assigns of the parties to this Agreement. 
 
Section 9.5 Severability. 
 
The unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the enforceability of the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 9.6 Force Majeure. 
 
Neither party shall be liable for any failure of performance hereunder due to causes beyond its reasonable control, including 
but not limited to, acts of God, fire, explosion, vandalism, cable cuts, storms or other similar catastrophes; any law, order, 
regulation, direction, action or request of the United States government, or of any other government, including state and local 
governments having jurisdiction over either of the parties, or of any department, agency, commission, court, bureau, 
corporation or other instrumentality of any one or more of said governments, or of any civil or military authority; national 
emergencies; insurrections, riots, wars, or strikes, lockouts, work stoppages or other labor disputes or difficulties (“Force 
Majeure Event”).  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, Customer agrees that payment obligations 
hereunder shall be absolute and not subject to delay due to any Force Majeure Event. 
 
Section 9.7 Regulatory Requirements. 
 
If the Federal Communications Commission, a state Public Utilities or Service Commission or a court of competent 
jurisdiction, issues a rule, regulation, law or order which has the effect of changing or superseding any material term or 
provision of this Agreement, including rates, surcharges or taxes, then this Agreement shall be deemed modified in such a 
way as is consistent with the form, intent or purpose of the ruling. 
 
Section 9.8 Governing Law. 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Michigan, without regard to 
conflict of law principles.  The parties agree that the state courts of Michigan shall have sole and exclusive jurisdiction, and 
Kent County shall be the proper venue, of any claim or controversy regarding this Agreement or its subject matter, including 
without limitation, claims for breach of contract, breach of warranty, statutory violation, negligence or other tort.  The parties 
agree that the exclusive jurisdiction (personal and, as allowed, subject matter) and venue for any claim or controversy 
relating to this Agreement including without limitation, claims for breach of contract, breach of warranty, statutory violation, 
negligence or other tort shall be a federal or state court in Kent County, Michigan, and the parties hereby consent to such 
jurisdiction and venue. 
 
Section 9.9 Export Matters. 
 
Customer represent and warrant that Customer is not on the United States Department of Treasury, Office of Foreign Asset 
Controls list of Specially Designated National and Blocked Persons to whom US Signal is legally prohibited to provide the 
Services.  Customer may not use the Services for the development, design, manufacture, production, stockpiling, or use of 
nuclear, chemical or biological weapons, weapons of mass destruction, or missiles, in a country listed in Country Groups D: 



 

Proprietary & Confidential     Page 9 of 9        City of Birmingham 111220 - R 
 

4 and D: 3, as set forth in Supplement No. 1 to the Part 740 of the United States Export Administration Regulations, nor may 
Customer provide administrative access to the Services to any person (including any natural person or government or 
private entity) that is located in or is a national of any country that is embargoed or highly restricted under United States 
export regulations. 
 
Section 9.10 Entire Agreement. 
 
This Agreement, Service Schedules, together with all Ordering Documents, embodies the entire agreement and 
understanding between US Signal and Customer with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all 
prior oral or written agreements and understandings relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  No statement, 
representation, warranty, covenant or agreement of any kind not expressly set forth in this Agreement will affect, or be used 
to interpret, change or restrict, the express terms and provisions of this Agreement.  Except as otherwise expressly permitted 
in this Agreement, this Agreement may not be supplemented, modified or amended except by a written instrument which is 
signed by both parties.  
 
Section 9.11 Survivability. 
 
Customer's obligations under Indemnification, Limitation of Liability and Customer Representations of Warranties shall 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

  
 

Customer: 

 
 
City of Birmingham 

 
 

 
 
US Signal Company, L.L.C. 

 
 

By: 

 
 
      

 
 

By: 

 
 
      

 
 

Printed Name: 

 
 
      

 
 

Printed Name: 

 
 
      

 
 

Title: 

 
 
      

 
 

Title: 

 
 
      

 
 

Date: 

 
 
      

 
 

Date: 

 
 
      

     
 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Dept. 

DATE: November 19, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: James J. Surhigh, Consulting City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Intergovernmental Agreement with Bloomfield Township 
Fire Hydrant at Birmingham Country Club 

INTRODUCTION: 
Birmingham Country Club is proposing new building construction in their maintenance 
yard area, which is located off of Northlawn Drive, between Golfview Boulevard and 
Pleasant Avenue.  To provide adequate hydrant coverage for emergency firefighting 
purposes, a new fire hydrant is proposed on the site.  The proposed fire hydrant would 
be connected to Birmingham’s water supply system, but the fire hydrant would be owned 
and operated by Bloomfield Township.  

BACKGROUND: 
Birmingham has historically provided water service to the Birmingham County Club 
facilities at 1750 Saxon Drive, even though the property is located in Bloomfield Township. 
The existing 8 inch water main along Northlawn Drive has a number of fire hydrants 
located in the right-of-way in the vicinity of the Country Club’s maintenance facilities.  The 
maintenance facility has a drive approach on Northlawn Drive, which serves as the primary 
access for Country Club maintenance personnel and related operations. 

The proposed improvements on the Birmingham Country Club property are being 
reviewed and permitted by Bloomfield Township.  As part of their review, the Bloomfield 
Township Fire Department determined that providing a new fire hydrant on the Country 
Club property, adjacent to the maintenance drive off of Northlawn Drive to be closer to 
the maintenance buildings, would improve their ability to provide emergency fire 
protection. 

Bloomfield Township has requested that Birmingham permit the construction of the new 
fire hydrant, which will be connected to the existing 8 inch water main on Northlawn Drive. 
Bloomfield Township will own and operate the fire hydrant and 6 inch pipe extension that 
will only be used for emergency firefighting purposes and for regular, necessary 
maintenance by Bloomfield Township.  Therefore, Birmingham will not bill for water usage. 

A copy of the agreement is attached to this report, and original documents were provided 
by Bloomfield Township for signature.   

A photograph of the current entrance drive area off of Northlawn Drive is attached to this 
report.   

5J



2 

The proposed Utility Plan sheet is attached for your reference. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the agreement, and they have no concerns with 
the language as presented. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
As stated in the agreement, there is no direct cost to Birmingham for this project.  The 
Birmingham Country Club will be paying all costs related to construction of the new fire 
hydrant.  Bloomfield Township will own and operate the fire hydrant and connecting pipe, 
so Birmingham will not have any long-term maintenance costs. 

SUMMARY 
Bloomfield Township has requested that a new fire hydrant be installed on the Birmingham 
Country Club property, adjacent to their maintenance entrance drive approach off of 
Northlawn Drive.  The work is being justified as a safety improvement.  The design in 
progress, and the contract has not been awarded.  Birmingham will have the opportunity 
to review the design prior to finalizing. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Intergovernmental Agreement
• Photo of existing condition, looking southeast.
• Utility Plan Sheet, as prepared by Nowak & Fraus Engineers for the Birmingham County

Club.

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve the intergovernmental agreement with Bloomfield Township for construction 
of the proposed fire hydrant connected to Birmingham’s water supply system, and also to 
direct the Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 













11/19/2020 1816 Northlawn Blvd - Google Maps

https://www.google.com/maps/@42.5360119,-83.2358035,3a,75y,196.26h,75.16t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1sNkq2hIwFQ_cIbVG-4DxTIQ!2e0!7i16384!8i8… 1/1

Image capture: Aug 2018 © 2020 Google

Street View

Birmingham, Michigan

 Google

1816 Northlawn Blvd

https://www.google.com/streetview
https://www.google.com/streetview


G

BENCHMARK

R

O

U

G

E

 

R

I

V

E

R

R

O

U

G

E

 
R

I
V

E

R

(5
0
' 
w

id
e
)

N
O

R
T

H
L
A

W

N
 B

L
V

D

D

A

B

C

E

F

Utility Plan

SCALE:

Part of the South 1/2
of Section 35
T. 2 North, R. 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Stucky Vitale Architects
27172 Woodward Avenue
Royal Oak, MI 48067

Contact: John Vitale
Ph: (248) 546-6700

Birmingham Country Club

SEAL

September 6, 2019

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

I942-02
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

10-14-2019 REVISED PER CLIENT

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

19 96 - 9120

NF
ENGINEERS

nowak & fraus

engineers

10-30-2019 REVISED PER CLIENT

12-04-2019 REVISED PER Twp/permit response

12-20-2019 REVISED PER CITY

01-14-2020 REVISED PER Twp

C-4

1" = 30'
01530 15 30 45

A. Eizember

P. Williams

P. Williams

Site

Location  Map

N

NF

N

LEGEND

ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

WATER MAIN

SANITARY SEWER

UTILITY CROSSING SCHEDULE

A

B 

C 

D 

E

F 

G 

A

HYDRANT NOTE

WATER MAIN NOTE

SEWER NOTE

UTILITY CROSSING NOTE

PR. STORM CROSS-SECTION EX. SEWER CROSS-SECTION

UTILITY CROSSING / CONCRETE SADDLE DETAIL



 

 

 

 

November 19, 2020 

City Commission 

City of Birmingham 

151 Martin Street 

Birmingham, MI  48009 

Re: Employment Agreement With Mr. Tom Markus 

Dear Commissioners: 

We are pleased to report that, as directed during the Board’s meeting held on November 9, 2020, 

we have negotiated a written employment agreement with Mr. Tom Markus for the position of 

City Manager. A copy of the proposed written employment agreement is attached for your review. 

The written employment agreement with Mr. Markus includes those items that were presented to 

the Board at the November 9 meeting, as well as the changes voted on by the Board. These changes 

included: 

• The term of the employment agreement shall be 2-½ years;

• Language clarifying that the cell phone/computer/technology that Mr. Markus will be

issued as City Manager belongs to the City;

• The period of severance payment shall be the lesser of 12 months or the balance of the

employment agreement.

The written employment agreement also incorporates other standard provisions found in 

employment contracts. 

Mr. Markus has already reviewed and approved the written employment agreement, and has 

indicated he will sign it upon approval by the Board. 

We believe that the written employment agreement encapsulates the terms and conditions that 

were negotiated between the parties, and we request that the Board approve the agreement.  

THOMAS L. FLEURY 

GARY P. KING 

LAURI A. READ 

GOURI G. SASHITAL 

GREGORY T. SCHULTZ 

MINDY BARRY* 

ELIZABETH A. YOUNG 

KATHRYN E. JONES 

Also admitted in Virginia* 

STEVEN H. SCHWARTZ 

     & ASSOCIATES 

     Of Counsel 

  LEONARD A. KELLER 
  (1905 - 1970) 

  RICHARD J. THOMA 

     (1904 - 2001) 

KELLER THOMA 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

COUNSELORS AT LAW 

26555 EVERGREEN ROAD, SUITE 550 

SOUTHFIELD, MICHIGAN  48076 

www.kellerthoma.com 

GOURI G. SASHITAL 
DIRECT DIAL 313.965.8936 

FAX 313.965.4480 

EMAIL gsr@kellerthoma.com 

6A



KELLER THOMA 

City Commission 

City of Birmingham 

November 19, 2020 

Page 2 

We look forward to discussing the above with the Commission. 

Very truly yours, 

KELLER THOMA, P.C. 

/s/Gouri G. Sashital, Esq. 

Gouri G. Sashital, Esq. 

Suggested Resolution:  To approve the employment agreement with Thomas M. Markus to serve as 
City Manager effective January 1, 2021.



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THOMAS M. MARKUS 

AND THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _______ day of November, 2020, by 

and between the CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, A Michigan Municipal Corporation, whose address is 

151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI  48009 (“the City”) and Thomas M. Markus, whose address is 

425 Bird Street, Birmingham, MI 48009 (“Employee”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter III of the Charter of the City of Birmingham, the 

Commission of the City of Birmingham has the responsibility to retain a City Manager to perform 

certain duties as set forth; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Commission wishes to appoint Thomas M. Markus as City Manager; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the City Commission is desirous of establishing certain conditions and benefits 

of employment of the Employee. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the Employee in consideration of the promises and 

mutual agreements herein, agree to the following: 

1. Duties.  The Employee agrees to perform all of the functions and duties as

specified in the City Charter at Chapter 3, Section 8, and to perform whatever legally permissible 

and proper additional functions and duties which the Commission shall, from time to time, assign 

to the City Manager.  The Employee agrees that all duties and functions shall be performed in a 

diligent, responsible, and equitable manner in accordance with the City Charter, City Code, and 

policies and resolutions established by the Commission. 

The Commission agrees that it shall establish certain goals and objectives upon which the 

Employee’s performance may be evaluated. In the event the parties agree to renew this 



2 

Agreement as set forth in Paragraph 3, the Commission will conduct a performance evaluation 

prior to the renewal of this Agreement.  

2. Professional Status.  The City acknowledges and agrees that the Employee is

being employed in a bonafide, executive, administrative and professional capacity which will 

undoubtedly require him to spend more than forty (40) hours per week in the performance of his 

duties and functions.  It is recognized that the Employee must devote a great deal of time outside 

of the normal office hours on business for the City, and to that end the Employee shall be allowed 

to establish an appropriate work schedule. 

3. Term of Employment.  The term of this Agreement is for two and one-half

(2-½) years, or thirty (30) months, and shall terminate on June 30, 2023 unless the Agreement 

is mutually renewed in writing by the parties, provided, however, that the Employee may 

terminate upon ninety (90) days’ written notice, and the City may terminate upon thirty (30) days’ 

written notice. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this contract, the Employee agrees to 

serve at the pleasure of the Commission and agrees that this contract may be terminated with or 

without cause by either party. 

The Employee agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of the City until his employment 

with the City terminates and will neither accept other employment nor become employed by any 

other employer until the date on which his employment with the City terminates.  The term 

“employed” as used in this Paragraph shall not be construed to include occasional teaching, 

consulting, or writing performed on Employee’s own time except that in no case shall Employee 

spend more than 10 hours per week in such activities. 

4. Salary.  The City agrees to pay the Employee a salary of One Hundred Sixty

Thousand Dollars ($160,000.00) per year in bi-weekly increments.  The City agrees to increase 

the Employee’s annual salary in such amount and at such time as the Commission may find 



3 

desirable, except that in no event shall the Employee’s salary be increased less than the average 

of the salary increases for base wages negotiated for that year with the City’s bargaining units. 

5. Professional Development.  Employer agrees to pay for the professional dues

and subscriptions of the Employee for his participation in national, state, regional, and local 

associations necessary for his continued professional development and the good of the City.  The 

City further agrees to pay the cost associated with participation in one local service club of the 

Employee’s choosing. 

The City further agrees to pay the travel, registration, and subsistence expenses of the 

Employee for his attendance at meetings or seminars necessary to continue the Employee’s 

professional development or for the City’s good, subject to the City’s expense reimbursement 

policy. 

6. Benefits.  The City agrees to provide the Employee all employee benefits provided

to City employees in accordance with the published City of Birmingham personnel policy except 

as modified as follows: 

A.  Paid Time Off, Illness Allowance, and Holiday Benefits: 

(i) Effective January 1, 2021, the Employee shall receive a one-time bank 

of fifteen (15) paid days off, to be used as the Employee determines. 

The Employee shall thereafter beginning January 1, 2021 start 

receiving the proportionate share for each pay period the equivalent 

of twenty-five (25) days of vacation per year for each year of this 

Agreement. 

(ii) The City shall offer the Employee participation in an illness allowance 

program equal to that which is offered to all other City employees. 



4 

(iii) The City shall offer the Employee participation in a holiday benefit 

program equal to that which is offered to all other City employees. 

B. Retirement: 

(i) The City agrees to allow the Employee to participate in the City’s 

defined compensation pension plan, with the City and the Employee 

each making annual contributions in accordance with the plan 

documents, as they may be amended from time to time. In the event 

the Employee has not vested in the employee and employer 

contributions at the end of the Employee’s 2-1/2 years of employment, 

the City shall make an equivalent employer contribution to the ICMA 

deferred compensation pension plan (see Paragraph 5.B(ii)), on behalf 

of the Employee. 

(ii) The City shall provide an annual contribution of Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) into the deferred compensation plan established and 

maintained by the International City Management Association. The 

accumulated deferred compensation will be paid to the Employee upon 

the termination of the Employee's employment with the City. 

C. Insurance: 

(i) The City and the Employee agree that the Employee is not requesting 

participation in and will not receive health insurance coverage through 

the City during the term of this Agreement, provided, however, that 

nothing in this Agreement shall alter or affect the Employee’s 

participation in the City’s Retiree Plan 712 during the term of this 

Agreement or after its termination. 



5 

(ii) The City agrees to put into force and make required premium payments 

for the Employee’s insurance policies for life, accident, sickness, 

disability, income benefits, and optical and dental group insurance 

covering the Employee and his dependents. 

(iii) The City agrees to pay the required premiums on a term insurance 

policy in an amount equal to three (3) times the Employee's annual 

salary, with the beneficiary named by the Employee to receive any 

benefits paid.  The City will also pay the required premiums for a term 

insurance policy providing double indemnity for accidental death or 

dismemberment in an amount which is determined by the Employee's 

age and for which the Employee agrees to contribute 20% of the annual 

premium which will be paid proportionately through the biweekly 

payroll deduction. 

(iv) The Employee agrees to submit once every eighteen (18) months to a 

complete physical examination by a qualified physician whom the City 

selects, the cost of which the City shall pay.  The City will receive a 

summary report of the physical examination determining the 

Employee’s fitness to complete the physical requirements of the City 

Manager position. The City will treat this information with complete 

confidentiality in accordance with applicable state and federal laws. 

7. Cell Phone/Computer: The City shall provide the Employee with a cell phone,

computer devices, and other technology-based equipment needed to perform his City Manager 

duties for his use during his employment with the City. It is expressly understood and agreed that 

the cell phone, computer devices, and other technology-based equipment are the property of the 



6 

City and shall remain with the City upon the termination of the Employee’s employment with the 

City. 

8. Automobile.  The City shall provide the Employee an automobile allowance of

Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per month for his business and personal use during his 

employment with the City and the City shall pay automobile insurance on the Employee’s vehicle. 

This automobile allowance shall be adjusted by the yearly percentage change of the Detroit area 

CPIU as published by the Department of Labor for April of 2006 and April of each contract year 

thereafter.  

9. Relocation Expenses. The City shall reimburse the Employee up to Fifteen

Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) in relocation expenses, upon submittal by the Employee of duly 

executed expense statements, receipts, or personal affidavits to the City. 

10. Other Expenses. The Employee is authorized to incur non-personal and job

related expenses on behalf of the City.  The Employee shall be reimbursed for such expenses 

upon submitting duly executed expense or petty cash vouchers, receipts, statements or personal 

affidavits to the City. 

11. Financial Interests. The Employee understands that any financial investment or

equity ownership in any business which performs services or supplies goods to the City may 

create a legal or ethical conflict of interest.  Accordingly, the Employee agrees not to acquire any 

beneficial ownership in any business or organization which supplies goods or services to the City 

without first disclosing such acquisition to the Commission. 

12. Termination and Severance Pay.

A. In the event that the Employee, after declaring that he is ready, willing, and 

able to perform the duties of the City Manager, is separated from his 

employment with the City for any of the reasons listed in Paragraph 12.B, then 



7 

the City shall pay to the Employee Severance Pay for the lesser of a period of 

twelve (12) months or the remainder of the term of this Agreement. As used 

herein, Severance Pay shall consist of all of the following: 

• An amount equal to the Employee’s base pay at the time of separation,

less reductions and withholdings required by law, paid in biweekly 

installments; 

• Continuation of the employer and employee contributions to the

defined contribution pension plan; 

• Employer contribution to the deferred compensation plan (ICMA).

• Continuation of the insurance policies referenced in Paragraph 6.c.ii;

and 

• Payment of all accrued vacation time and any other termination

benefits available to other City employees at the time of separation, 

less reductions and withholdings required by law. 

B. The Severance Pay described in Paragraph 12.A shall be paid to the Employee 

if he is separated from employment for any of the following reasons: 

(i) If, at a public meeting, a majority of the City Commission votes, for any 

reason other than the Employee’s conviction of a felony or misdemeanor 

involving malfeasance or dishonesty, to terminate the Employee’s 

employment with the City with or without cause. 

(ii) If the State of Michigan or the City takes any action that would eliminate 

the position of City Manager, or substantially alter or change the duties 

or authority of the City Manager position. 



8 

(iii) If the City reduces the compensation, annual base salary, or other 

financial benefits accruing to the Employee hereunder, unless the 

percentage reduction is equal to or less than the percentage reduction of 

all management employees of the City. 

(iv) If the City offers to accept the employee’s resignation in lieu of 

termination of his employment and, in acceptance of that offer, the 

Employee resigns. 

(v) If the City suspends the Employee with or without pay for a period of 

three (3) or more business days in any calendar year. 

(vi) If the City breaches any provision of this Employment agreement and 

fails, within ten (10) days after receiving written notice thereof from the 

Employee, to remedy any such breach. 

C. In the event that the Employee voluntarily retires or resigns his position as City 

Manager or leaves the City’s employment for reasons other than reasons listed 

in Paragraph 12.B, then the Employee shall not be entitled to the Severance 

Pay described in Paragraph 12.A. 

D. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the Employee agrees to give written notice 

to the City no less than ninety (90) days in advance of any voluntary retirement 

or voluntary resignation of his position. 

13. Commencement Date.  This contract shall commence on January 1, 2021.

14. Indemnification.  Beyond that required under Federal, State or Local law, the

City shall defend, save harmless, and indemnify the Employee against any tort, professional 

liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out of an 

alleged act or omission occurring within the scope of the Employee’s employment or duties, unless 



9 

the act or omission involved willful or wanton misconduct.  In the defense of such claims, the 

Employee may request and the City shall not unreasonably refuse to provide independent legal 

representation at the City’s expense and the City may not unreasonably withhold approval.  Legal 

representation, provided by the City for the Employee, shall extend until a final determination of 

legal action including any appeals brought by either party.  The City shall indemnify the Employee 

against any and all losses, damages, judgements, interest, settlements, fines, court costs, and 

other reasonable costs and expenses of legal proceedings including attorneys’ fees, and any other 

liabilities incurred by, imposed upon, or suffered by such Employee in connection with or resulting 

from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding, actual or threatened, arising out of or in connection 

with the performance of his duties unless the act or omission involved willful or wanton 

misconduct.  Any settlement of any claim must be made with prior approval of the City, which 

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, in order for indemnification as provided in this 

Section, to be available.  The Employee recognizes that the City shall have the right to 

compromise, adjust, and settle claims against the Employee for which the Employee is entitled to 

indemnification.  Further, the City agrees to pay all reasonable litigation expenses of the Employee 

throughout the pendency of any litigation to which the Employee is a party, witness, or adviser 

to the City.  Such expense payments shall continue beyond Employee’s service to the City as long 

as litigation is pending. 

15. General Provisions.  The text herein shall constitute the entire agreement

between the parties. 

No modification of this agreement shall be valid unless such modification is in writing 

and signed by the City and the Employee.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be 

valid unless such modification is in writing and signed by the person or party against whom 

charged. 



10 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the City and the 

Employee and their successors and assigns; provided, however, that neither party may assign or 

delegate any of its rights or obligations hereunder without first obtaining the written consent of 

the other party. 

If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this agreement shall be held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this agreement, or portion thereof, 

shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect. 

16. Governing Law.  This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of

Michigan, County of Oakland. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Birmingham has caused this agreement to be 

signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor, and duly attested by its City Clerk, and the 

Employee has signed and executed this agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year first above 

written. 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, a Michigan Municipal 
Witnessed: Corporation 

______ By: 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor 

______ By: 
Alexandria D. Bingham, Clerk 

Witnessed: 

_______________________________ By: 
Thomas M. Markus 

_______________________________ 



cheryl arft <carft@bhamgov.org>

Fwd: Need Your Response Fwd: Haugen-Museum Board
1 message

Dan Haugen <daniel.l.haugen@gmail.com> Mon, Nov 9, 2020 at 3:05 PM
To: cheryl arft <carft@bhamgov.org>
Cc: Leslie Pielack <lpielack@bhamgov.org>

Cheryl,

I will be travelling to China for business for the next 2 years, and will therefore need to resign from my 
position on the Birmingham Museum Board.

Thanks,
Dan

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Leslie Pielack <LPielack@bhamgov.org>
Date: Mon, Nov 2, 2020 at 11:49 AM
Subject: RE: Need Your Response Fwd: Haugen-Museum Board
To: Haugen, Dan <daniel.l.haugen@gmail.com>

Hi Dan,

Can you please follow up and send a resignation letter via email to Cheryl Arft (below) ASAP? It is 
necessary for the position to be filled during your absence. Please copy me on it, so I can make sure the 
process goes forward as needed.

I hope you have a good experience in China! Please keep in touch with us when the dust settles for you.   

Our best, and stay safe!

Leslie

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: cheryl arft <carft@bhamgov.org>
Date: Mon, Nov 2, 2020 at 9:34 AM
Subject: Re: Haugen-Museum Board
To: Leslie Pielack <LPielack@bhamgov.org>

He needs to resign so he can be replaced. He can re-apply when he returns. 
He can email me a resignation which the commission will see, and we can 
start the process to replace him. 

Cheryl Arft
Acting City Clerk
City of Birmingham
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI  48009

Page 1 of 2City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd: Need Your Response Fwd: Haugen-Museum Board

11/10/2020https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=40dd3b3e11&view=pt&search=all&permthid=threa...

5K



248-530-1880
248-530-1080 (fax)

carft@bhamgov.org

"Important Note to Residents*
Let's connect! Join the Citywide Email System to receive important City updates and critical 
information specific to your neighborhood at www.bhamgov.org/citywideemail.

On Mon, Nov 2, 2020 at 8:54 AM Leslie Pielack <LPielack@bhamgov.org> wrote:
Hi Cheryl,

Dan Haugen informed me he will be going to China for 1 to 2 years and leaving some time this week or 
next week. What does he need to do?

Leslie

-- 
Leslie Pielack
Director
Birmingham Museum
248-530-1682

-- 
Leslie Pielack
Director
Birmingham Museum
248-530-1682

Page 2 of 2City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd: Need Your Response Fwd: Haugen-Museum Board

11/10/2020https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=40dd3b3e11&view=pt&search=all&permthid=threa...

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION:
To accept the resignation of Dan Haugen from the Museum Board, thank him for his 
service, and direct the Clerk to fill the vacancy on the Museum Board. 



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

DATE: November 13, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Audit Report 

Douglas Bohrer Timothy St. Andrew, and Aaron Sarver from Plante and Moran will be present at 
the City Commission meeting on November 23, 2020, to give a presentation and answer any 
questions pertaining to the audit report. 

The audit report and letter to the Commission was provided under separate cover.  The audit 
report is available for inspection at the Clerk’s Office as well as on the City’s website. 

7A



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Finance Department 

DATE: November 13, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Update on City’s 1st Quarter Finances 

Background 
When the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget was adopted, there was concern expressed by some of 
the City Commission about the effects of the pandemic on the City’s finances for the year and 
whether the budget should be amended.  The City Manager suggested that those discussions 
should wait until the audit for fiscal year 2019-2020 was complete and the City had more history 
of what the financial impact the pandemic really has been.  This report serves to update the 
Commission on where the City is stands financially after the 1st quarter of the fiscal year.  I’ve 
only included the larger City funds in this analysis. 

General Fund 
The General Fund finished fiscal year 2019-2020 with an unrestricted fund balance (fund balance 
that is available to spend) of $14.9 million (see page 102 of the CAFR).  This amount represents 
37% of the budgeted expenditures of the year.  The City Commission’s fund balance policy states 
that unrestricted fund balance should remain between 17%-40% of budgeted expenditures. 

Revenues:  Now that the economy has had a chance to adjust to the pandemic, we are starting 
to see more consistent revenue trends which will help us predict future revenue streams.  It is 
likely that these trends will remain in place until the end of the fiscal year due to the timing of 
when a potential vaccine will be available.  Constitutional sales tax revenue, which makes up 
approximately 5% of the overall revenue budget, is projected to be within budget.  Building 
permits, which makes up 5% of the overall revenue budget, is projected to be within budget, 
given the amount of building activity the City is experiencing.  48th District court revenue, which 
represents 3% of the overall budget, is projected to be approximately $500,000-600,000 under 
budget.  Parking fines is projected to be $150,000 under budget.  Other smaller revenues are 
also likely to see a slight decrease compared to budget as a result of COVID initiatives taken by 
the City as well as lower activity.  Overall, it is projected that the City’s revenue budget will likely 
be under budget by approximately $800,000 - $1,000,000.  Fortunately, there have been grants 
available to offset some of the costs the City has incurred related to COVID.  Altogether, the City 
has billed various agencies approximately $1,000,000 for reimbursement of which the City has 
received approximately 25% to-date.  These are revenues that were not budgeted for 2020-2021.  
A majority of these funds are General Fund related so the overall impact to the General Fund for 
fiscal year 2020-2021 is projected to be right now around $250,000-$300,000.  Of course, given 
the nature of the pandemic and how quickly events can change, the above projections can equally 
change. 

7B



2 
 
 

Expenditures:  Expenditures are currently on-target for this year (see first quarter budget report).  
Historically, the General Fund’s expenditures have been under budget due to vacancies or projects 
which are budgeted but not spent.  These expenditure savings are usually sufficient to offset 
revenue shortfalls. 
 
Major and Local Streets 
Gas and weight taxes received from the state are currently within budget.  However, part of the 
funding for roads comes from the state general fund.  The state is currently struggling to close a 
big funding gap.  Potentially, the state could cut the funding that was originally allocated for roads 
in a cost saving measure.  If the state were to cut funding for roads, there is sufficient fund 
balance to cover these losses in the short-term. 
 
Water and Sewer Funds 
These funds are primarily supported by utility user fees.  These user fees are transferred to the 
tax roll if payment is not received.  Therefore, these funds are not currently affected by the 
pandemic. 
 
Auto Parking System 
The parking system ended the 2019-2020 fiscal year with an unrestricted net position of $19.3 
million.   
 
Currently, the system is not collecting monthly parking permit or transient parking revenue from 
the structures as a way to support businesses during the pandemic.  This economic relief is 
scheduled to end December 31, 2020.  As a result, the only parking revenue currently being 
collected is from on-street parking meters.  Given the rise of COVID cases in the area and the 
potential for another shutdown of businesses, it is difficult to accurately predict how the system 
will do financially this fiscal year.  At the current pace (without monthly or transient parking 
revenue in the structures), the system is projected to lose approximately $600,000-$700,000 
before factoring in capital improvements or depreciation.  The structures are undergoing an 
assessment to determine the extent of repairs that need to be made.  Once that is done and 
prioritized, a timetable for those repairs to be established.   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1 

  MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

DATE: November 13, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: 48th District Court FY 2021 Budget 

INTRODUCTION: 
Every year the 48th District Court prepares an annual budget which must be approved by the four 
funding units:  City of Birmingham, City of Bloomfield Hills, Bloomfield Township, and West 
Bloomfield Township.   

BACKGROUND: 
In accordance with the 1985 agreement, revenues and Court expenditures are allocated to the 
four control units, which include the cities of Birmingham and Bloomfield Hills and the townships 
of Bloomfield and West Bloomfield, in the same proportion as the number of cases arising from 
each unit.   At the end of each calendar year following the Court’s audit, an adjustment is made 
for the difference between those amounts advanced based on the estimate and the actual 
caseload of each control unit under the agreement as well as the court revenue. 

Four municipal governments fund the budget of the 48th District Court:  City of Birmingham, City 
of Bloomfield Hills, Bloomfield Township, and West Bloomfield Township.  The expenditure budget 
of the court is allocated to each municipality based on that municipality’s percentage of the total 
case load of the court.  The City’s percentage of the total court caseload was 30.35% in calendar 
year 2019 and is projected to decrease in 2020 to 26.5%.  Each quarter, the City advances 25% 
of the City’s allocation of the total expenditure budget to the Court.  Revenue generated by the 
court is also distributed to each municipality based on the percentage of caseload except for cost 
of prosecution reimbursements which are specific to each municipality.   

Attached is the proposed 2021 budget for the 48th Judicial District Court.  In total, the Court is 
requesting an operating budget of $4,620,888 which represents a decrease of $24,550, or .53%, 
from the 2020 budget.  Increases are proposed for salaries and operations while benefits, 
professional fees, security, and capital expenses are proposed to decrease.  

Salaries:  For 2021 salaries are proposed to increase $44,000, or 2.4%, from the 2020 budget.  

Benefit Expenses:  This budgeted category is proposed to decrease by $33,000, or 3.1% from 
the 2020 budget.  The change is the result of a decrease in defined contribution expense which 
was partially offset by an increase in dental/life/disability insurance expense.  

Operating Expenses:  For 2021, operating expenses are proposed to increase by $14,200, or 
1.03% from the 2020 budget.  This is primarily the result of an increase in information systems 
of $12,500 from 2020’s budget.  Additionally, insurance expense is proposed to increase $7,000. 

7C



2 

 
 

 
Professional Fees:  Overall this budgeted category is proposed to decrease by $1,000, or .58%, 
from 2020’s budget as a result of a decrease in consultants and other professional services 
expense of $4,000.  
 
Security & Other Expenses:  This category is proposed to decrease $42,750, or 21.62%, primarily 
as a result of a decrease in court security of $35,000 and a decrease in library/dues/certifications 
of $6,500.   
 
Equipment & Capital:  Expenditures for this category are proposed to decrease by $6,000, or 
3.41%, primarily as a result of a decrease in equipment maintenance expense of $5,000.  
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
No legal review is required. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Court is estimating that its expenditures will be under budget by approximately $500,000 for 
2020.  The City’s caseload for 2020 is projected to be around 26.5%.  Based on this, the City’s 
expected portion of the Court’s expenditures is projected to be approximately $1,098,000.  I am 
projecting that the City’s portion of the Court’s revenue based on a projected caseload of 26.5% 
is $650,000.  This leaves a shortage of approximately $450,000 for 2020 that the City has to 
absorb.  
 
It is very difficult to project the fiscal impact of the Court’s operations for 2021 on the City because 
of the variables with COVID.  However, assuming the City funds the Court’s 2021 budget at the 
same percentage as the projected 2020 caseload of 26.5%, the City would advance the Court 
$1,224,535.  If Court revenues project to be similar to 2020’s revenue, the City would receive 
approximately $650,000 or a funding shortage of approximately $575,000.  This, however, does 
not take into consideration possible savings if the Court is able to keep expenditures under the 
budget or that the Court is able to resume normal operations earlier than projected.   
 
Attached to this report is the Court’s 2021 budget and a history of the City’s portion of the Court’s 
revenues and expenditures.      
 
SUMMARY: 
It is recommended to approve the 48th District Court budget as submitted.  Bloomfield Township 
and West Bloomfield Township have already approved the budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. 48th District Court Proposed Budget for FY 2021 
2. History of Court Revenues vs Expenditures 

 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION:  To receive the 2021 proposed budget from the 48th District Court; 
and further, to approve the budget as submitted. 
 
 
 
 



3 

 
 

 



 

   

THE COURT IN REVIEW 

 
The 48th District Court serves the Charter Townships of Bloomfield and West Bloomfield, and the Cities of Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Keego 
Harbor, Orchard Lake Village and Sylvan Lake.   Bloomfield Township, West Bloomfield Township, Birmingham and Bloomfield Hills  (collectively 
referred to as the “Funding Unit(s)”) fund the Court’s operation pursuant to an agreement executed between the Funding Units.  The Court is not a 
signatory  to  the Funding Units’ agreement. The political  subdivisions of Keego Harbor, Orchard Lake Village and Sylvan Lake utilize  the Court’s 
services and receives reimbursements pursuant to the Funding Unit agreement.  As defined by the Michigan Legislature in 1968, the District Courts 
are an independent third branch of government providing services to municipalities and have jurisdiction over: 

 Arraignments – advising defendants of their rights, the pending charge(s) and the setting of bond in misdemeanor & felony cases. 
 Misdemeanors – all criminal cases punishable by imprisonment not exceeding one year, written under state law or local ordinance. This 

includes, but is not limited to: Operating While Intoxicated (1st and 2nd), Domestic Violence, Assault/Battery, Aggravated Assault/Battery, 
Drug Possession, Stalking, Retail Fraud, Larceny, Breaking and Entering, Driving While License Suspended, and all violations of probation for 
these cases. 

 Preliminary Examinations  in all  felony cases.   A preliminary exam is a hearing where testimony  is heard to determine whether there  is 
probable cause that a crime has been committed and probable cause that the defendant committed the crime. If the judge so finds, the 
case is bound over to the Oakland County Circuit Court for further proceedings. 

 Felony Guilty Pleas. 
 Civil Lawsuits – claims where the amount in controversy does not exceed $25,000. 
 Landlord/Tenant Disputes – Hearings, which include eviction proceedings, land‐contract forfeitures and mortgage foreclosures. 
 Small Claims – claims where the amount in controversy does not exceed $6000 and litigants represent themselves. 
 Civil Infractions – includes all informal and formal hearings. 
 Search Warrants – Judges and Magistrates on call 24 hours a day. 

The budget of the 48th District Court has two separate and distinct components. The first addresses caseload and monetary funds received by the 
Court. Fines, costs and other fees are assessed as appropriate within the law. Funds received by the Court are subsequently distributed to the State, 
Oakland County and local Funding Units pursuant to law and  the Funding Unit agreement.  

The  second  component  of  this  budget  analyzes  the  expenses  incurred  for  the  operation  of  the  Court.  The  Court  submits  a  lump‐sum budget 
comprised of six account groupings. Funds used to maintain  the operation of  the Court are reviewed and approved through an annual budget 
process with the Funding Units. Once approved, the Funding Units advance the Court funds for Court operations on a quarterly basis. Any surplus 
is returned to the funding units upon completion of the annual external audit. 



 

   

 

The  Judges  and  the  entire  staff  of  the  48th  District  Court  understand  the  difficult  budget  issues  facing  all municipalities,  courts,  families  and 
individuals. In preparing this budget, we continue to strive to ensure that public funds are used in the most efficient and responsible manner possible 
by  reducing costs and maintaining a high standard of  service, while honoring our constitutional duty  to serve  the public. The  figures and data 
presented highlight the Court’s commitment to the efficient use of the public’s resources. 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

 The requirements relative to case disposition have changed. 
o The judges and the 48th District Court must submit quarterly reports to the State Court Administrator’s Office (SCAO) regarding the 

disposition of cases and all matters submitted before them. They are meeting or exceeding the guidelines specified by the Michigan 
Supreme Court. 

 Collections  
o The judges and staff of the Court are diligent in collecting fines and costs at the time of sentencing. 
o The  Court  has  a  closely  monitored  Collection  System  for  delinquent  civil  infractions.  The  goal  of  the  program  is  to  enforce 

outstanding court orders. Since the implementation of the program, the Court has collected in excess of $2 million. The program is 
monitored with extreme efficiency at minimal cost. 

o Cases meeting certain criteria are forwarded to the Michigan Department of Treasury for tax garnishment.    



 

   

EXPENSES, REDUCTI0NS & COURT IMPROVEMENTS 
 

PERSONNEL 

Knowing that employee salaries and benefits account for a substantial portion of Court expenses, the Court has made significant changes over the 
past decade. These changes have set a foundation which will save costs well into the future.   

Building Lease 

The  Court’s  building  lease  was  renewed  in  November  2016.  Court  Administration  invested  time  analyzing  the  building,  as  well  as  assessing 
operational needs in preparation for negotiations with the landlord Bloomfield Township. The majority of the Court building is over 30 years old, 
and the addition to the building is now 20 years old. Functional elements such as the heating and cooling (HVAC), plumbing, electrical and the roof 
have reached or exceeded their useful life. Structural components such as windows, entryways, and the parking lot need repairs and/or replacement. 
Cosmetic upgrades and replacement are needed for carpet, walls and offices due to normal wear and tear. The new lease takes all of these concerns 
into consideration. Given the large number of improvements needed, it  is not financially feasible for the Court to perform all  in one fiscal year. 
Therefore, Bloomfield Township has created a “Building Improvement Fund” for the Court’s needs. The Court will deposit a fixed amount of $44,750 
into the fund annually. Projects will be completed in a chronological order, based on prioritized need and will be subsidized by this account. This 
fixed cost appears in the “Operating Expense” section of the 2021 Budget. 

OPERATION & SECURITY 

The Court has reached a point where maintenance costs for certain aspects of Court operation are exceeding the replacement costs. Recognizing 
that not all of these needs necessarily fall under the scope of the building lease, the Court anticipates investing in these items through the general 
fund. All due diligence is exercised in assessing the Court’s needs, while operating within the budget and maintaining high standards for fulfilling 
the Court’s obligation to the public. Heightened security measures, both inside and outside the building are mandatory to protect the public, judges 
and staff that visit and work within the courthouse. During 2017‐2018, the Court upgraded security cameras and security access by  installing a 
secured parking lot for all Court staff. In 2019, a separate security plan, approved by the funding units in 2018, expanded the Court’s entryway to 
allow for enhanced security checkpoints and additional room for the public to enter and exit the building safely.  The clerical and cashier work areas 
also feature safety glass from counter to ceiling to further enhance security. 

   



 

   

SPECIAL PROGRAMS & SERVICES  
 

 Cost of Prosecution  – The  law allows  for  the Court  to  collect  costs of prosecution  for Operating While  Intoxicated  (OWI)  cases when 
requested by the prosecutor. Once collected, these funds are reimbursed, in full, directly to the appropriate municipality.  

 Restitution – In proceedings involving individual or business victims, the Court collects the restitution from the defendant and forwards it 
to  the  crime  victim.  Since  2010,  the  Court  forwarded  over  $500,000  to  individuals/businesses  who  have  been  victims  of  theft, 
embezzlement, fraud, property destruction, medical injuries, auto damage, etc.  

 OAK.gov Credit Card Processing – The Court utilizes Oakland County’s online services to accept credit card payments both within the 
courthouse and on the Court’s website.  

 Website – The Court’s website, http://48thdistrictcourt.us, is an extremely user‐friendly and informative site. Users are able to easily access 
general information about the Court, as well as print necessary court forms. The Court’s website provides convenient and easy access for 
credit card payments through Oak.gov Credit Card Processing. The website reduces the number of telephone calls received by the clerks 
and reduces the foot traffic inside the courthouse, allowing the clerks to utilize their time more efficiently. 

 WWAM & Community  Service  – Weekend  and Weekday Alternative  for Misdemeanants  –  The WWAM program  is  an  alternative  to 
incarceration where sentenced defendants use their skills to help community groups by performing work on a supervised crew. In addition 
to WWAM, appropriate defendants are sentenced to perform other acts of community service benefiting local non‐profit groups such as 
food banks, soup kitchens, shelters, hospitals, schools, etc. 

 Drug and Alcohol  Intensive Probation Oversight Program – The Court has an  intensive Probation Oversight program for defendants 
suffering with addictions.  The program includes, but is not limited to, referral to intensive treatment facilities, counseling, education, 12‐
step programs, and aggressive testing requirements.  This program is administered to those that have committed alcohol or drug related 
offenses, domestic violence, assault and battery, and other related crimes to ensure the safety of the public and promote rehabilitation of 
the defendant. 

 Serving the Community – In addition to serving as judges at the 48th District Court, each individual judge strives to use the Court as a tool 
to reach into the community and educate our youth helping them to make positive and empowering choices.   Additionally, the judges  host 
an annual “Constitution Day” to educate our middle school students about the Bill of Rights. 



 

   

o Judge Marc Barron presides over the “Teen Court” program, which allows high school students from local schools to take 
an active role in the Court process by handling actual juvenile cases. The students act as lawyers and jurors and decide 
the  penalty  on  juvenile  cases  presented  by  the  Prosecutor’s  Office,  while  Judge  Barron  advises  and  sentences  the 
individual.  

o Judge Diane D’Agostini’ s “Order in the Court” program has hosted thousands of students through field trips to the Court 
where she educates the young visitors about the Court process and making responsible decisions. She also speaks at 
local high schools about the law and penalties in addition to conducting Court at local high schools. 

o Judge Kimberly Small implemented her “Critical Life Choices” and “Cool to be Clean” programs which is conducted at our 
local  middle  schools.    The  programs  are  a  combination  of  real  court  proceedings  and  a  multi‐media  interactive 
presentation designed to help our youth make wise decisions. To date, she has shared her programs with over 20,000 
students.  She also participates in numerous community panels on drug and alcohol use prevention.   



NEW CASES NEW CASES NEW CASES
PROJECTED 

CASES

PROJECTED 

VARIANCE %

Case Type JAN-DEC 2018 JAN-DEC 2019 JAN-SEP 2020 JAN-DEC 2020 2020 V 2019

Traffic Cases (Civil Infractions & 

Misdemeanor Traffic) 28,049 27,129 10,543 14,057 -48.18%

Drunk Driving Cases 422 449 188 251 -44.17%

Criminal & Non-Traffic Cases 1,231 1,366 733 977 -28.45%

Civil Cases 4,729 4,492 2,353 3,137 -30.16%

Total Cases 34,431 33,436 13,817 18,423 -44.90%

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT

 Case Type Activity

Page 1 of 10



NEW CASES NEW CASES NEW CASES
PROJECTED 

CASES

PROJECTED 

VARIANCE %

Community
JAN- DEC 2018 JAN- DEC 2019 JAN-SEP 2020 JAN-DEC 2020 2020 V 2019

Birmingham 8,447 8,822 3,182 4,243 -52%

Bloomfield Hills 2,876 2,965 1,816 2,421 -18%

Bloomfield Township 12,140 11,217 4,173 5,564 -50%

West Bloomfield 6,454 6,066 2,835 3,780 -38%

Keego Harbor 1,343 1,393 512 683 -51%

Orchard Lake 1,791 1,841 700 933 -49%

Sylvan Lake 896 772 333 444 -42%

Other * 484 360 266 355 -1.4%

Total Cases 34,431 33,436 13,817 18,423 -44.90%

*  Other includes, but not limited to, MSP, Animal Control,  Marine Division ,  DNR, OCSD

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT
Case Volume By Community

Page 2 of 10



ACTUAL CASE LOAD ACTUAL CASE LOAD ACTUAL CASE LOAD

Community 2018 2019 Jan- Sep 2020

% % %

Birmingham 28.23% 30.35% 26.50%

Bloomfield Hills 9.61% 10.20% 15.13%

Bloomfield Township 40.58% 38.59% 34.76%

West Bloomfield 21.58% 20.86% 23.61%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Funding Unit Caseload Percentages

Page 3 of 10



2018 2019 2020 2021 VARIANCE %

BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST  2020 VS 2021

Salaries 1,915,032$             1,835,450$             1,800,000$             1,844,000$             2.44%

Judicial Reimbursement * (137,172)$               (137,172)$               (137,172)$               (137,172)$               0.00%

   

Benefits 1,144,400$             1,090,000$             1,063,000$             1,030,000$             -3.10%

Operations 1,295,060$             1,195,760$             1,374,860$             1,389,060$             1.03%

Professional Fees 130,600$                132,500$                171,000$                170,000$                -0.58%

Security & Other Expenses 212,000$                247,500$                197,750$                155,000$                -21.62%

Equipment & Capital 111,000$                190,000$                176,000$                170,000$                -3.41%

Total 4,670,920$             4,554,038$             4,645,438$             4,620,888$             -0.53%

* Judicial salary reimbursement received from the State 

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT

 Budget Expenditure Summary

Page 4 of 10



2018 2019 2020 2021 VARIANCE %

BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST  2020 VS 2021

Defined Contribution 244,800$                240,000$                260,000$                225,000$                -13.46%

Medical Insurance 726,150$                630,000$                575,000$                575,000$                0.00%

Other Post -Employment Benefits (OPEB) 55,000$                   110,000$                110,000$                110,000$                0.00%

Dental, Life, Disability Insurance 118,450$                110,000$                118,000$                120,000$                1.69%

Total 1,144,400$             1,090,000$             1,063,000$             1,030,000$             -3.10%

 Benefit Expense

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Page 5 of 10



2018 2019 2020 2021 VARIANCE %

BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST  2020 VS 2021

Payroll Taxes * 135,000$                -$                         150,000$                153,000$                2.00%

Information Systems 95,000$                   56,200$                   62,500$                   75,000$                   20.00%

Office Supplies 55,000$                   66,000$                   59,300$                   60,000$                   1.18%

Postage 31,000$                   39,000$                   44,000$                   40,000$                   -9.09%

Payroll Processing & Bank Services -$                         25,000$                   22,000$                   20,000$                   -9.09%

Insurance  80,000$                   82,500$                   98,000$                   105,000$                7.14%

Utilities/Telephone 110,000$                113,000$                130,000$                132,000$                1.54%

Rent 584,310$                584,310$                584,310$                584,310$                0.00%

Building Capital Improvement Escrow 44,750$                   44,750$                   44,750$                   44,750$                   0.00%

Building Maintenance & Janitorial 160,000$                185,000$                180,000$                175,000$                -2.78%

Total 1,295,060$             1,195,760$             1,374,860$             1,389,060$             1.03%

* Payroll taxes were erroneously excluded from the original 2019 budget request. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT
 Operating Expenses

Page 6 of 10



2018 2019 2020 2021 VARIANCE %

BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST  2020 VS 2021

Auditors
22,000$                   28,000$                   35,000$                   35,000$                   0.00%

Magistrates
60,000$                   62,000$                   62,000$                   65,000$                   4.84%

Consultants & Other 

Professional Services
48,600$                   42,500$                   74,000$                   70,000$                   -5.41%

Total 130,600$                132,500$                171,000$                170,000$                -0.58%

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Professional Fees

Page 7 of 10



2018 2019 2020 2021 VARIANCE %

BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST  2020 VS 2021

Jury & Witness Fees 12,000$                   8,500$                     8,750$                     7,500$                     -14.29%

MIDC (Michigan Indigent Defense Commission) 65,000$                   70,000$                   17,500$                   17,500$                   0.00%

Library/Dues/Certifications 10,000$                   19,000$                   21,500$                   15,000$                   -30.23%

Court Security Personnel (Deputy Sheriffs) 125,000$                150,000$                150,000$                115,000$                -23.33%

Total 212,000$                247,500$                197,750$                155,000$                -21.62%

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT
STATE OF MICHIGAN

Security & Other Expenses

Page 8 of 10



2018 2019 2020 2021 VARIANCE %

BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST BUDGET REQUEST  2020 VS 2021

20,000$                   -4.76%

25,000$                   -16.67%

125,000$                 0.00%

Total 111,000$                 190,000$                 176,000$                 170,000$                 -3.41%

* Due to Covid-19 pandemic, the Court froze capital improvements for budget year 2020 

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT

 Equipment & Capital Expense

125,000$                 

30,000$                   

11,000$                   20,000$                   21,000$                   

Capital Expenses/Improvements * 

Equipment Maintenance

Equipment Rental

25,000$                   

145,000$                 

25,000$                   

75,000$                   

Page 9 of 10



Birmingham Bloomfield Hills Bloomfield Township West Bloomfield Total

2019 Case Load Percentage 30.35% 10.20% 38.59% 20.86%

1st Qtr. 168,088$             59,885$                   262,930$                             113,053$                   603,956$             

2nd Qtr. 81,182$               36,613$                   100,855$                             39,834$                     258,484$             

3rd Qtr.           90,336$               66,220$                   134,951$                             66,064$                     357,571$             

4th Qtr.

Total of distributions to Funding Units 339,606$             162,718$                 498,736$                             218,951$                   1,220,011$         

Cost of Prosecution Reimbursement $5,851 $1,857 $23,613 $4,050 $35,371
Total Cash Distributions in 2020 through 3rd 

quarter 345,457$             164,575$                 522,349$                             223,001$                   1,255,382

STATE OF MICHIGAN

48th JUDICIAL DISTRICT

CASH DISTRIBUTION - 2020

Page 10 of 10



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
48TH DISTRICT COURT
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FY 2010‐2019

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
REVENUES
    FINES AND COURT COSTS 1,258,383        1,147,391       1,168,187      1,071,498      1,079,208      1,182,646        1,103,218      863,689         713,243         690,486        

OTHER (INTEREST/REIMB) 182,786           13,379             14,801            11,730            12,959            13,427             10,037            12,123            8,884              8,722             

     TOTAL REVENUES 1,441,169        1,160,770       1,182,988      1,083,228      1,092,167      1,196,073        1,113,255      875,812         722,127         699,208        

EXPENDITURES (1,468,900)       (1,232,846)      (1,255,859)     (1,079,148)     (1,059,427)     (1,175,413)       (1,158,375)     (917,452)        (685,731)        (675,818)       

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (27,731)            (72,076)           (72,871)          4,080              32,740            20,660             (45,120)          (41,640)          36,396            23,390           

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Police Department 

DATE: November 18, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 

SUBJECT: Reduced Rate Parking  

INTRODUCTION: 
By previous resolution on August 24, 2020, the City Commission, as recommended by the 
Advisory parking Committee (APC), passed a recommendation that all parking in the City’s (5) 
parking structures would be free through December 31, 2020.  The resolution also provided 
that all monthly permit holders be charged a one-time fee of $100.00 to retain their status as a 
monthly permit holder into 2021.  As the end of the year approaches, the issue of parking in all 
(5) City decks needs to be reexamined.    

BACKGROUND: 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the City instituted free parking for all (5) parking decks 
effective April 1, 2020 as a relief effort to support local businesses and restaurants.  At the 
August 5, 2020 Advisory Parking Committee (APC) meeting, the APC recommended that the 
City continue free parking at all (5) parking decks through December 31, 2020.  On August 24, 
the City Commission agreed with the APC and passed a resolution providing free parking in all 
(5) parking decks through December 31, 2020.  

As the end of the year is approaching, the APC again examined the issue of parking in all (5) 
parking decks at their November 4, 2020 meeting.   The APC discussed several options and passed 
a recommendation to extend free parking until the end of March.  They noted concerns in lost 
revenue, reduced store hours, holiday shopping and traditionally low sales in the months of 
January, February and March as reasons to extend free parking. (see attached minutes) 

To compare financial reports, the police department reviewed August of 2019 compared to 
August 2020.  In 2019, there was $514,280 in revenue, operating costs of $133,290 for a 
net revenue of $380,990.  This August, there was essentially no revenue.  However, there 
are still operating costs associated with the structures, which have been reduced by SP+ 
limiting their operations.  Operating costs for August was $66,844. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
No review completed. 

7D



2 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The City has not charged for monthly or transient parking in the structures since April 1, 
2020.  The unrestricted net assets of the parking fund totaled $20,632,305 as of April 1, 
2020.  During this time, several capital improvements have been completed totaling 
$1,457,996.  The parking fund balance as of September 30, 2020 was $19,256,606.  A 
reduction of $1,375,699. 
 
It is difficult to estimate exactly how much revenue would be lost to continue free parking 
due to the unknown usage at this time.  Most structures are operating at less than 30% daily 
capacity.  There is no way to track who is using the structure (transient or monthly parkers) 
to calculate fees that may be collected.  However, attached is the Parking Structures – 
Combined Income Statement that shows revenue, expenses and net profit/loss from July of 
2019 through September of 2020.   
 
In January, February and March of this year, before free parking began, the average total 
income per month was $395,328.00.  Assuming current occupancy is 30%, we can estimate 
$118,598 per month of total income.  Over the last three months, with reduced staff, the 
average expenses are $69,082 per month.  This could result in a net profit of $148,548 over 
these three months if the estimates are accurate. 
 
To continue free parking for January, February and March, the City could estimate a cost of 
$154,273 to cover expenses based on the average cost of June through September of this year. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Due to the Covid-19 Pandemic, the City instituted free parking in all structures which began on  
April 1, 2020.  In August, the City Commission passed a resolution to continue free parking 
through the end of 2020.  As 2021 approaches, the APC again reviewed the matter and passed a 
recommendation that free parking continue through March 31, 2021.  See attached minutes from 
the APC meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. August 24, 2020 Memo to Commission – Reduced Rate Parking 
2. Minutes from the August 24, 2020 City Commission Meeting 
3. October 28, 2020 Memo to APC – Reduced Rate Parking 
4. Minutes from the November 4, 2020 APC Meeting 
5. Parking Structures – Combined Income Statement 

 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve the continuation of free parking in all structures through March 31, 2021. 













































1 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: November 13, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Off-Season Outdoor Dining Standards 

INTRODUCTION:  
As we continue to struggle with the challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic with no end in sight, 
the City has provided options to assist restaurants throughout the fall and winter seasons by 
allowing temporary enclosed “outdoor dining” space to allow indoor seats lost to be provided 
outdoors in temporary enclosures or other structures through April 1, 2021.   

At the City Commission meeting on November 9, 2020, staff was directed to prepare draft 
ordinance language to permit enclosed “outdoor dining” areas in the off season (November 15 – 
March 31) on a permanent basis in the future. 

BACKGROUND: 
On May 11, 2020, the City Commission adopted several resolutions to provide temporary 
assistance to business owners navigating the COVID-19 Pandemic and social distancing 
guidelines.  The City approved the waiver of many fees, made changes to existing policies to 
assist businesses during the pandemic, and adopted temporary resolutions to allow for expanded 
outdoor dining and temporary uses outdoors through September 8, 2020.   

On June 8, 2020, the City Commission rescinded the previous resolution on outdoor dining and 
adopted a new resolution to expand outdoor dining in light of new Executive Orders from the 
Governor, and temporary licensing changes approved by the Michigan Liquor Licensing 
Commission (“MLCC”) with regards to a new limited term outdoor service area program for 
establishments serving alcoholic beverages through October 31, 2020.  The 2020 Limited 
Permanent Outdoor Service Permission Application allows restaurants to provide or expand 
outdoor seating areas temporarily to accommodate social distancing guidelines and assist 
businesses through the pandemic. 

On August 24, 2020, the City Commission also added another option to assist restaurants 
throughout the fall and winter seasons by allowing temporary enclosed “outdoor dining” space 
during the off-season to allow indoor restaurant seats lost to be provided outdoors in temporary 
enclosures or other structures from October 1, 2020 through April 1, 2021.  This resolution was 
intended to provide “outdoor dining” options during the off-season and was proposed in addition 
to the resolution adopted by the City Commission on June 8, 2020 that provided temporary 
expanded outdoor dining. 

7E



2 
 
 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the attached resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Not applicable. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
City staff has met with restauranteurs to discuss their concerns during the COVID Pandemic, and 
previously sent out a survey to garner input from restaurants as to their needs during re-opening.  
The City sent out a second survey this summer to restaurant owners and operators to understand 
their needs and concerns to continue operations through the fall and winter seasons should the 
pandemic continue to challenge normal operations.  Ongoing communication has continued on a 
daily basis. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Should the City Commission wish to amend the Off Season Outdoor Dining Standards to allow 
enclosed outdoor dining to continue into future years after the 2020/2021 winter season, the 
proposed amendments may be directed to the Planning Board for their review and 
recommendation.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• DRAFT Off-Season Outdoor Dining Standards  
 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To direct the proposed ordinance amendments Chapter 126, Zoning, Article 4, Section 4.44 to 
the Planning Board for their review and recommendation. 
 
  



3 
 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

ORDINANCE NO.________ 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 126, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
BIRMINGHAM: 

TO AMEND ARTICLE 4, SECTION 4.44 OUTDOOR DINING STANDARDS, TO ALLOW FOR 
ENCLOSED, OFF SEASON OUTDOOR DINING BETWEEN NOVEMBER 15 AND MARCH 31 OF EACH 
YEAR.   

Article 4, Section 4.44 

This Outdoor Dining Standards section applies to the following districts: 
 

 
 
The following outdoor dining standards apply: 
 
A. Outdoor Dining: Outdoor dining is permitted immediately next to the principal use, 

subject to Site Plan Review, and the following conditions: 
1. Outdoor dining areas shall provide and service refuse containers within 

the outdoor dining area and maintain the area in good order. 
2. All outdoor activity must cease at the close of business or as noted in subsection 

3 below. 
3. When an outdoor dining area is immediately adjacent to any single-family or 

multiple-family residential district, all outdoor activity must cease at the close of 
business or 10:00 p.m., whichever is earlier. 

4. Outdoor dining may be permitted on the sidewalk throughout the year with a 
valid Outdoor Dining License, provided that all outdoor dining fixtures and 
furnishings must be stored indoors each night between November 16 and March 
31 to allow for snow removal. 

4.Outdoor dining may be permitted April 1 through November 15 (in 
season) of each year with a valid Outdoor Dining License.  Outdoor 
dining may be permitted November 15 through March 31 (off season) 
of each year with a valid Off Season Outdoor Dining License. 

5. All tables and chairs provided in the outdoor dining area shall be constructed 
primarily of metal, wood, or material of comparable quality. 

6. Table umbrellas shall be considered under Site Plan Review and shall not impede 
sight lines into a retail establishment, pedestrian flow in the outdoor dining area, 
or pedestrian or vehicular traffic flow outside the outdoor dining area. 

7. For outdoor dining located in the public right-of-way: 
a. All such uses shall be subject to a license from the city, upon forms 

provided by the Community Development Department, contingent on 
compliance with all city codes, including any conditions required by the 
Planning Board in conjunction with Site Plan approval. 

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-19
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=649
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=614
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=495
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-20
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-21
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-22
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-23
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-24
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-25
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-16
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-17
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-viewer.aspx#catid-27


4 
 
 

b. In order to safeguard the flow of pedestrians on the public sidewalk, such 
uses shall maintain an unobstructed sidewalk width as required by the 
Planning Board, but in no case less than 5 feet. 

c. Outdoor dining is permitted to extend in the right-of-way in front of 
neighboring properties, with the written permission of the property 
owner(s) and with Planning Board approval, if such property is vacant or 
the first floor storefront(s) is/are vacant. Outdoor dining areas may extend 
up to 50% of the width of the neighboring lot(s) storefront(s), or up to 
50% of the lot(s) frontage, if such lot is vacant. 

d. City Commission approval is also required for outdoor dining extensions 
onto neighboring property if the establishment making such a request 
holds a bistro license. 

e. An elevated, ADA compliant, enclosed platform may be erected on 
the street in front of an eating establishment to create an outdoor 
dining area from April 1 through November 15 only if the Engineering 
Department determines there is sufficient space available for this purpose 
given parking and traffic conditions. 

f. No such facility shall erect or install permanent fixtures in the public right-
of-way. 

8. Outdoor dining is permitted in a B1 District at a rate of 4 seats for every 12 linear 
feet of store frontage, with no more than 12 seats total per building; no elevated 
enclosed platforms on the street are permitted in a B1 District. 

9. Off season outdoor dining areas not located within a roadway or on 
street parking area may be enclosed during the off season only, 
provided the following requirements are met: 

a. All structures enclosing outdoor dining areas must be 
constructed and inspected under a valid building permit; 

b. All materials utilized to enclose an outdoor dining area must be 
flame resistant, and the certificate for same must be posted 
onsite; 

c. Aisle widths within outdoor dining enclosures must be a 
minimum width of 36” for up to 10 occupants, and 44” for more 
than 10 occupants; 

d. No smoking signs must be posted within outdoor dining 
enclosures; 

e. No open flame or other devices emitting flame, or fire are 
permitted in any outdoor dining enclosures; 

f. Cooking devices shall not be permitted inside or within 20’ of 
outdoor dining enclosures; 

g. All exit openings shall be egress compliant, and clearly marked 
and illuminated within outdoor dining enclosures; 

h. Two means of egress must be provided for outdoor dining 
enclosures with occupant loads between 10 and 199 people, 
and be spaced at approximately equal intervals around the 
perimeter of the structure; 

i. Heating equipment utilized in outdoor dining enclosures must 
be listed and approved for indoor use, and comply with the 
International Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code, the 

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=629
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=563
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=472
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=631
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=601
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/birmingham-mi/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=475


5 
 
 

International Mechanical Code, and be approved by the Fire 
Marshal and Mechanical Inspector; 

j. Heating equipment for outdoor dining enclosures shall not be 
located within 10 feet of exits and must be installed per the 
manufacturer’s recommendations including clearance to 
combustibles; 

k. LP-Gas cannot be stored inside the outdoor dining enclosure or 
adjacent buildings; 

l. Portable fire extinguishers with a minimum rating of 2A, 10BC 
and carbon monoxide detectors shall be installed inside all 
outdoor dining enclosures; 

m. Clear Fire Department access must be maintained around all 
outdoor dining enclosures, including unobstructed access to 
fire hydrants and connections on building;  and 

n. The holder of the Off Season Outdoor Dining License is 
responsible for salting, snow clearing and removal during all 
snow events, on and around the outdoor dining enclosure for 
the entire storefront width; 

 
 
ORDAINED this ________ day of ____________, 2020 to become effective upon publication. 
 
_________________________________ 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor 
 
_________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Appointee 
 



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

DATE: November 13, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: First Quarter Financial Reports 

Background 
Chapter 7, section 3(b) of the City charter requires the Director of Finance to report on the 
condition of the City quarterly.  Quarterly reports are prepared for the first 3 quarters of the year 
with the annual audit serving as the 4th quarter report.  Only the following funds are reported 
quarterly because by state law they require a budget:  General Fund, Greenwood Cemetery 
Perpetual Care Fund, Major and Local Street Funds, Solid Waste Fund, Community Development 
Block Grant Fund, Law and Drug Enforcement Fund, Baldwin Public Library Fund, Principal 
Shopping District Fund, Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund, Triangle District Corridor 
Improvement Authority Fund, and the Debt Service Fund.   

Overview 
Attached is the first quarter 2020-2021 fiscal year financial reports.  The reports compare budget 
to actual for the current fiscal year and the prior fiscal year for the same quarter.  This allows 
comparisons between fiscal years as well as percentage of budget received/spent for the year.  
The budget categories used for each fund are the same ones approved by the Commission when 
they adopted the budget.  Budget discussions that follow will focus on each fund individually. 

At this point, 25% of the fiscal year has lapsed. 

General Fund 
Revenues are approximately $760,000 higher than the previous year as a result of an increase 
tax revenue of approximately $867,000 and an increase in grant revenue of $199,000.  This was 
the result of an increase in taxable value and COVID related grant revenue.  These revenue 
increases were partially offset by a decrease in charges for services of $231,000 and fines and 
forfeitures of $123,000.  The decrease in charges for services is mostly related to a timing 
difference for receipt of dispatch services along with revenue lost due to COVID restrictions on 
special events and ice arena operations.  The decrease in fines and forfeitures are due to a 
decrease in parking ticket revenue and a decrease in 48th District Court revenue. 

Total current year-to-date expenditures for the General Fund are higher than the prior year by 
approximately $637,000, or 7%.  Most functional areas are reasonable compared to the prior 
year.  Engineering and Public Services is approximately $357,000 higher than the prior year due 
to sidewalk construction costs.  Public safety is approximately $289,000 higher than the prior year 
due to the purchase of body cameras, hazard pay, and fire over-time costs.  Transfers Out is over 
25% of budget as a result of 2 quarterly payments made to the 48th District Court in this quarter. 

10E1



2 

 
 

Greenwood Cemetery Fund 
Cemetery plot sales are received on a monthly basis in fiscal year 2020-2021 and quarterly basis 
at the start of fiscal year 2019-2020.  Quarterly revenue from cemetery plot sales in 2019-2020 
was not received until after September 30th.  No expenditures have been made so far this fiscal 
year. 
   
Major Street Fund 
Total revenues are approximately $158,000 less than the prior year as a result of lower budgeted 
transfers from the General Fund.  Intergovernmental revenue is higher due to timing of an MDOT 
payment. 
 
Overall expenditures are $382,000 higher than the previous year as a result of the Maple Road 
project.  Maintenance costs are lower due to street light painting in the prior year.     
 
Local Street Fund 
Total revenues for the year are approximately $189,000 higher than the prior year due to higher 
budgeted transfers from the General Fund and timing of an MDOT payment. 
 
Total expenditures are approximately $894,000 less than the prior year mainly as a result of 
higher construction expenditures of $797,000 as a result of street work in the Quarton Lake area 
in the prior year.   
  
Solid Waste Fund 
Revenues are approximately $104,000 higher than the previous year as a result of higher property 
tax revenue.  
 
Expenditures are approximately the same as the prior fiscal year.   
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund 
Revenues are approximately the same as the prior year. 
 
No expenditures for fiscal year 2020-2021 have been recorded in the first quarter due to the 
timing of developer reimbursements.  These were paid in October 2020.   
  
Principal Shopping District 
Both revenues and expenditures are slightly lower than the prior fiscal year due to fewer special 
events.   
 
Community Development Block Grant Fund 
No CDBG expenditures have been recorded in the first quarter.     
 
Triangle District Corridor Improvement Authority 
Development opportunities are ongoing with private land owners and developers in the Triangle 
District. 
 
Law and Drug Enforcement Fund 
Expenditures are higher in the prior fiscal year as a result of the purchase of the Watchguard 
video system for the patrol vehicles. 



3 

 
 

  
 
Baldwin Library 
Revenue has increased approximately $320,000.  This is the result of an increase in the property 
tax revenue and the timing of a payment from a contract municipality. 
 
Expenditures are approximately the same as the prior fiscal year.  Expenditures are at 28% due 
to finishing building improvements.  
 
Debt Service Fund 
Revenues and expenditures are slightly lower as a result of scheduled debt service costs for the 
year compared to the previous year.  Expenditures are at 94% spent for the year as a result of 
making a principal payment in August.   



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE 2,975,528             -                        0% 2,704,512             -                       0%

TAXES 26,948,810           26,909,251         100% 26,114,630           26,042,075         100%

LICENSES AND PERMITS 2,774,960             730,313               26% 3,053,720             593,885              19%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 2,165,630             274,557               13% 2,157,650             75,839                 4%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 3,322,020             499,429               15% 3,414,670             730,323              21%

FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,799,110             195,066               11% 1,776,140             317,696              18%

INTEREST AND RENT 647,690                72,178                 11% 621,090                107,200              17%

OTHER REVENUE 571,730                17,060                 3% 418,820                45,604                 11%

TRANSFERS IN 100,000                25,000                 25% 200,000                50,000                 25%

TOTAL REVENUES 41,305,478           28,722,854         70% 40,461,232           27,962,622         69%

EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 6,751,376             1,303,786           19% 6,081,847             1,225,777           20%

PUBLIC SAFETY 14,826,370           3,457,159           23% 14,410,218           3,168,299           22%

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 3,202,127             579,169               18% 3,345,835             669,562              20%

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC SERVICES 8,112,021             1,558,281           19% 8,573,743             1,201,318           14%

TRANSFERS OUT 8,413,550             2,393,204           28% 7,819,879             2,389,941           31%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 41,305,445           9,291,599           22% 40,231,522           8,654,897           22%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

GENERAL FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



2020-2021 2019-2020

AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE (62,000)                 -                         0% (76,800)                 -                         

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 60,000 18,104 30% 80,000                   -                         

INTEREST AND RENT 22,000 5,240 24% 16,800                   5,169                     

TRANSFERS IN -                         -                         0% -                         -                         

  TOTAL Revenues 20,000                   23,344                   117% 20,000                   5,169                     

EXPENDITURES:

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC SERVICES 20,000                   -                         0% 20,000                   -                         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                         -                         -                         -                         

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

GREENWOOD CEMETERY FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



% OF BUDGET

USED

0%

0%

31%

0%

26%

0%

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

GREENWOOD CEMETERY FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE 2,856,004 0 0% 2,815,400 0 0%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,641,450 300,025 18% 1,457,100 144,443 10%

INTEREST AND RENT 43,500 12,036 28% 40,950 13,644 33%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

TRANSFERS IN 2,000,000             500,000               25% 2,746,000             811,500              30%

TOTAL REVENUES 6,540,954             812,061               12% 7,059,450             969,586              14%

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE 20,900 5,139 25% 20,510                   5,003                   24%

TRAFFIC CONTROLS & ENGINEERING 628,967 150,450 24% 906,609                33,656                 4%

CONSTRUCTION OF ROADS & BRIDGES 4,623,772             647,889               14% 4,984,101             319,096              6%

MAINTENANCE OF ROADS & BRIDGES 488,010 40,284 8% 416,989                108,517              26%

STREET CLEANING 219,590 42,057 19% 163,170                43,658                 27%

STREET TREES 271,205 56,177 21% 266,271                50,647                 19%

SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL 288,510                12,245                 4% 301,800                11,504                 4%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,540,954             954,241               15% 7,059,450             572,081              8%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

MAJOR STREETS

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE (378,303) -                        0% 1,679,975 0 0%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 670,450 121,919 18% 592,300 58,698 10%

INTEREST AND RENT 29,600 2,606 9% 26,460 10,603 40%

OTHER REVENUE 197,460                16,969                 9% 395,120 8,323 2%

TRANSFERS IN 3,000,000             750,000               25% 2,000,000             625,000              31%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,519,207             891,494               25% 4,693,855             702,624              15%

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE 29,490 7,294 25% 28,980                   7,120                   25%

TRAFFIC CONTROLS & ENGINEERING 65,300 13,490 21% 70,790                   17,300                 24%

CONSTRUCTION OF ROADS & BRIDGES 1,501,808 53,848 4% 1,626,103             851,733              52%

MAINTENANCE OF ROADS & BRIDGES 940,017 124,841 13% 1,163,443             242,972              21%

STREET CLEANING 253,330 52,772 21% 186,190                45,852                 25%

STREET TREES 552,732 138,248 25% 528,299                119,450              23%

SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL 176,530                9,575                   5% 170,030                9,678                   6%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,519,207             400,068               11% 3,773,835             1,294,105           34%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

LOCAL STREETS

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE 202,233 0 0% 95,840                   -                       0%

TAXES 2,042,500 2,047,012 100% 1,935,000             1,939,919           100%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 4,110 0 0% 4,200                     -                       0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 17,000 4,377 26% 18,000                   4,384                   24%

INTEREST AND RENT 30,000 2,368 8% 31,820                   5,285                   17%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                        0% -                         78                         0%

TOTAL REVENUES 2,295,843             2,053,757           89% 2,084,860             1,949,666           94%

EXPENDITURES:

PERSONNEL COSTS 190,050 18,691 10% 187,380                22,924                 12%

SUPPLIES 28,000 735 3% 12,000                   908                      8%

OTHER CHARGES 2,077,793 374,353 18% 1,869,480             358,397              19%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                         -                        0% 16,000                   4,762                   30%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,295,843             393,779               17% 2,084,860             386,991              19%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

SOLID WASTE

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE (2,000)                    -                        0% 7,500                     -                       0%

TAXES 287,300 264,870 92% 264,870                264,870              100%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES -                         -                        0% 1,500                     -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 2,000 45 2% 11,340                   494                      4%

OTHER REVENUE 20,000                   -                        0% 20,000                   -                       0%

TRANSFERS IN -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

TOTAL REVENUES 307,300                264,915               86% 305,210                265,364              87%

EXPENDITURES 307,300                -                        0% 299,280                237,890              79%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE 47,280 -                        0% 113,700                -                       0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 25,000 -                        0% 150,000                -                       0%

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 1,054,970             -                        0% 1,054,970             1,040                   0%

INTEREST AND RENT 13,700                   2,445 18% 13,700                   2,154                   16%

OTHER REVENUE 190,000                6,151                   3% 190,000                48,382                 25%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,330,950             8,596                   1% 1,522,370             51,576                 3%

EXPENDITURES 1,330,950             213,380               16% 1,522,370             322,154              21%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 36,100                   -                        0% 57,299                   750                      1%

EXPENDITURES 36,100                   -                        0% 57,299                   11,350                 20%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE (470)                       -                        0% (470)                       -                       0%

PROPERTY TAXES -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 470                        49                         10% 470                        70                         15%

TOTAL REVENUES -                         49                         0% -                         70                         0%

EXPENDITURES -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

TRIANGLE DISTRICT CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE (681,410) -                        0% 1,677,170             -                       0%

TAXES 3,541,640 3,532,041           100% 3,370,950             3,385,810           100%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,050,320 205,282               20% 1,029,190             -                       0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 62,800 190                       0% 81,150                   19,705                 24%

INTEREST AND RENT 52,000                   3,643                   7% 52,290                   11,370                 22%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

TOTAL REVENUES 4,025,350             3,741,156           93% 6,210,750             3,416,885           55%

EXPENDITURES 4,025,350             1,138,370           28% 6,210,750             1,212,437           20%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

BALDWIN LIBRARY

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE (23,460)                 -                        0% 61,760                   -                       0%

FINES & FORFEITURES 25,000                   -                        0% 35,000                   -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 1,300                     234                       18% 1,100                     557                      51%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

TOTAL REVENUES 2,840                     234                       8% 97,860                   557                      1%

EXPENDITURES:

PUBLIC SAFETY 2,840                     -                        0% -                         -                       0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                         -                        0% 97,860                   97,854                 100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,840                     -                        0% 97,860                   97,854                 100%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

LAW & DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF (CONTRIB. TO) FUND BALANCE (5,500)                    -                        0% (5,850)                    -                       0%

TAXES 1,548,450 1,547,312 100% 1,609,500             1,609,433           100%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 3,300 0 0% 3,660                     -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 3,000                     76                         3% 2,990                     3,054                   102%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,549,250             1,547,388           100% 1,610,300             1,612,487           100%

EXPENDITURES 1,549,250             1,458,500           94% 1,610,300             1,506,000           94%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

DEBT SERVICE FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  25%



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

DATE: November 13, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: September 2020 Investment Report 

Public Act 213 of 2007 requires investment reporting on the City’s general investments to be 
provided to the City Commission on a quarterly basis.  This information is also required to be 
provided annually, which the City has and will continue to include within the audited financial 
statements. 

General investments of the City are governed by state law and the City’s General Investment 
Policy approved by the City Commission.  The services of an outside investment advisor are 
utilized to assist the treasurer in determining which types of investments are most appropriate 
and permitted under the investment policy, maximize the return on the City’s investments within 
investment policy constraints and provide for cash flow needs.  

The two primary objectives for investment of City funds are the preservation of principal and 
liquidity to protect against losses and provide sufficient funds to enable the City to meet all 
operating requirements that might be reasonably anticipated. Investment activities include all City 
funds except the retirement and retiree health-care funds as follows: 

 General Fund

 Permanent Funds
 Special Revenue Funds
 Capital Projects Fund
 Enterprise Funds
 Debt Service Funds
 Component Unit Funds
 Internal Service Funds

Overall, the City has $104.4 million invested in various securities according to its general 
investment policy as of September 30, 2020.   

The City has two pooled funds (CLASS Pool and J-Fund), which are used to meet payroll, 
contractor and other accounts payable needs.  As indicated on the attached schedule, there is 
approximately $16.1 million invested in pooled funds at the end of September.  A maximum of 
50% of the portfolio may be invested in pooled funds that meet state guidelines.  The amount 
currently invested in pooled funds is 15%.     

10E2



2 

 
 

The City also holds approximately $34.4 million, or 33%, of its investments in treasury notes and 
bills, which are obligations of the United States. The maximum amount of investments that may 
be held in government securities is 100%. 
 
Investments in federal agencies total approximately $53.9 million, or 52%, of the City’s 
investments.  The maximum amount of the portfolio that may be invested in federal agencies is 
75%. 
 
The Investment Policy requires that the average maturity of the portfolio may not exceed two 
and one-half years.  The current average maturity of the portfolio is 1.5 years.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                     CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
                                               GENERAL INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

9/30/2020

MATURITY CURRENT YEARLY % OF

YEAR DATE DESCRIPTION % YIELD * ISSUER PAR VALUE COST MARKET VALUE TOTAL TOTAL

2020 9/30/2020 CLASS POOL 0.111% CITY MICHIGAN CLASS 2,157,735.94 2,157,735.94 2,157,735.94

9/30/2020 J FUND 0.021% CITY COMERICA BANK 13,949,190.75 13,949,190.75 13,949,190.75

10/26/2020 AGENCY 1.762% INSIGHT FFCB 1,500,000.00 1,499,490.00 1,501,785.00

11/30/2020 AGENCY 1.224% INSIGHT FNMA 2,000,000.00 2,021,902.00 2,004,580.00

12/31/2020 TR NOTE 1.601% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,507,382.81 1,506,045.00

21,119,336.69 20.23%

2021 1/12/2021 TR NOTE 0.093% INSiGHT U.S. 2,500,000.00 2,499,296.04 2,499,475.00

1/21/2021 AGENCY 1.720% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,000,000.00 999,800.00 1,003,750.00

2/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.856% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,043,121.51 2,026,100.00

2/23/2021 AGENCY 2.791% INSIGHT FFCB 2,000,000.00 1,995,800.00 2,020,200.00

3/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.754% INSIGHT U.S. 1,175,000.00 1,165,315.43 1,187,114.25

3/25/2021 TR BILL 0.102% INSIGHT U.S. 2,500,000.00 2,498,717.92 2,498,700.00

5/7/2021 AGENCY 0.500% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,740.00

5/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.829% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,510,610.49 1,528,125.00

5/15/2021 TR NOTE 1.695% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,521,152.34 1,523,265.00

6/15/2021 TR NOTE 1.704% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,523,090.96 1,526,490.00

7/15/2021 TR NOTE 1.693% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,524,497.21 1,529,535.00

9/29/2021 AGENCY 0.300% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,497,675.00

9/10/2021 AGENCY 3.030% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,498,830.00 1,540,335.00

10/12/2021 AGENCY 3.003% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,499,955.00 1,544,220.00

11/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.438% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,022,421.88 2,061,400.00

12/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.469% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,008,444.20 2,059,840.00

27,046,964.25 25.91%

2022 1/5/2022 AGENCY 1.533% INSIGHT FNMA 2,000,000.00 2,021,480.00 2,047,680.00

1/13/2022 AGENCY 2.209% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,000,000.00 1,004,248.61 1,028,870.00

1/13/2022 AGENCY 1.655% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,524,093.00 1,543,305.00

3/11/2022 AGENCY 2.433% INSIGHT FHLB 1,000,000.00 1,001,850.00 1,033,940.00

3/14/2022 AGENCY 1.932% INSIGHT FFCB 1,000,000.00 997,830.00 1,024,510.00

3/31/2022 TR NOTE 0.137% INSIIGHT U.S. 2,500,000.00 2,508,984.38 2,509,075.00

3/28/2022 AGENCY 0.450% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,497,405.00

4/15/2022 TR NOTE 0.134% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,065,241.08 2,065,320.00

6/10/2022 AGENCY 1.882% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,510,635.00 1,555,026.20

6/10/2022 AGENCY 1.930% INSIGHT FHLB 2,000,000.00 2,011,248.00 2,061,313.80

8/5/2022 AGENCY 1.497% INSIGHT FFCB 2,000,000.00 2,020,180.00 2,062,040.00

8/19/2022 AGENCY 0.450% INSIGHT FNMA 2,000,000.00 1,999,500.00 2,001,780.00

9/9/2022 AGENCY 1.613% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,516,588.50 1,554,270.00

9/30/2022 AGENCY 0.390% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,499,025.00 1,496,475.00

10/13/2022 AGENCY 1.549% INSIGHT FFCB 1,500,000.00 1,502,076.00 1,543,395.00

10/31/2022 TR NOTE 1.854% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,506,977.68 1,558,305.00

26,582,710.00 25.47%

2023 1/19/2023 AGENCY 1.617% INSIGHT FNMA 2,500,000.00 2,558,475.00 2,622,625.00

2/17/2023 AGENCY 0.192% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,542,361.50 1,542,045.00

2/21/2023 AGENCY 1.491% INSIGHT FFCB 2,000,000.00 2,004,653.94 2,064,660.00

3/31/2023 TR NOTE 1.421% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,556,430.81 1,588,365.00

5/15/2023 TR NOTE 1.578% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,509,028.46 1,562,985.00

6/19/2023 AGENCY 1.851% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,550,467.50 1,601,400.00

6/26/2023 AGENCY 0.233% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,705.00 1,501,350.00

9/8/2023 AGENCY 1.466% INSIGHT FHLB 2,000,000.00 2,070,800.00 2,124,420.00

9/12/2023 AGENCY 1.591% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,573,410.00 1,616,685.00

10/31/2023 TR NOTE 1.423% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,587,954.24 1,624,800.00

11/15/2023 TR NOTE 1.572% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,570,258.93 1,620,585.00

19,469,920.00 18.65%

2024 2/5/2004 AGENCY 1.572% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,558,201.50 1,612,560.00

2/29/2024 TR NOTE 1.637% INSIGHT U.S. 1,750,000.00 1,785,621.10 1,866,007.50

7/2/2024 AGENCY 1.719% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,502,037.00 1,583,160.00

9/13/2024 AGENCY 1.729% INSIGHT FHLB 1,750,000.00 1,843,345.00 1,934,782.50

6,996,510.00 6.70%

2025 1/7/2025 AGENCY 0.362% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,580,434.50 1,580,655.00

2/12/2025 AGENCY 0.344% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,575,136.50 1,574,370.00

3,155,025.00 3.02%

1.232% 101,781,926.69 103,006,032.71 104,370,465.94 104,370,465.94 100.00%

AVERAGE MATURITY (YEARS): 1.46

POOLS $16,106,926.69 15.43%

COM'L PAPER $0.00 0.00%

TR BILL $4,998,175.00 4.79%

TR NOTES $29,343,356.75 28.11%

AGENCIES $53,922,007.50 51.66%

   TOTAL $104,370,465.94 100.00%

COMPARATIVE RETURNS

City Portfolio 1-Yr TR 2-Yr TR

Current Month 1.23% 0.12% 0.12% * INSIGHT: $88,263,539.25 84.57%

Previous Month 1.00% 0.12% 0.12% *ASSIGNED TO CITY: $16,106,926.69 15.43%
1 Year Ago 2.01% 1.80% 1.56% $104,370,465.94 100.00%

20.23%

25.91% 25.47%

18.65%

6.70%

3.02%

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15

0.20

0.25

0.30

2020                2021               2022                  2023                2024                2025                    

TOTAL INVESTMENTS PER YEAR

15.43%

0.00%

4.79%

28.11%

51.66%

ASSET MIX

POOLS

COM'L PAPER

TR BILL

TR NOTES

AGENCIES

copies:

Treasury

Finance Director/Treasurer

Finance

Audit

Deputy Treasurer

Cutwater Asset Management



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Police Department 

DATE: November 17, 2020 

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 

SUBJECT: Parking System Update   

A memo dated October 19, 2020 provided a status update regarding the resignation of the 
Assistant City Manager and the management of the parking structures.  That memo identified 
several areas of concern that have since been corrected (see attached memo).  This 
memorandum provides you and the City Commission with a current update on the status of the 
parking system. 

PARKING GARAGE PAYMENT SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS (RFP) 
At the August 19, 2020 Advisory Parking Committee (APC) meeting, the committee approved a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) to upgrade the existing payment systems.  Shortly thereafter, the 
Asst. City Manager, who issued the RFP, resigned her position with the City. 

There are currently 23 Skidata machines in operation at the five municipal garages in downtown 
Birmingham. Eleven (11) of the machines are used at the entrance gates, twelve (12) machines 
are used at the exit gates.  According to SP+, this equipment, which could use technological 
updates, is operating without any issues at this time. 

Additionally, the City Commission requested a consultant be retained to conduct an assessment 
of the management of the entire parking system.  Based on the resignation of the Asst. City 
Manager, pending management assessment and the reliability of the current equipment, it was 
determined the RFP would be cancelled.  It was determined this project would be revisited once 
the management assessment was completed.  However, at the October 26, 2020 City Commission 
meeting, the Commission discussed the Parking Management Study Agreement and decided to 
take no action at this time. 

A future APC agenda item will be to examine putting out an RFP for an outside consultant to 
advise the APC and the Commission on the best technology available for the parking structures. 

STATUS OF MONTHLY PERMIT PARKING 
At the August 24, 2020 City Commission meeting, a resolution was passed that continued free 
parking in the structures through the end of the year.  This relief program began on April 1, 2020 
due to the Covid-19 pandemic.  As part of this resolution, the Commission also passed an initiative 
for monthly pass holders requiring a one-time $100 payment to retain their status as a monthly 
permit holder. 

10E3



2 
 
 

Monthly permit holders were contacted and advised they had until November 30th to pay the $100 
fee to retain their permit into 2021.  To date 251 permits have been given up.  There are now 
325 available parking permits and 3,687 on the waiting list system wide.  There are currently 638 
accounts for monthly permits (some are companies with multiple passes), 104 accounts are still 
outstanding and need to pay the fee or turn in their passes.  As this process continues, those on 
the waiting list will be contacted to determine if they would like a pass or wish to be removed 
from the list.  Anyone on the list that chooses to take a pass will be required to pay the $100 fee 
to retain that pass.  
 
At the November 4, 2020 APC meeting, a recommendation to continue free parking through March 
31, 2020 was passed.  This recommendation will be presented to the City Commission. 
 
PARKING FUND BALANCE 
To review the impact of free parking, the police department compared parking data from 
August of 2019 to August of 2020.  In 2019, there was $514,280 in revenue, operating costs 
of $133,290 for a net revenue of $380,990.  This August, there was essentially no revenue.  
However, there are still operating costs associated with the structures, which have been 
reduced by SP+ limiting their operations.  Operating costs for this August was $66,844 which 
was paid to SP+ by the City as there was no revenue to cover the costs.  
 
The unrestricted net assets of the parking fund totaled $20,632,305 as of April 1, 2020 when 
free parking began.  During this time, several capital improvements have been completed 
totaling $1,457,996.  The parking fund balance as of September 30, 2020 was $19,256,606.  
A reduction of $1,375,699.  Current reserves are expected to be used for capital 
improvements based on the pending WJE assessment discussed below. 
 
At the November 4, 2020 APC meeting, the APC passed a recommendation to continue free 
parking for transient and monthly permit parking through March 31, 2021.  To continue free 
parking for January, February and March, the City could estimate a cost of $154,273 to cover 
expenses based on the average cost of June through September of this year.  The 
recommendation from the APC will be presented to the City Commission.  
 
See attached bar charts showing monthly revenues/operating expenditures and year-end 
parking fund totals from 2017 to date. 
 
STRUCTURE REPAIR AND MAINTENCE PROGRAM 
Minor repairs that were previously on hold due to outstanding invoices are underway.  For 
example, drainage concerns such as clogged drains and broken pipes are being repaired to 
ensure standing water is addressed before freezing temperatures arrive.  Also, electrical work 
to repair damaged or non-functioning lighting is currently being corrected. 
 
Police staff has conducted walk-throughs of the parking structures with SP+ staff to identify 
problem areas.  Maintenance logs have been created to identify problems and track the status 
of repairs.  These walk-throughs are scheduled to occur several times a year with one 
structure being addressed per month.   
 



3 
 
 

At the October 28, 2019 City Commission meeting, the Commission approved a resolution to 
have WJE Engineers and Architects conduct full structural assessments of all five parking 
structures.  Police staff has reviewed the structural assessment reports provided by WJE.  In 
those reports, WJE provided immediate recommendations that were primarily safety related 
items.  At the May 18, 2020 City Commission meeting, the Commission approved a resolution 
to have DRV Contractors complete the identified repair items.  These repairs have since been 
completed. 
 
Since the Police Department has been assigned temporary management of the parking structures, 
no long-term renovation/repair plans have been found.  WJE is not aware of any plans or have 
been part of any long term planning process to maintain the structures.  As part of the 2019 
agreement, WJE has been asked to prepare a five-year renovation/repair plan to ensure the 
structural integrity and safety of the City’s parking structures.   WJE is currently working on a 
schedule to conduct a more thorough assessment of the structures to provide a recommendation 
to the City.  
 
VALET PARKING OPERATIONS 
City sponsored on street valet was first started in 2011.  Initially, the program began as a holiday 
promotion and was later used to supplement parking during construction projects.  Two valet 
stands have been in operation during the Old Woodward and Maple road reconstruction projects.  
One stand located on Hamilton at Ferndale and one on S. Old Woodward north of Brown.  These 
valet operations were initially shut down due to Covid-19 and reopened on July 6th.  Currently, 
the City pays In House Valet $750 per week per stand.  Annually, each location would cost the 
City $39,000 for a total of $78,000.  Under normal operations, the stand on Hamilton is used half 
as much as the location on Old Woodward.  On average, around 50 cars per week use the 
Hamilton location resulting in an average cost of $15 per valeted vehicle to the City.  Additionally, 
the driver pays $5 for the first two hours and $5 for each additional hour. 
 
The new development at Old Woodward and Brown, The Daxton Hotel, has entered into an 
agreement with the City to provide valet services, not only to their guests but also to patrons of 
the downtown.  In return, the City will not charge the Daxton for the metered spaces to operate 
their valet stand, which would cost the Daxton $22,464.  This agreement will go before the City 
Commission on December 7, 2020.  When the Daxton’s operation opens, the City stand on Old 
Woodward will be cancelled saving the City $39,000 for annual operation of valet services at this 
location.  
 
During the holiday season, the cost to operate both of the existing locations is paid for by the 
Birmingham Shopping District.  Once this promotion expires, staff has discussed eliminating the 
Hamilton location due to limited use and availability of parking with its close proximity to the Park 
St. Structure.  This would add an additional savings of up to $39,000 for yearly operations. 
 
PARKING METER UPDATE 
At the September 14, 2020 City Commission meeting, the Commission passed a resolution to 
update the City’s 1,268 on street meters to 4G LNG meters.  To date, 736 LNG meters have been 
received and installed.  The Police Department continues to install these upgrades as they are 
received and expect total installation completed by December 31, 2020. 



1 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Police Department 
 
DATE:   October 19, 2020 
 
TO:     Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 
CC:   Mark Gerber, Finance Director 
 
FROM:    Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 
 
SUBJECT:   Status of Parking Structure Management  
 
 
On Monday, September 21, 2020, I was advised Tiffany Gunter, Assistant City Manager, had 
resigned her position with the City.  I was asked to be the interim staff member to manage the 
(5) City structures and the Advisory Parking Committee (APC). 
 
Since then, a considerable amount of time has been spent researching and reviewing APC minutes 
and agendas, vendor contracts, invoices and structural assessment reports for each parking 
structure.  Meetings were held with WJE Consultants, DRE Contractors, In-House Valet, Kone 
Elevators, Smarking, SP+ and Johnson Controls regarding the status of their work with the City.   
 
Police department staff has found numerous outstanding invoices going back to March 2019 and 
is currently working with all companies listed below to ensure these invoices are current and any 
work scheduled to be done has been completed as requested.  The review of existing contracts, 
as well as reinstating contracts that have been cancelled for nonpayment is underway.  Repairs 
that have not been completed, because of outstanding invoices mentioned below, are being 
reviewed and rescheduled. 
 

Smarking 
A Zoom meeting was held with the City’s representative from Smarking to introduce the 
features of the program.  For several months, Smarking has not been able to provide any 
information regarding the use of on-street parking due to communication errors between 
them and Civic Smart.  In addition, free parking in the structures has resulted in no 
information regarding structure usage.  Annual subscription with Smarking is $39,534.  
This contract has an automatic renewal on November 1st and requires a written notice of 
non-renewal at least forty-five days prior to the end of the current term.  Staff is working 
with the City Attorney regarding the status of this contract due to information not being 
obtained by Smarking and being beyond the forty-five day window to cancel.  Contact has 
been made with Smarking regarding options to cancel. 
 
In-House Valet 
Staff was contacted by the owner, Steve Ferich, who advised he had not received payment 
for the City sponsored valet stand that he operates.  In-House Valet has operated City 
valet stands since 2011, originally started as a holiday incentive and more recently as a 
construction program.  The program was suspended during the Covid-19 pandemic and 
resumed operation on July 6th, 2020.  Staff was provided with invoices back to July 27th 



2 
 
 

that were unpaid totaling $10,500.  Contact was made with Steve Ferich and payments 
were scheduled.  In-House Valet continues their operation for the City. 
 
Kone Elevators 
In May of 2019, an RFP was completed and bids received were opened on June 14, 2019.  
The RFP was for elevator maintenance at the City’s thirteen elevators.  The proposal and 
contract for Kone was never presented to the City Commission.  From July 1, 2019 to 
date, there has been approximately $28,000 in payments to Kone for service despite not 
having a signed contract.  This contract will be presented to the City Commission for 
approval.  
 
Johnson Controls 
An invoice was received which stated they have processed a “discontinuance of service” 
due to failure to pay with an outstanding balance of $2,887.18.  Johnson Controls monitors 
and maintains the alarm system in the Peabody Structure that monitors pumps and 
plumbing to prevent flooding of the levels below ground.  Contact was made with Johnson 
Controls and a new service contract was submitted and previous amount due was 
scheduled for payment.  This has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney and 
will reinstate their service. 
 
DRV Contractors 
DRV is the contractor that performed repairs on the North Old Woodward Structure as 
well as completed miscellaneous repairs at other structures during the limited use due to 
the pandemic.  An invoice was sent to the City on August 7th for $57,172.50 and has not 
been paid.  This has been scheduled for payment.  DRV was contacted to discuss previous 
and future repair projects in the City. 
 
Nelson Brothers 
Nelson Brothers is a plumbing company that does work in all City buildings including the 
parking structures.  Staff received several invoices with an outstanding balance totaling 
$7,116 for work done in the structures.  Nelson Brothers refused to complete further work 
due to unpaid invoices dating back to September 9th, 2019.  These invoices have been 
scheduled for payment.  Nelson Brothers was advised and stated pending work will 
continue once received. 
 
Lee and Associates 
Lee and Associates is an electrical contractor that has performed work in all of the parking 
structures.  Two past due invoices totaling $2,686 were received from August 7th, 2020.  
These invoices have been scheduled for payment. 
 
SP+ 
SP+ is the operating contractor for the parking structures.  Typically, their fees are 
deducted from revenue of the parking structures.  However, while there is free parking in 
the structures, revenue is not being generated and therefore the City has received invoices 
from SP+.  Their costs for July and August, totaling $108,600, has not been paid.  These 
have been scheduled for payment. 
 
 



3 
 
 

 
Nelson Nygaard 
The Finance Department contacted me on October 8th advising they located a double 
payment to Nelson Nygaard.  Checks dated in January and March of 2019 for the same 
amount and invoice number were submitted to Nelson Nygaard for payment.  Contact was 
made with Nelson Nygaard to review the invoice and they confirmed the double payment 
resulting in a credit of $11,280.19.  However, they also advised that their invoice #74624, 
dated March 22, 2019, for $2,465.74 was unpaid and the credit was applied to this 
balance.  Finance was contacted to confirm invoice #74624 was not paid by the City and 
the confirmed it was not.  Nelson Nygaard sent the forms required to obtain the remaining 
credit of $8,814.45, which were forwarded to the Finance Department to complete. 

 
 
 Request For Proposal (RFP) 

A RFP was created for the operation systems (entrance/exit controls) of the parking 
structures.  This RFP was open during the time of Ms. Gunter’s resignation and the City 
Commission’s request for a review of the management of the parking system.  This RFP 
was cancelled for further review after the management of the system report is complete. 

 
 
 











T h a n k  Y o uT h a n k  Y o u
V o t e r sV o t e r s

Drumroll, please!!

The results are in and you supported Oakland County Parks and Recreation with a 76.32% approval on the 
Nov. 3 General Election. 537,689 citizens voted “Yes”. The ballot question was for the replacement of the parks 
system’s existing .2310 millage and increase to .35 mills from 2020-2029.

On behalf of the Oakland County Parks and Recreation Commission and staff, let me say “Thank You” 
for your support of the Oakland County Parks, programs, services and special events.  

As a result of the millage passing, we are now providing free 2021 Annual Vehicle Permits to eligible residents 
who are seniors (62+), military, veterans, and individuals with permanent disabilities.  
(Click here for more information). 

During the next year, we will also: 
• Reinvest in the parks system to update or replace worn out infrastructure and facilities
• Purchase necessary equipment for programming, maintenance and safety
• Increase our impact on stewardship of Natural Resources at our 14 parks as well as across the 910 square

miles of Oakland County through the Oakland County Cooperative Invasive Species Management Area
(OC CISMA)

• Collaborate with local municipalities to expand trails and provide grants to support local park development

Oakland County Parks and Recreation is proud to serve the residents of Oakland County, providing an 
essential service to improve your quality of life.

We look forward to the opportunity to exceed residents’ expectations for programs, services and facilities in 
the next 10 years.

Daniel J. Stencil
Executive Officer

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.oakgov.com/parks/shop/Pages/Free-AVP.aspx

	11232020 Agenda
	3A 20201123 DRB APPOINTMENT
	NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	DESIGN REVIEW BOARD

	Design Review Board roster
	Dustin Kolo APP
	SAMANTHA CAPPELLO APP-FLATTENED_Part1
	Kathleen Kriel DRB App

	3B 20201123 Planning Board APPOINTMENT
	20200309 NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	PLANNING BOARD

	Planning Board Roster
	2020 Planning Board Attendance 
	ATTENDANCE 2019 to date
	ATTENDANCE 2018
	J. Emerine & N. Ramin APP

	3C 20201123 BSD APPOINTMENT
	NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	Principal Shopping District Board ROSTER
	Michael Mckenzie APP

	3D 20201123 PRB APPOINTMENT - Revised
	20201109 PARKS & REC BD APPT
	Parks and Recreation Board Roster
	4 Parks & Rec APPS

	3E 20201123 HDC APPOINTMNET- Revised
	NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION

	Historic District Commission Roster
	2 HDC APPS

	3F 20201123 BZA APPOINTMENT
	NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT 10-8
	BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

	Board of Zoning Appeals Roster
	BZA Erin Rodenhouse

	3G 20201123 CCB APPOINTMENT- revised
	NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	Cablecasting Board Roster
	MD Rabbi Alam APP

	3H 20201123 MMTB APPOINTMENT - Revised
	NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION BOARD

	Multi-Modal Transportation Board Roster
	David Lurie APP

	3I 20201123 PAB  APPOINTMENT- revised
	010818 NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	PUBLIC ARTS BOARD

	Public Arts Board Roster
	Peggy Daitch APP

	5A 11092020 Minutes
	5B 20201111 Warrant list & ACH
	5C 20201118 Warrant list & ACH
	5D 20201123 Barnum Park Electrical Additions
	Barnum Park Electrical Additions and Improvements Site Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 SITE PLANS - ES-1 EAST
	2 SITE PLANS - ES-2 WEST
	3 SITE PLANS - ES-3



	5E 20201123 S.E.-2021 ART BIRMINGHAM
	20201123 S.E.-2021 ART BIRMINGHAM.pdf
	Est costs.pdf
	DEPARTMENT

	2021 Art Birmingham special event notification letter FINAL.pdf
	DATE:  November 6, 2020
	Event Information
	NAME OF EVENT:   40th Annual Art Birmingham




	5F 20201123 S.E.-SHAIN PARK MENORAH DISPLAY-Rev
	Est cost.pdf
	DEPARTMENT


	5G 20201123 S.E.-2021 MEMORIAL DAY SERVICE-Rev
	NOTIFICATION POSTCARD - FRONT.pdf
	NAME OF EVENT: Memorial Day Ceremony
	NAME OF EVENT: Memorial Day Ceremony

	Est costs.pdf
	DEPARTMENT


	5H 20201123 Coolidge Maple Traffic Signal Cost Share Agreement
	5I 20201123 Email backup and offsite storage
	Email Backup Solution US Signal.pdf
	20201116-City_of_Birmingham-CBFV_BaaS.pdf
	Cloud Master Agreement - US Signal - City of Birmingham 111220.pdf

	5J 20201123 Fire Hydrant Birm Country Club Intergov Agrt
	REVISED Engineering Plan Sheet San leads and grease trap (approved 9-10-20).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	4_Utility Plan



	6A 20201123 Letter to Commission regarding City Manager contract
	5K 20201123 HAUGEN RESIGNATION-Rev
	7A 20201123 CAFR Cover Memo
	7B 20201123 2020-2021 1st Quarter Financial Update
	7C 20201123 Court Budget 2021
	7D 20201123 Reduced Rate Parking
	7E 20201123 Off Season Outdoor Dining Standards - 11-16-20 - FINAL
	10E1 20201123 1st Quarter Budget Report
	10E2 20201123 1st Quarter Investment Report
	10E3 20201123 Parking System Update
	20201123 IO - THANK YOU LETTER 2020 MILLAGE 11_12



